CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS
Regular Meeting of the City Council
City Hall
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue
AGENDA
March 27, 2024 at 7:00 P.M.

A.  CALLTOORDER: 7/ [( /0,/1

B. ROLL CALL: GUSTAFSON L LEEHY _/MEYER _‘/

/

WASSENBERG _& MIELKE
STAFF PRESENT:  LINEHAN___
C.  APPROVALOFAGENDA ( -() Y h)
D.  PRESENTATION

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
1. February 28, 2024 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
2. March 6, 2024 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes

F. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

G.  CONSENTAGENDA: 1Y 9’ §-&
1. General Disbursements through 03/20/24: $23,275.39
Payroll through 03/15/24: $23,024.36
Wire Payments through 03/15/24: $14,920.63
2. Approval of City License(s)
3. Approval of Jennifer Lowry as Interim City Engineer

H.  POLICYITEMS: (/45540 her IS
1. Acceptance of Proposal from Kraus-Anderson as Construction Manager as Advisor
of Community Park Renovation and Authorization of Professional Services
Agreement

I. INFORMATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS:

£y

J. COMMUNITY FORUM:
Please limit comments to 3 minutes per person. Items brought before the Council will be referred
for consideration. Council may ask questions for clarification, but no council action or discussion
will be held on these items.

K. ADJOURNMENT: /Vlhlm a0/ 10{07 . oy 0t e
- , ; j o
iy

S



BLANK PAGE



CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS
Regular Meeting of the City Council
City Hall
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue

MINUTES
February 28, 2024 at 7:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER: 7:01 PM

ROLL CALL: GUSTAFSON_X_LEEHY___ MEYER _X_
WASSENBERG _X_MIELKE _X_

STAFF PRESENT:  LINEHAN_X_

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Councilmember Meyer motions to approve the agenda; approved 4-0
PRESENTATION

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1. January 24, 2024 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes

2. January 24, 2024 City Council Special Workshop Meeting Minutes
3. February 7, 2024 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes

Councilmember Wassenberg motions to approve the meeting minutes; approved 4-0
PUBLIC HEARINGS:

CONSENT AGENDA:

1. General Disbursements through 02/23/24: $305,769.02

Payroll through 02/15/24: $23,603.48

Wire Payments through 02/15/24: $15,214.56

Approval of City License(s)

Conduit Bond Refinance - Series 2013 Ecumen / Pines of Hutchinson
Appointment of Adam Keester to the Environment Commission
Minnesota GreenCorps Application

AARP Community Challenge Grant Application

SR PN

Councilmember Meyer motions to approve the consent agenda; approved 4-0
Councilmember Wassenberg wonders about the expenditures.

Administrator Linehan comments that $280,000 is payment for Ramsey County Sheriff’s
Office for police services for January & February.

Mayor Gustafson welcomes Adam Keester to the Environment Commission and notes
he will be a wonderful addition.



Administrator Linehan also comments on the Conduit Bond Refinance - Series 2013.
This was a formality requested by bond counsel as they are looking to refinance their
bonds; it has no major implications to the City. He also notes the GreenCorps Grant
Application is an opportunity for the City to have a member assist with environmental
initiatives, while in return providing professional development. The AARP Community
Challenge Grant could help the City fund a permanent, movable net at University Grove
Park.

POLICY ITEMS:
1. Acceptance of Plans and Specifications and Ordering Advertisement for Bids for the
2024 Pavement Management Program, RV 24-04

City Engineer Smith provides Council with a plan overview. The proposed project
involves milling the pavement, spot curb replacement, spot utility improvements and
asphalt pavement overlay on Roselawn Avenue, from Snelling Avenue to Hamline
Avenue. Pavement markings will be refreshed on the new pavement. As part of the
assessment process, a public hearing was held on January 10, 2024. Comments were
heard and City Council ordered the improvement and preparation of plans and
specifications of the proposed project. City Engineer Smith notes items that will be
added since the public hearing are an upgrade to the Simpson Street crosswalk and spot
sidewalk panel replacement is included as a bid alternate. The next step in the process is
to approve plans and specifications and authorize the advertisement for bids.

Mayor Gustafson wonders if any of the cost estimates changed since the last meeting on
January 10t and if Roseville Council approved plans yet.

City Engineer Smith answers Roseville Council is expected to accept plans and advertise
for bids on Monday, March 4. The cost estimate came in slightly lower by $6,000,
including the bid alternate, for a total of approximately $119,000.00.

Councilmember Meyer wonders about the Simpson Street crosswalk upgrades.

City Engineer Smith states there will be a yellow diamond crosswalk sign placed further
ahead in addition to current signage to alert drivers of an upcoming crosswalk.

Councilmember Mielke wonders about the soil used in the boulevard plantings.

City Engineer Smith assumes topsoil. She notes City crews maintain the plantings
periodically in spring by re-mulching.

Councilmember Meyer motions to approve Resolution 24-17 Approving Plans and
Specifications and Ordering Advertisement Bids for the 2024 Pavement Management Project,
RV24-04; approved 4-0

INFORMATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS:
Councilmember Mielke attended the Partners in Energy open house on February 21st,

organized by the Environment Commission. She notes there was great attendance,
presentations and discussions.



Councilmember Meyer adds Falcon Heights is participating with the home energy audits as
well as part of Partners in Energy.

Mayor Gustafson provides his condolences to the families of the Burnsville first responders.
He attended the Larpenteur & Snelling Corridor Study's first focus group meeting on
February 26. WSB facilitated great conversation. Next up is a business open house meeting
related to the study.

Administrator Linehan notes the Planning Commission held two public hearings at their
meeting on February 27. One was to review code language regarding electric vehicle supply
equipment and this was recommended unanimously by the Planning Commission to City
Council. Second, there was a resident petition from Hollywood Court to change to
overnight parking by permit only. After review by the Planning Commission, it was
recommended favorably to City Council. City Staff is continuing to take appointments for
AARP Tax-Aide. The CEC and Parks & Rec will have a joint meeting on March 18% to start
planning for Spring Together. He adds that both St. Anthony Village and Falcon Heights
will be launching a survey on Friday, March 1st to gather feedback regarding the potential
police partnership. The spring 2024 newsletter and the weekly e-newsletter will have more
information on engagement opportunities.

City Engineer Smith notes spring road restrictions that are currently in place per MnDOT.

J. COMMUNITY FORUM:
Please limit comments to 3 minutes per person. Items brought before the Council will be referred
for consideration. Council may ask questions for clarification, but no council action or discussion
will be held on these items.

K. ADJOURNMENT: 7:26 PM

Councilmember Wassenberg motions to adjourn; approved 4-0

...-;72/
Randall C?n{tafgﬁﬁ,l Mayor
Dated this 27% day of March, 2024

LA '
J ack{{Linel}/ﬂn, City Administrator




BLANK PAGE



CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS

City Council Workshop
City Hall
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue
MINUTES
Wednesday, March 6, 2024
6:30 P.M.
CALL TO ORDER: 6:37 PM
ROLL CALL: GUSTAFSON_X_LEEHY_X_

MEYER _X_ MIELKE_X_WASSENBERG_X_
STAFF PRESENT:  LINEHAN_X_ VAN DER WERFF_X_

POLICY ITEMS:
1. Potential Police Partnership - Engagement Plan

Administrator Linehan shares preliminary results of the survey with Council. He is
pleased with the responses so far. Next, St Anthony has an open house prior to their
Council Workshop on Tuesday, March 12 at 5:30 PM. Falcon Heights has their open
house prior to their regular Council meeting on Wednesday, March 13 at 6 PM. The
Councils of St. Anthony Village, Lauderdale and Falcon Heights are invited to both open
houses. Administrator Linehan wonders how engagement with the police should be
built into this. St. Anthony Village hired a consultant and Administrator Linehan hopes
they will discuss police engagement.

Councilmembers Mielke and Leehy wonder about the format of the open houses.
The Council discusses the logistics of the open house.

Administrator Linehan notes there is no specific structure to the open house. There will
be four open houses total plus two town halls in April.

Councilmember Mielke states that councilmembers should act as hosts and welcome
attendants.

Councilmember Leehy suggests pairing up councilmembers during the open house.

Councilmember Mielke wonders if it would be beneficial to have conversation starters
and use easels around the room.

Mayor Gustafson adds that after one open house, they can re-evaluate.

Council discusses the creation of a handout for the open house with contact information,
the survey and information about the potential partnership.



Councilmember Wassenberg wonders how long the survey will stay open.

Administrator Linehan answers the survey will close in April and the two town halls
will be after the survey closes in order to present preliminary results. Town halls
provide more opportunities for engagement as the public has the opportunity to speak
directly to Council and they can respond.

Councilmember Leehy wonders the dates and times for the open houses and town halls.

Council discusses if there should be a facilitator running the town halls to free up time
for both mayors and city administrators/managers.

Administrator Linehan sees potential in that. The town halls will mark the end of the
public engagement. This will help direct Council towards a decision if they want to
continue moving forward with the discussions around the partnership or move ina
different direction.

Councilmember Leehy suggests being available for seniors in the community during the
time that they are available for door-knocking.

Mayor Gustafson suggests attending one of their coffee hours.

Administrator Linehan agrees and adds that staff can reach out to some of the senior
buildings in the city. The idea is to create multiple ways for residents to engage in the
discussions. For example, mailing out paper surveys with return envelopes.

Councilmember Wassenberg likes the idea of making it easier for seniors to ask
questions by coming to some of the meeting rooms that are available at their buildings.

Administrator Linehan notes the door-knocking should start sooner rather than later as
residents need time to take the survey as well. Staff can reach out to property managers
of apartment dwellings and senior housing.

Councilmember Leehy adds that a lot of apartment buildings have spots to put up a
flyer with information.

Administrator Linehan stresses the goal of the engagement plan is for people to take the
survey and to collect data.

Councilmembers Leehy and Wassenberg wonder about engagement with local
businesses. They should be invited to the open houses and town halls as well.

Mayor Gustafson adds landlords/ property owners.

Administrator Linehan wants to divide up the door-knocking responsibilities. Council
then discusses how they want to divide up the neighborhoods and streets for door-
knocking and the supplies needed.

Administrator Linehan suggests taking the multifamily buildings out as the Council
wants to hold open houses at those locations.



Councilmember Wassenberg wonders about campus housing as they have their own
campus police.

Administrator Linehan states that April 5t will be a soft cut-off for the survey; after,
Goff Public will start analyzing the data.

2. Community Park Updates

Administrator Linehan explains WSB is in the design phase. Staff interviewed three
firms for Construction Managers as Advisor (CMa) that have experience in parks
construction in the Twin Cities. Two firms will submit proposals. He explains the City
can bring in the CMa to assist in pre-construction cost estimating and construction
management. They will work with the architect and WSB on preconstruction and assist
with keeping the other parties in check as well. All contracts will be between the City
and the trade contractors. The fee was built into the cost estimates for the park.
Administrator Linehan explains the other possibility of Construction Managers at Risk
(CMAR), but staff recommends the CMa route.

Mayor Gustafson states the CMa has a managerial role in the construction.
Councilmember Leehy wonders about inspections and permit fees.

Staff explains that the City’s building inspector will assist with state charges, other fees
and inspections.

Administrator Linehan states the fees for all CMas were similar, so the proposals will be
evaluated based on experience. They will also help oversee the bid process. He explains
that staff is working on a grant application and this particular grant requires a match
from the City and will be used for an inclusive playground. This process has made staff
realize how much more engagement is needed around the playground alone, depending
on colors and themes.

Councilmember Wassenberg appreciates the idea of having a CMa running day-to-day
operations and the bid process.

Administrator Linehan notes the City will pay the contractors directly, but the CMa will
help oversee this process as well. He adds that the CMa is also preferred by the City
Attorney. He explains a rough timeline of the demo and construction of the building.

Mayor Gustafson wonders about financing and bonding,.

Administrator Linehan explains the City will put forward a bond reimbursement
resolution. This will provide the City statutory authority to have any cost attributed or
refunded towards the bond. Currently, there is enough cash on hand, but long term, a
bond will be needed in order to keep capital on hand. The bond process will most likely
start in summer, once bid estimates are known.

Councilmember Wassenberg wonders about cost ramp-up.



Administrator Linehan agrees it will ramp up at the end and the City can pay back its
capital from the bond. The CMa will handle the REP processes for the subcontractors. In
order to hire the CMa, the City does not have to go through the RFP Process. He
explains there was a third option that was explored for the project called Sourcewell, but
the City Attorney was not in favor of this process for hiring service providers. It works
for buying products such as a new truck.

Mayor Gustafson notes Ice Cream Social can still be held at the Community Park.

Administrator Linehan states staff is cautious with events and field rentals at the park as
the timeline is still uncertain.

Councilmember Leehy wonders what the City’s Finance Director’s thoughts are.
Administrator Linehan notes he is in favor of passing this resolution.

Council is in favor of passing the bond reimbursement resolution at the next City
Council meeting.

3. Legislative Updates / Priorities

Administrator Linehan explains the Minnesota State Legislature is in session and has
numerous bills for consideration. There are certain bills that the League of Minnesota
Cities (LMC) and the City are watching. With the upcoming “City Day on the Hill”
organized by LMC, staff has identified areas the Council may want to consider taking
official positions on. A key priority is state bonding for the park project. Linehan says
he is being realistic and notes that it is unlikely but it's good to have a conversation.

Council agrees.

The second priority is Local Government Aid (LGA). Administrator Linehan explains
2/3rd of our city is exempt from local property tax, so the city relies on LGA. Last year,
aid was increased significantly and a portion was transferred to the capital fund, but a
large portion was donated to the general fund to cover the large increase in police costs.
This funding is key for balancing the levy. The goal is to advocate that the state
maintains LGA. Another goal is making restoration and unity days statewide, which
was brought forth by Senator Oumou Verbeten. The last set of bills is “Local Control,”
which includes preemption of decisions that are traditionally at the local level. This year,
the state has legislative bills that would encroach on some local control regulations.
There are bills that would introduce statewide zoning and land use preemption
provisions. For example, limiting parking restrictions for housing and increasing height
restrictions. The state sees a lot of current municipal zoning guidelines as unhelpful with
the increasing housing demand. Administrator Linehan notes some cities are opposed to
these bills and he wants to take a proactive approach. If passed, cities will be required to
update their code within a certain timeframe.

Lastly, there is a bill with a proposal to change election timing. This would require
municipalities and school districts with odd-year elections to move to even-year
elections.

10



Councilmember Leehy likes that local elections are separate so people can pay attention
to local elections as well as state/federal elections.

Administrator Linehan adds it would reduce our costs as the City contracts with
Ramsey County for election administration. Council Member Mielke states there has not
been a lot of traction with the bill. Linehan adds that he will be lobbying at the City Day
on the Hill organized by LMC.

Council discusses the City’s stands on the legislative priorities.

Administrator Linehan notes that he is hopeful that the City's bonding requests will be
kept in the mix with the bonding requests for the Governor’s recommendation.

4. 75% Anniversary Planning

Administrator Linehan wonders what direction Council wants to take for the 75t
anniversary. He learned there was a parade down Garden Ave. for the 50t anniversary
of the City and the official celebration was held at the end of summer. April 1+t is the
official date for the incorporation of Falcon Heights.

Councilmember Leehy notes they could do a tour again with Falcon Heights facts.

Mayor Gustafson talks about some of the old photos that are available and they bring up
good memories.

Councilmember Mielke suggests an open house with old photos and a presentation of
Falcon Heights' history.

Councilmember Leehy explains she is fascinated with generational stories of families
staying or returning to Falcon Heights.

Councilmember Wassenberg suggests having a 75-year history booth at the Ice Cream
Social with photos and some history.

Councilmember Leehy states having the incorporation date be recognized is good, but
the celebration can be held at the Ice Cream Social.

Councilmember Mielke likes having an open house to which all old councilmembers
and mayors can be invited. The anniversary could also be acknowledged at Spring
Together.

Councilmember Leehy likes acknowledging it on April 1st and noting it at the Spring
Together.

Councilmember Wassenberg likes having banners acknowledging the anniversary on
the new street lights.

Administrator Linehan notes the goal is to have the 75t anniversary celebration be
resident-driven by creating an ad-hoc committee.

1"



5. Future Agenda Items

Administrator Linehan provides the opportunity to the Council to suggest future
agenda items. He notes that the assessment policy was brought up previously.

Councilmember Wassenberg agrees it would be beneficial to take another look at the
policy.

Administrator Linehan states the Falcon Woods project includes the Northome east and
west-bound streets as well and the city is considering including the alleyways. Other
alleyways were done as part of previous PMP projects and the cost came out
significantly lower than anticipated.

Councilmember Mielke suggests cleaning up some of the old ordinances and routinely
reviewing them to ensure they stay up to date. She also wonders about snow plowing
the alleyways.

Administrator Linehan explains the Planning Commission is going through the land use
ordinances and staff routinely reviews City Code. He states that Lauderdale was added
and more sidewalks are being plowed by Public Works as they are fully staffed now.
They are reviewing the possibility of alleyway snow plowing, but have to determine
capacity of Public Works staff.

Councilmember Leehy appreciates that this is being reviewed by staff as it is impactful
for residents.

Councilmember Wassenberg agrees, but notes that there are a number of pros and cons
that need to be reviewed before the City can offer that service.

Administrator Linehan suggests reviewing the possibility of having a single trash
hauler. He believes the city could get a lower cost contract than residents could with the
current offerings of multiple trash haulers.

Councilmember Wassenberg believes it is beneficial to have multiple trash haulers to
create some competition. He adds having a single hauler could disenfranchise smaller
haulers as they cannot compete with larger haulers.

Councilmember Leehy wonders if Falcon Heights ever had a single hauler.
Mayor Gustafson answers no, it was attempted, but never successful.

Administrator Linehan explains that the haulers have to be licensed with the city and
during their renewal they provide pricing. But, those fees exclude additional fees such
as fuel surcharges. Lastly, he wonders about a date for the Council retreat. He wants to
bring Third Sphere back for a DEI recap training. A tentative date they are considering is
April 27t Tt would be good to talk about next steps then for the police partnerships as
all engagement opportunities have wrapped up then.

ADJOURNMENT: 9:29 PM

12



DISCLAIMER: City Council Workshops are held monthly as an opportunity for Council Members to
discuss policy topics in greater detail prior to a formal meeting where a public hearing may be held and/or
action may be taken. Members of the public that would like to make a comment or ask questions about an
item on the agenda for an upcoming workshop should send them to mail@falconheights.org prior to the
meeting. Alternatively, time is regularly allotted for public comment during Regular City Council
Meetings (typically 2nd and 4th Wednesdays) during the Community Forum.

7

7
&/ Randall%iustafson, Mayor

Dated this 27" day of March, 2024

v/ o
Jacf#LineWCuy Administrator

13



BLANK PAGE

14



3/12/2024 9:47 BM
PACKET: 03056 MAR 12 PAYABLES

VENDOR SET: 01 City of Falcon Heights

SEQUENCE ALPHRBETIC

DUE TO/FROM ACCOUNTS SUPPRESSED

A/P Regular Open Item Register

PAGE: 1

----- ID-—---==-~- GROSS P.O, #

POST DATE BANK CODE --------- DESCRIPTION-=---=----- DISCOUNT G/L ACCOUNT = =-----=< ACCOUNT NAME------ DISTRIBUTION
w-xuIw:=uiﬂu..z-ﬁ:RBEIn-:t‘ﬂlll.-uw¢====¢uli mma = SaEENEER s=a= = ---:=.-n--wxn-:-u---n----=a-l----w-------===--=
01-03001  CAMPBELL KNUTSON

I-315 LEGAL 2,459.60

3/12/2024 APENK DUE: 3/12/2024 DISC: 3/12/2024 1099: Y
JAN GENERAL MATTERS 101 4114-80200-000 LEGAL FEES 1,694.20
JAN SANITARY AGREE/ROSEVILLE 601 4601-80200-000 LEGAL 213.60
MOLNUA LEGAL MATTERS 426 4426-81900-000 PROFESSIONAL/ATTORNEY SV 551.80
1-316 FEB GENERAL MATTERS 1,535.60
3/12/2024 APENK DUE: 3/12/2024 DISC: 3/12/2024 1099: Y
FEP GENERAL MATTERS 101 4114-80200-000 LEGAL FEES 1,535.60
=== VENDOR TOTALS === 3,995.20
[—— am I =n
01-03110 CENTURY LINK
I-202403128782 MARCH LANDLINES SS 74.83
3/12/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/12/2024 DISC: 3/12/2024 1099: N
MARCH LANDLINES SS 601 4601-85011-000 TELEPHONE - LANDLINE 74.83
=== VENDOR TOTALS === 74.83
” maw e ===
0 20 GOFF PUBLIC
I-19350 PUBLIC RELATIONS CNSULTING FE 5,568.40
3/12/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/12/2024 DISC: 3/12/2024 1099: N
PUBLIC RELATIONS CNSULTING FEB 101 4112-80330-000 CONSULTANT 5,568,40
=== VENDOR TOTALS === 5,568,40
[ ———r - [P —————— =
01-05528  JOHNSON LITHO GRAPHICS OF EAU
I-109672 SPRING NEWSLETTER 2,587.03
3/12/2024 APBNR DUE: 3/12/2024 DISC: 3/12/2024 1099: N
SPRING NEWSLETTER 101 4116-70420-000 NEWSLETTERS/INFORMATION 1,995.00
SPRING NEWSLETTER 101 4116-70500-000 POSTAGE 592.03
=== VENDOR TOTALS === 2,587.03
01-05509 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES
I1-401043 2024 CITY DAY ON HILL CONF 125.00
3/12/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/12/2024 DISC: 3/12/2024 1099: N
2024 CITY DAY ON HILL CONF 101 4112-96100-000 CONFERENCES/EDUCATION/AS 125.00
=== VENDOR TOTALS === 125.00

15



3/12/2024 9:47 MM A/P Regular Open Item Register PAGE: 2

PACKET: 03056 MAR 12 PAYABLES

VENDOR SET: 01 City of Falcon Heights
SEQUENCE : ALPHABETIC

DUE TO/FROM ACCOUNTS SUPPRESSED

----- ID--------~ GROSS p.o. #
POST DATE BANK CODE --------- DESCRIPTION--------= DISCOUNT G/L ACCOUNT =--=--- ACCOUNT NAME------ DISTRIBUTION

—————— El_sw=—.n==uxxu.u=====xl====£H!l’=====s====;aiiBza:t.l.:z-=:=!s====.n===|=_n ====saT EzmEsssaEs

01-05451 MADISON NATIONAL LIFE INS CO I

I-V 4-2023 Mar LTD AND STD INS 380.31

3/12/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/12/2024 DISC: 3/12/2024 1099: N
LTD AND STD INS 101 4112-89000-000 MISCELLANEOUS 380.31
=== VENDOR TOTALS === 380.31

sssssmsssssoossssIzzan =

01-05908 METRO-INET

I-1781 MARCH IT 4,132.00

3/12/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/12/2024 DISC: 3/12/2024 1099: N
MARCH IT 101 4116-85070-000 TECHNICAL SUPPORT 4,132.00
=== VENDOR TOTALS === 4,132.00

T it smsssan sz=ms==ussS=es soesssSSaNS ===

N T T L e

01-05970 NORTHSTAR DESIGNS

I-712-1 TRUCK DECALS 80.00

3/12/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/12/2024 DISC: 3/12/2024 1099: N
TRUCK DECALS 101 4132-70120-000 SUPPLIES 80.00
—== VENDOR TOTALS === 80,00

ama =

01-0624 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS OF

I-103944234 DRUG TESTING SIMONS 86.00

3/12/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/12/2024 DISC: 3/12/2024 1099: N
DRUG TESTING SIMONS 101 4132-89000-000 MISCELLANEOUS 86.00
=== VENDOR TOTALS === 86.00

ramaEEEsEESSEIOEESESNEESSSCSS AN eeNESSSOSSSRESSSARSSS SEESCEEEESSSSEDESSESaSEESSSSsSan

01-065681 TRI-STATE BOBCAT INC

I-a32234 PARTS: ASPHALT STREET ROLLER 38.49

3/12/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/12/2024 DISC: 3/12/2024 1099: N
PARTS: ASPHALT STREET ROLLER 101 4132-87000-000 REPAIR EQUIPMENT 38.49
~== VENDOR TOTALS === 38.49

01-07898 WSB

I-r-024278-000-1 LARPENTEUR ST LIGHT REPLACEMT 880.00

3/12/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/12/2024 DISC: 3/12/2024 1099: N
LARPENTEUR ST LIGHT REPLACEMT 419 4419-92500-000 LARPENTEUR STREET LIGHTS 880.00
=== VENDOR TOQTALS === 880.00
=== PACKET TOTALS === 17,947.26

16



3/18/2024 10:01 AM

PACKET: 03058 March 18 Payables
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Falcon Heights
SEQUENCE : ALPHABETIC

DUE TO/FROM ACCOUNTS SUPFRESSED

A/P Regular Open Item Register

PAGE:

ID GROSS P.O. #
BOST DATE BANK CODE --------- DESCRIPTION--======— DISCOUNT G/L ACCOUNT = = = -——===- ACCOUNT NAME------ DISTRIBUTION
L 110 CENTURY LINR
I-202403168783 Landline Svc March 64.68
3/1a/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/18/2024 DIsC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
Landline Svc March 101 4141-85011-000 TELEPHONE - LANDLINE 64.68
== VENDOR TOTALS —— 64.68
01~03123 CINTAS CORPORATION
I-4184910091 Floor Mats Sve 2/29/24 82.28
3/18/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/18/2024 DISC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
Floor Mats Svc 2/29/24 101 4131-87010~-000 CITY HALL MAINTENANCE 82.28
I-4186352457 Floor Mats Svec 3/14/24 82.28
3/18/2024 APBENK DUE: 3/18/2024 DISC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
Floor Mats Svc 3/14/24 101 4131-87010-000 CITY EALL MAINTENANCE B2.28
== VENDOR TOTALS === 164.56
01-03583 DELL MARKETING L.P.
I-10736981383 OptiPlex Micreo - Computer 808.85
3/18/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/18/2024 DISC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
OptiPlex Micro - Computer 401 4401-90100-000 FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 808.85
== VENDOR TOTALS === 808.85
01-05166 GRAINGER, W. W., INC.
I-9037975629 Supplies 131.29
3/18/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/18/2024 DISC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
Shop Supplies 101 4131-70110-000 SUPPLIES 20.90
Shrub Clump Grubber 101 4141-70100-000 SUPPLIES 110.39
I-9037975837 Supplies 109.48
3/18/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/18/2024 DISC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
Brush Grubber 101 4141-70100-000 SUPPLIES 99.35
Socket 101 4131-70110-000 SUPPLIES 10.13
1-9037975845 Socket 8.53
3/18/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/18/2024 DISC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
Socket 101 4131-70110-000 SUPPLIES 8.53
=== VENDOR TOTALS == 249.30

17



3/18/2024 10:01 AM
PACKET :
VENDOR SET:

SEQUENCE : ALPHABETIC

A/P Regular Open Item Register

03058 March 18 Payables
01 City of Falcon Heights

DUE TO/FROM ACCOUNTS SUPPRESSED

PAGE:

-------- ID-—===——= GROSS P.O. #
’,_P‘C\}ST DATE BANK CODE ----—~——=] DESCRIPTION-———————— DISCOUNT G/L ACCOUNT = = —====a ACCOUNT NAME-—==== DISTRIBUTION
. 356 LINEHAN, JACK
I-202403188784 Flex Reimbursement 27.04
3/18/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/18/2024 DISC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
Flex Reimbursemant 101 21712-000 MEDICAT, FLEK SAVINGS PAY 23.80
Flax Reimbursement 206 21712-000 MEDICAL FLEX SAVINGS PAY 1.35
Flex Reimbursament 601 21712-000 MEDICAL FLEX SAVINGS PAY 1.08
Flex Reimbursement 602 21712-000 MEDICAL FLEX SAVINGS PAY 0.81
I-20240318B8785 Talephone Reimbursement March 60.00
3/18/2024 APBNRK DUE: 3/18/2024 DISC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
Telaphcne Reimbursement March 601 4601-85015-000 CELL PHONE 60.00
=== VENDOR TOTALS —— 87.04
01-06030 OLSON, ROLAND
I-202403188786 Flex Payment 34.00
3/18/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/18/2024 DISC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
Flex Payment 101 21712-000 MEDICAL FLEX SAVINGS PAY 28.22
Flex Paymaent 601 21712-000 MEDICAL FLEX SAVINGS PAY 5.10
Flex Payment 602 21712-000 MEDICAL FLEX SAVINGS PAY 0.68
=== VENDOR TOTALS — 34.00
01-06053 OREILLY AUTO PARTS
I-3243-418748 Battery for Wacker Roller 67.92
3/18/2024 APENK DUE: 3/18/2024 DISC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
Battery for Wacker Roller 101 4132-70120-000 SUPPLIES 67.92
I-3243-420936 Shop Supplies 7.99
3/18/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/18/2024 DISC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
\ Shop Supplies 101 4131-70110-000 SUPPLIES 7.99
/
=== VENDOR TOTALS =— 75,91
01-06112 PIONEER PRESS
I1-224572540 Legals 97.24
3/18/2024 AFBNK DUE: 3/18/2024 DISC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
Legals 101 4111-70410-000 LEGAL NOTICES 97.24
== VENDOR TOTALS == 97.24

18



3/18/2024 10:01 AM
PACKET: 03058 March 18 Payables
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Falcon Heights
SEQUENCE : ALPHABETIC
DUE TO/FROM ACCOUNTS SUPPRESSED

A/P Regular Open ltem Register

PAGE:

D GROSS P.0. #
,__\pos:r DATE BANK CODE —=~=====- DESCRYPTION———————== DISCOUNT G/L ACCOUNT = =  =—=-—=-- -ACCOUNT NAME=-—-—-—= DISTRIBUTION
! i
. aTo XCEL ENERGY
I-202403188787 Elact 2,711.85
3/18/2024 APBENK DUE: 3/18/2024 DISC: 3/18/2024 1099: N
Elect 101 4131-85020-000 ELECTRIC 687.38
Elect 101 4141-85020-000 ELECTRIC/GAS 24.38
Elect 209 4209-85020-000 STREET LIGHTING POWER 1,869.10
Elect 209 4209-85020-000 STREET LIGHTING FOWER 4.75
Elect 209 4209-85020-000 STREET LIGHETING POWER 43.70
Elect 209 4209-85020-000 STREET LIGHTING POWER 16.31
Elect 209 4209-85020-000 STREET LIGHTING POWER 2.88
Elect 209 4209-85020-000 STREET LIGHTING POWER 63.35
=— VENDOR TOTALS =—= 2,711.85
== PACKET TOTALS =— 4,293.43

19



3/20/2024 2:12 PM A/P Regular Open Item Register PAGE: 1

PACKET: 03060 MAR 20 PAYABLES

VENDOR SET: 01 City of Falcon Heights
SEQUENCE : ALPHABETIC

DUE TO/FROM ACCOUNTS SUPPRESSED

----- ID-------- GROSS  P.O. #
POST DATE  BANK CODE --=------- DESCRIPTION------=--- DISCOUNT  G/L ACCOUNT ~  ---=-- ACCOUNT NAME------ DISTRIBUTION

smmpsosss—EEERESSS=Ss wmm smawwss memmacs

01-05008 HUMANA INSURANCE CO

I-673999246 VISION APRIL 78.21

3/20/2024 APENK DUE: 3/20/2024 DISC: 3/20/2024 1099: N
VISION APRIL 101 4112-89000-000 MISCELLANEOUS 78.21
=== VENDOR TOTALS === 78.21

EEnosssEEEENSSNSSSAEEESSSSEENTEAsSEETERSEESSSEIREEES

ERusssmen soEmes EwEE

01-05856 LINEHAN, JACK

I-202403208788 FLEX REIMB 579,25

3/20/2024 APENK DUE: 3/20/2024 DISC: 3/20/2024 1099: N
FLEX REIMB 101 21712-000 MEDICAL FLEX SAVINGS PAY 509.74
FLEX REIMB 206 21712-000 MEDICAL FLEX SAVINGS PAY 28.96
FLEX REIMB 601 21712-000 MEDICAL FLEX SAVINGS PAY 23.17
FLEX REIMB 602 21712-000 MEDICAL FLEX SAVINGS PAY 17.38
=== VENDOR TOTALS === 579.25

----ln-.-.::--a-ncuun-------:::an-uxu-x.--nna-n-nn--nunu:z-u-an------a--.--.r-nn---u-a:-n-nunuun--zwas--.---n-nn-;;----x:anx-----nan

01-05843 MN NCPERS LIFE INSURANCE

I-458800042024 LIFE INS APRIL 64,00
M20/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/20/2024 DISC: 3/20/2024 1099: N
-; LIFE INS APRIL 101 21709-000 OTHER PAYABLE 39,52
LIFE INS APRIL 204 21708-000 OTHER PAYABLE 1.60
LIFE INS APRIL 601 21709-000 OTHER PAYABLE 16.16
LIFE INS APRIL 602 21709-000 OTHER PAYABLE 6.72
=== VENDOR TOTALS === 64.00
seEEssEmssSSooIENCSSEEESSISSEsSSsSEESGSSSSssSE N I —————— e S P PRV LR L LSS

01-05925 SECURIAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPAN

I-34885351-00 APRIL LIFE INS 313.24

3/20/2024 APBNK DUE: 3/20/2024 DISC: 3/20/2024 1099: N
APRIL LIFE INS 101 4112-89000-000 MISCELLANEOUS 313.24
=== VENDOR TOTALS === 313.24
=== PACKET TOTALS === 1,034.70

20



**+x*% DIRECT DEPOSIT LIST ****x*

EMP #

L 1006
01-1027
01-1029
01-1136
01-1162
01-1028
01-1167
01-1168
01-1033
01-1143

TOTAL PRINTED:

3-12-2024
PRAYROLL NO:

6:32 AM

JACK LINEHAN

KELLY A NELSON
ELKE VAN DER WERFF
ROLAND O OLSON
ALYSSA LANDBERG
HANNAH B LYNCH
DAVID S SIMONS
DEAN T POPE

DAVE TRETSVEN
COLIN B CALLAHAN

10

01 City of Falcon Heights

REGULAR CHECKS:
DIRECT DEPOSIT REGULAR

MANUAL CHECKS:
PRINTED MANUAL CHECKS:
DIRECT DEPOSIT MANUAL CHECKS:
VOIDED

NON

CHECKS:
CHECKS:

TOTAL

ek

**+* NO ERRORS FQUND

*+* END OF REPORT *¥

PAYROLL

CHECKS : 10

CHECKS: 10

PAY PERIOD ENDING

DIRECT DEPQSIT EFFECTIVE DATE

CHECK REGISTER

#%+ REGISTER TOTALS *+**

23,024.36

23,024.36

-~ 0~ 0~

NN FHEFPBPNMDHEWRNDW

23,

AMOUNT

057

551.
779.

282
245

794.
716.
725,
065.

806

024.

.73
72
05
.06
.33
05
13
88
72
.69

36

PAGE:
PAYROLL DATE:

3/15/2024
3/12/2024

1
3/12/2024

21



Fed With
St With
Pera
ICMA

March 15 payroll

8,480.46
1,469.29
4,770.88

200.00

14,920.63

22



BLANK PAGE

23



Meeting Date March 27, 2024
Agenda Item Consent G2
Attachment N/A
Submitted By Kelly Nelson
Administrative Services Director /
Deputy Clerk
Item Approval of City License(s)
Description
The following individuals/ entities have applied for a Multifamily Rental
Dwelling License for 2024. Staff have received the necessary documents for
licensure.
1. CAPREIT Management; 1530 Larpenteur Ave. W.
2. CAPREIT Management; 1550 Larpenteur Ave. W,
3. 1707 Tatum LLC; 1707 Tatum Street
N/A
Attachment(s) N/A
Action(s) Staff recommends approval of the City license applications contingent on
Requested background checks and fire inspections as required.

24




BLANK PAGE

25



Meeting Date March 27, 2024
Agenda Item Consent G3
Attachment N/A
Submitted By Jack Linehan, City Administrator

Item

Appointment of Interim City Engineer Jennifer Lowry

Description

For several years the City has contracted with the City of Roseville for
engineering services. The City’s current City Engineer, Stephanie Smith, has
taken a job with another city and will be leaving her role as the Assistant City
Engineer for the City of Roseville. Jennifer Lowry, Roseville’s current
Assistant Public Works Director /City Engineer will step up as the City of
Falcon Heights’ Interim City Engineer.

The City wishes to continue utilizing the City of Roseville’s Engineering
Department with Jennifer Lowry as Interim Engineer for 2024.

Budget Impact

Funds have been allocated in the 2024 Budget.

Attachment(s)

N/A

Action(s) Requested

Staff recommends the approval of Jennifer Lowry and the City of Roseville
Engineering Department as City of Falcon Heights’ Interim Engineer for 2024.

26




BLANK PAGE

27



Meeting Date March 27, 2024

Agenda Item H1

Attachment Kraus-Anderson Proposal for
Construction Management Services;
Professional Services Agreement
(TBD); Resolution

Submitted By Jack Linehan, City Administrator

Item

Kraus-Anderson Proposal for Construction Management Services - Community
Park Renovation Project

Description

As we enter the pre-construction and construction phases of the Community Park
Renovation Project, the City and our consultants have identified the benefit of bringing
on a Construction Manager as Advisor (CMa). This is a professional service that will
assist the City with accurate cost estimating in the planning phase, and will help bid the
projects to prime contractors (HVAC, masonry, electric, demolition, etc.) that will be
packaged to the City Council.

Upon construction of the project, the CMa will be the primary oversee of day-to-day
construction. They will dedicate an on-site supervisor who will be in charge of all
contractors and provide regular feedback to the City and Council.

City Staff interviewed three major firms, and asked two firms to submit proposals for
service. The two firms were Loeffler Construction and Kraus-Anderson. Both firms had
extensive work with municipalities on similar park projects. Staff have deemed both
firms as qualified. Costs for the two firms was similar: Kraus-Anderson proposed the
lower construction management fee (2.25% of project cost vs. 3.5% from Loeffler), but
Loeffler had lower hourly rates for positions. The bulk of the project costs will come
from these hourly costs.

The final determination of the firm selection was based on the proposed project team’s
relevant experience on similar projects. Ultimately, staff felt that the Kraus-Anderson
team had a more extensive track record on similar projects. We feel confident that their
approach to building and overseeing park projects will ensure the delivery of a park
that is on-schedule and on-budget.

Budget
Impact

Hiring Kraus Anderson is built in to the project contingency in our cost estimates for
contingencies, which were at 30% of the cost estimating. The proposed costs vary on
how the final scope of the project is, but $377,792 was proposed as the total cost. The
fees are budgeted for in our capital plan.

Attachment(s)

e Kraus Anderson Proposal for Construction Management Services

o Professional Services Agreement (to be added before approval - agreement is
being drafted).

e Resolution 24-23

28




Action(s)
Requested

Staff recommends that the Falcon Heights City Council authorize the City

Administrator to execute all necessary documents hire Kraus-Anderson to provide
construction management as advisor (CMa) services in overseeing the construction
administration of a new park building and site improvements at Community Park.

29




CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS
=

CnLcau weeyrs  Community Park Project

THE CITY THAT SOARS

March 15, 2024

V KRAUS-ANDERSON ¢

Building enduring relationships and strong communities

30



V Kraus-Anderson Construction Company
KRAUS-ANDERSON,, 501 S. Eighth Street, Minneapolis, MN 55404

March 15, 2024

Jack Linehan, City Administrator
City of Falcon Heights

2077 West Larpenteur Avenue
Falcon Heights, MN 55113

Dear Mr. Linehan:

Thank you for the opportunity to submit a response for the Falcon Heights Community Park project. With our
steadfast commitment to construction excellence, detailed and continuous cost estimating, value management
practices, transparent communication, and collaborative team dynamics, we would be thrilled to be the City of
Falcon Heights’ Construction Management partner.

Additionally, we would like to draw your attention to a few highlights throughout our RFQ response that we

believe best positions KA to be your Construction Manager:

e Attention to Details: Our meticulous attention to detail, fortified by extensive experience in cost estimating,
results in projects that remain within budget and schedule. See pages 11-16 for an example of our budgets
and estimates processes.

e Full-Time Superintendent: Recognizing the necessity of dedicated resources for seamless project execution,
we provide a full-time superintendent to furnish on-site leadership and oversight, ensuring adherence to
project timelines and safety.

» Communication: Effective communication lies at the heart of project success, particularly in community-
centric endeavors. We are dedicated to maintaining transparent communication with all stakeholders,
leveraging channels like regular progress updates, a dedicated community website, and a digital KA Client
Portal.

We prioritize cultivating strong relationships with clients, subcontractors, and stakeholders alike. Our team

is enthusiastic about integrating into the Falcon Heights community and engaging with residents and staff

throughout the construction of this pivotal community park project. Please reach out for more information or to

further discuss our proposal.

Sincerely,
KRAUS-ANDERSON, CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

Dustin Phillips, Construction Executive | Project Director
612-419-9563 | dustin.phillips@krausanderson.com

Office 612-332-7281 | www.krausanderson.com | Fax 612-332-8739

BUILDING ENDURING RELATIONSHIPS AND STRONG COMMUNITIES
31



1. Management

F|rm Hlstory + Information

1 Established in 1897, KA is a family-owned, privately held corporation and has
provided construction management and general construction services for

more than 127 years. Consistently ranked as one of the top 25 construction
management firms in the Midwest by Engineering News-Record, KA provides
integrated project management services for the successful execution of all
types of construction projects. With a bonding capacity of $1.2 billion, KA ranks
& nationally in the top tier of financially strong companies. KA serves a diversified
commercial construction market, with a 2023 managed construction volume of
$1.4 billion.

" Headguartered in Minneapolis with offices in Bemidji, Duluth, Rochester, MN;
Bismarck, and Fargo ND; Madison, and Milwaukee, W1, and Phoenix, AZ, KA can
leverage the depth of resources and talent of 590 personnel company-wide.

Preconstruction Phase Services Experience

Kraus-Anderson will seek to cultivate a positive working relationship with all project team members and provide
the best value for your project. The most successful construction projects start with collaborative planning

and communication well before breaking ground. We actively engage with the project team to understand your
project needs, goals, and processes. This allows KA to customize our approach to planning, organizing, and
completing the project and ensures that we meet or exceed all needs and expectations.

SCHEDULE

The master schedule encompasses preconstruction, construction,
and post-construction phases and is designed to include critical
milestones and sufficient detail for a concise project timeline
overview. This schedule also accounts for City of Falcon Heights’
activities such as FF&E coordination, technology integration, and
move-in sequences, recognizing that interconnected phases may
be impacted by other delays. Clear schedule transparency aids

in communicating the ripple effects of decisions throughout the
project team.

We will actively seek opportunities to enhance schedule, budget,
and quality during project schedule development. This may

involve strategies like mitigating cold weather effects, optimizing
landscaping growth, ensuring the availability of asphalt plants, and
carefully orchestrating the delivery of vital long-lead materials.

IDENTIFY AND RECOMMEND PROCUREMENT OF
LONG-LEAD ITEMS

Proactively managing long-lead items is crucial to mitigate potential schedule risks. Collaborating with the City
of Falcon Heights, project stakeholders, and essential trade partners, we will strategically source and procure
these materials to ensure the project remains on schedule. Recognizing the necessity for early equipment
procurement during the design phase, we are committed to facilitating a seamless process.

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response :: Page 1

32



1. Management

VALUE MANAGEMENT + VALUE ENGINEERING
Our experienced team can provide you with the right data to make informed decisions about key pieces of your
project. This allows you to maximize the use of your budget and ensure your facility operates as it is intended.

Pivotal to controlling costs is maximizing the value of each system in a building. Our team employs concurrent
design, estimating, and document review processes. This allows the team to develop a better understanding

of the program and intent of the designers and to offer solutions to align your program, budget requirements,
and construction approach with actual costs in the marketplace. Critical areas are identified where further
clarification and detail are required. We provide up-front recommendations regarding the phasing of the work,
installation issues, long-term performance, and value engineering options.

CONSTRUCTABILITY REVIEWS

Kraus-Anderson’s constructability review leverages our expertise and past experiences to assess design
documents. This process enhances document clarity, reducing costs and promoting consistency on bid day, and
serves the following objectives:

* |dentify and resolve conflicts within the documents.

» Detect and eliminate change orders (COs) and requests for information (RFls).
» Minimize project delays.

e Facilitate a smoother construction process.

» Enhance project scheduling.

PREPARATION OF WORK SCOPES PROPOSED FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF EACH
PROJECT PHASE

The meticulous preparation of work scopes for each project phase is critical for the smooth execution of
construction projects. By carefully segmenting the work scopes, we streamline the bidding process, facilitate
better contractor coordination, and encourage local participation, resulting in efficient project management and
enhanced clarity.
As the project’s design evolves, we will:

e Formulate our strategy for bidding and executing your project.

» Collaborate closely with the project team to determine the appropriate

number of work scopes.
e Structure bid packages to accommodate multiple competitive bids.

These bid packages will encompass project-specific construction requirements
related to logistics, scheduling, safety, and coordination. They will also feature
comprehensive individual work scope descriptions encompassing all specified
design sections. Making this information readily available to potential bidders will '
give them a clearer understanding of the work’s scope, driving accurate pricing.
This approach minimizes gaps in the work scope, resulting in fewer change
orders.

Pre-Bid Meetings
During the bidding phase, we schedule pre-bid meetings to disseminate general project information and
acquaint potential contractors with the project’s scope.

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response :: Page 2

33



1. Management

PROMOTING LOCAL CONTRACTOR ENGAGEMENT
Our approach is to customize project work scopes to cater to the needs and capabilities of local contractors.
We develop strong interest by leveraging established relationships with local trades and suppliers to deliver

maximum value to the City of Falcon Heights.

BID OPENING

Upon bid opening, KA will present a bid comparison to assess how the bids align with the project budget.
Subsequently, our project management team will thoroughly review the lowest responsible bidders to validate
the scope and submit a recommendation for the project award to the City of Falcon Heights.

MINNESOTA RECREATION + PARK FOUNDATION SCHOLARSHIP

KRAUS-ANDERSON +

=¥ >

@ The Minnesota Recreation and Park

@ Foundation has spent the last 50 years
supporting the parks and recreation profession
in Minnesota. One of the ways that it is done,
is by creating scholarships for those that are
pursuing a degree in parks and recreation!
(Special thank you to Dustin Phillips and
Kraus-Anderson for continuing to sponsor this
valuable program!)

~ Jennifer Fink, Director of Parks + Recreation
City of New Brighton

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response :: Page 3

34



1. Management

SPECIAL SERVICES + BENEFITS
KA utilizes the latest software and hardware technology for estimating, constructability analysis, and project
management. This project team is well-versed in these technologies and processes along with how to effectively
implement them for you. We utilize these tools to make your life easier and to reassure you that our team is
looking out for your best interests. The following resources illustrate why we are the preferred construction
manager for many cities and counties:

BUILDING SCIENCE / MECHANICAL + ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS REVIEW

We utilize in-house expertise to aid in quality and constructability reviews
throughout design. Our specialized team members assist in driving value
engineering into the project to make sure that the City of Falcon Heights gets
the best quality at the best cost. Consisting of licensed architects and engineers
with decades of experience in design, enclosure consultation, forensic
evaluation, building commissioning, and quality control, our in-house team
provides assistance and advice for the design and ownership teams, helping
projects stay within budget and ensuring the overall quality of the finished
project. With a track record of success on numerous large-scale and complex projects, they have prioritized
“getting it right the first time.”

COMMUNICATION PROCESS + TOOLS

Kraus-Anderson will facilitate an interactive, transparent, and collaborative preconstruction process involving
all stakeholders. This process begins by grasping the project scope and expectations and defining project
parameters. As planning progresses, KA will emphasize honest feedback, active listening, budget adherence,
strict scheduling, and securing buy-in for successful project execution. We'll focus on coordinating and
channeling information that works for you, including:

» Community Engagement: Tailoring outward messaging to your community
e Stakeholder Engagement: Tailoring inward messaging to organizational groups or individuals
* Team Engagement: Sharing information among the City of Falcon Heights, the Design Team, and CM

—

B Wﬁite:Bear Lake
Safety

Public

1

Sample Construction Update Website b R ' Year-End Compilation Video
L City of White Bear Lake Public Safety Renovation i - R Gity of Burnsvile Fire Station
| Scan me! Scan me! R

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response :: Page 4

35



1. Management

CLIENT

mesilar progress

PORTAL

D
(LE"_%_) \E _ The KA Client Portal is a single, collaborative destination for
D Cone et Kraus-Anderson and its clients to conveniently access relevant
e client applications and securely store and exchange project

SUBp e ond
R information before, during, and long after project delivery.

BIM/VDC

Finding and solving problems before they begin, our Building Information Modeling (BIM) and Virtual Design and
Construction (VDC) team can perform clash detection of major building components to solve problems before they
ever reach the field, saving you time and money. This is an integral part of our phasing and site logistics to bolster
our communication abilities.

AUTODESK BUILD

Autodesk Build is considered one of the best communication tools in
the industry. It allows for real-time communication so that all members
of the project team are working off the same documents. It houses all
key, up-to-date project information, including plans, specifications,
shop drawings, product information, Requests for Information (RFI),
Potential Change Orders (PCO), Change Orders (CO), punch lists,
observation reports, daily project logs, progress photos, and other
project-specific items.

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response :: Page 5

36



City of Cottage Grove Glacial Valley Park Building
The new park building contains 4,200 SF of space for

community/class/meeting rooms, a kitchen, a storage
area, and a public warming room. With the goal of

carbon-neutral energy usage utilizing a combination of

solar and geothermal heating and cooling, the project
presented many challenges in design, planning, and
implementation.

City of New Brighton Hansen Park West

This project includes consolidation of parking into one
parking lot, reorientation and enhancements to the
two ballfields, the inclusion of a multi-purpose field
overlay, the addition of a picnic shelter with restrooms
near the ballfields and disc golf course, realigned
trails, and stormwater enhancements. It will also
include a tennis court replacement on the park's

west side.

2. Similar Experience

PROJECT: Glacial Valley Park Building
DELIVERY METHOD: CMaR
COMPLETION DATE: November 2023
COST DETAILS: $3,620,028

OWNER’S NAME + ADDRESS
City of Cottage Grove

12800 Ravine Pkwy. S
Cottage Grove, MN 55016

OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE
Zac Dockter, Parks + Recreation Director
651-458-2808

PROJECT: Hansen Park West
DELIVERY METHOD: CMa
COMPLETION DATE: Summer 2024
BUDGET: $4,500,000

SIZE: 3,616 SF

OWNER'’S NAME + ADDRESS
City of New Brighton

803 Old Highway 8 NW

New Brighton, MN 55112

OWNER'’S REPRESENTATIVE
Jennifer Fink, Director of Parks + Recreation
651-638-2126

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response

:: Page6

37



C-i.ty (;f Ne\ﬁ Brlg on
Redevelopment of existing park that included new
sports courts, baseball field, and pavilion.

2. Similar Experience

PROJECT: Totem Pole Park
DELIVERY METHOD: CMa
COMPLETION DATE: November 2023
COST DETAILS: $2,342,410

SIZE: 750 SF

OWNER’S NAME + ADDRESS

City of New Brighton

803 Oid Highway 8 NW, New Brighton, MN 55112
OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE

Jennifer Fink, Director of Parks + Recreation
651-638-2126

City of Fridley Moore Lake Park

This project included a 4,000 SF new park pavilion
with a 4,000 SF canopy overhang and renovation of
the parking lot, baskethall and tennis courts, and
walking trails.

PROJECT: Moore Lake Park
DELIVERY METHOD: CMa
COMPLETION DATE: November 2023

COST DETAILS: $5,808,832

OWNER’S NAME + ADDRESS

City of Fridley

7071 University Avenue NE, Fridley, MN 55432
OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE

Nic Schmidt, Civil Engineer

763-572-3556

SandVenture Aquatic Park Renovation

SandVenture's facility needed renovations, including
the pool liner, plumbing, curb walls, sand, and
buildings, and new locker rooms and a restaurant shell
space. In addition to replacing the sand-bottom pool,
the aquatics area will include a new climbing wall,
diving platform, and boardwalk.

PROJECT: SandVenture Aquatic Park Renovation
DELIVERY METHOD: CMa

COMPLETION DATE: Summer 2024

BUDGET: $6,600,000

SIZE: 9,000 SF

OWNER'S NAME + ADDRESS

City of Shakopee

485 Gorman Street, Shakopee, MN 55379
OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE

Michael Kerski, Director of Planning + Development
952-233-9346

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response :: Page 7

38



KEN FRANCOIS
SENIOR PROJECT
MANAGER

Ken will manage the project
from preconstruction

| through construction
completion. He will provide
management oversight of
all project elements, including budget and schedule
control and overall project communication.

EDUCATION
BS, Civil Engineering, University of Wisconsin,
Platteville, Wi

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

¢ American Public Works Association - MN Chapter
e American Society of Civil Engineers

¢ Minnesota Construction Association

¢ ACE Mentor Program - Lead Mentor

INDUSTRY EXPERIENCE 21 years
RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

o City of Stillwater - St. Croix Valley Recreation
Center Renovation
159,909 SF interior renovation of two hockey rinks,
dome, and turf field enlargement

» City of Wadena - Maslowski Wellness and
Research Center
52,500 SF, two-story new wellness center
consisting of a court gymnasium, indoor swimming
pool, therapy pool, fitness center, racquetball
courts, and community meeting spaces

* Dunn County Community Services Building
Renovation
45,000 SF renovation, including demolition of the
second level, and one wing of the main level, build
back of interior walls, new flooring, new ceilings,
new casework, lighting, and mechanical

3. Key Project Personnel

BEN ALBRECHT
ASSISTANT
PROJECT MANAGER
Ben will assist Ken and

' Mathias in managing the
project from preconstruction

& &=
Ei\f‘. '
\ through construction
completion. He will manage

all project elements, including budget and schedule

|3

| control and overall project communication. Ben will

also provide the front-end bidding documents and
generate local bidder interest in the project.
EDUCATION

BA, Engineering + Physics, Minor in Math, Augustana
University, Sioux Falls, SD

BS, Civil Engineering, U of M, Minneapolis, MN
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

¢ American Society of Civil Engineers

e Minnesota Geotechnical Society

INDUSTRY EXPERIENCE 9 years

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» City of Cottage Grove Glacial Valley Park Building
6,000 GSF new multi-use park building with
training/gathering spaces, kitchen, NanaWall
exterior, and new courtyard

e City of New Brighton Sunny Square Park
New park shelter/pavilion, trail system, parking,
playground with workout features, and renovated
ballfields with new fencing and dugouts

o City of New Brighton Totem Pole Park
New park shelter/pavilion, trails, ballfield, basketball
court, pickleball courts, parking, and site amenities

» City of Chanhassen Civic Campus
New city hall, park pavilion, downtown civic campus
park, pickleball courts, outdoor amphitheater,
inclusive playground, splash pad, field event space

e City of Woodbury Eagle Valley Golf
Clubhouse renovations to staff/common spaces,
new patio, and renovated bar/ kitchen spaces

e Shakopee River City Center

» Cottage Grove Utility + Engineering Building

» Washington County Northern Environmental Center

 Chisago County Harris Shop

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response :: Page 8

39



=== MATHIAS TOBIN |

During preconstruction,
Mathias will be an integral
part of our estimating

. team through each phase,
providing leadership

and management of

the project schedule, and will develop our pre-
qualified subcontractor bidder’s list for the City of
Falcon Heights approval. He will also provide value
management suggestions during the design drawing
stages and preconstruction.

Once construction begins, Mathias will work with
the project superintendent and will handle submittal
reviews, document administration, monitor progress
and schedule, quality management plan, progress
pictures, and project closeout.

EDUCATION

BS, Construction Management

Louisiana State University, Baton Rouge, LA
CERTIFICATIONS/TRAINING

e | ean Sigma Six

e Certified Licensed Heavy Equipment Engineer
e OSHA 30-Hour Construction Safety
INDUSTRY EXPERIENCE 4 years

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

= City of Rosemount - Police and Public Works
Building, Rosemount, MN
111,371 SF new Public Works, 48,629 SF Police
Department facility, 7,400 SF cold storage building,
and 4,800 SF salt storage building
Hayward Community School District, Hayward, WI
= Hayward High School
44,197 SF addition and 390,061 SF renovation
» Hayward Primary School
72,432 SF interior renovation, heavy remodel, and
deferred maintenance and 8,526 SF gymnasium
addition
e Hayward Intermediate School
60,452 SF general renovations of existing school
* Hayward Middle School
86,867 SF remodel

( 2=} PROJECT ENGINEER |

3. Key Project Personnel

Qs DUSTIN PHILLIPS
~ PROJECT DIRECTOR

' Dustin will have corporate

: responsibility for the delivery
B of all preconstruction and

| construction services. He

will direct KA resources to

ensure we meet the City of

Falcon Heights goals and expectations.

EDUCATION

Masters, Construction Management, University of

Wisconsin-Stout, Menomonie, Wl

BS, Construction-Business Administration, University

of Wisconsin-Stout, Menomonie, Wi

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

e American Public Works Association - MN Chapter

e |nternational Facility Management Association

e Association of Minnesota Counties

e University of Wisconsin-Stout, Advisory Committee
and Board Member

CERTIFICATIONS/TRAINING

@ OSHA 30-Hour Construction Safety

e Storm Water Pollution Prevention Planning (SWPPP)

* | eadership Development Program

INDUSTRY EXPERIENCE 18 years
RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE
» Baldwin Woodville Community Athletic Complex

» City of New Brighton Hansen Park West

» SandVenture Aquatic Park Renovation

* Crystal Cove Aquatic Center

o City of Cottage Grove Glacial Valley Park Building
» City of New Brighton Sunny Square Park

» City of New Brighton Totem Pole Park

e City of Shakopee River City Centre Renovation

e City of Woodbury Eagle Valley Golf

» City of Chanhassen Civic Campus

o Cottage Grove Utility and Engineering Building

¢ Washington County Northern Environmental Center

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response :: Page9

40



4. Safety Record

SEVEN-YEAR SAFETY RECORD

Safety is our top priority every day. At Kraus-Anderson, we strive for zero lost time on every project through good
management and utilization of our resources, a proactive approach to safety, a robust supervisory presence,
and hazard assessment. Our EMRs for the last seven years are shown below:

2024 0.66 | 2023 0.54 | 20220 .46 | 2021 0.47 | 2020 0.47 | 2019 0.46 | 2018 0.50

Kraus-Anderson has been recognized annually with the AGC of America’s Excellent Safety Record Award and
the Minnesota Safety Council's Governor’s Safety Award for Outstanding Achievement. We are proud of our
excellent safety record and EMR rating of 0.66, which places us within the top tier of construction firms
nationally.

TOTAL SAFETY ENVIRONMENT

Starting with KA's Safety Program, KA will develop a comprehensive Site-Specific Safety Plan, including
fire prevention guidelines and a Jobsite Emergency Contingency Plan. We will also incorporate any of your
safety programs and all applicable Federal, State, and Local regulations. We aim to provide KA employees,
subcontractors, vendors, and visitors with a safe experience that meets expectations and guidelines.

All KA employees, subcontractors, vendors, and visitors will receive site-specific
orientation and safety training before working on or visiting the job site.

You will be advised of all construction operations through daily and weekly coordination and progress meetings,
ensuring all are informed of current/upcoming construction activities taking place in and around the jobsite.

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response :: Page 10

M



5. Estimating + Scheduling
ESTIMATING METHODOLOGY

This team has the proven experience to successfully estimate and provide key information to keep the project on
track. We start by creating an Overall Budget Summary that tracks both hard and soft costs, encompassing all
aspects of the project. Done in partnership with the City of Falcon Heights and the design team, the document is
then updated and referred back to throughout the project for accountability of pricing efforts.

ESTIMATES
KA will work with the City to provide four key estimates utilizing our WinEst Software:

1. Conceptual Estimate

2. Schematic Design (SD)

3. Design Development (DD)

4. Construction Document (CD)

Estimating is a collaborative effort, Our team will meet with the design team routinely during these estimates to
confirm assumptions and provide clarifications. This eliminates any unwanted surprises on bid day.

Conceptual . Schematic ,! Design Construction
Design Design . Development Documents

|

|

Value Management

e o @ - e o @

. ® @
Cost History

+ Establish Goals + Take Offs + Detailed Estimate + Final Alignment
+ Cost History + Engage + Scope and Budget of Budget and
+ Experience Subcontactors/ Alignment . Objectives
Prime Contractors
+ Budget Check-in
The initial budget is created using o We will perform takeoffs utilizing o Focus on verffication and o Detailed review of scope is
data from the City of Falcon our estimating software and refinement to confirm final design performed ta ensure the
Heights, the Design Team, KA engage local prime contractors and budgets. documents reflect the
cost history, and experience. This and suppliers regarding unit e Continued subcontractor established final budget and
allows the team to assess prices and material availability. engagement in order to provide align with design objectives.
conceptual design costs and .I o Wethenassemblea \ added detail regarding value
make informed decisions about comprehensive estimate for each management that could impact
scope and budgets. | of the selected building systems. | cost or schedule requirements for
) I procurement and construction
' sequencing.

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response :: Page 11

42



ACCURACY

5. Estimating + Scheduling

Not only do Ben, Ken, Mathias, and Dustin have a wealth of experience with similar facilities, but KA also utilizes
a robust program called Modelogix that will provide further insight and support estimates for accuracy. This
system houses project cost histories down to the work scope that can be time- and location-adjusted to match
the market in the Falcon Heights area.

11 EEA CrerTiss.

P SR A Do LA N
AT G

B 34 0100 STRCTUR

HA OTECd 0%

-

LD Wi bman, e ot

I ou
1

=

-

5 M Coy ey W1 Bt T M -

Topoen Oy Con s, ARZERY

ey [
0346 $69980
PR 2
™ 58,111

0346 12077561

x4 e 348 ayness
215 4 INTENOm EOmTRCCTEN " -
8 bl g . o
A BN {0 N ™8 [T
- Oy TN, VI T 373028
TP o PIDHCION 0,346 $16a429
M- 0346 4685500
i ™46 155,133
R 0346 $334156
LA I LECTROmIC BATY & OLRTY ™36 126269
W GH  CERRAL EVEATHANTY L (T
O - Latetaal U LT w3252
T R T 70346 %1321
o wms 0345 sirese
B, MR LA T AT ACT o6 134635
55 C0AT L CONEMCENEY 0345 52044
W08 - CeR TR 70346 “34243
FYAAL - AL B s 10346 s
e oL A SIS CAT — reial T TeLE
=i :.:Il
WIZ0E D0,
wrcm
el
Vg
Frgot00a |
44000 00
BAOOC 000
Hrood o
200 0
1400 £
00 )
13008 008
o I f {
0080 o
[

=5 i hadbmn wa o Mot

B M B33
tLaLCY

PR
it Cn? e, SALTR

= o
M2 3 .—MM

v
o L i U

1000 Ol Ritym ®a by
s v, Wheveats LI4'H By, Wit (OO
It G Pl
wigels )
L G s S LIS Tkl Coul L IRV
P M - K_ hnﬂ—ml -IIlP -
S iy i L TR o v Dol el YD TN L vy i -
e ] faa Futal L Came . Chosm ity T Dl ey Taw TAs L) Duenry B S O |
5099 Wk N AL |
$190 ase0  s20e2328 e N AV T Nt 20 e $1745 ws2m 33300403 L
877 103580 §1217765 wn 16t IR ) - 205,750 1035711 Wi
2953 103380 32049504 Harm S s e gira 20173 ML 35200 05230 3as1507 rian
s1541 [Ty N $1921 ] Wit toh mm manses si83¢ 205260 3330051 wagt
$1185 103300  S.m05% LE] k il a nEm 173 205250 $160016 .
51378 o180 5199159 o i 1 T sk 1254 pICE TS Y £ Y
89 101380 1 ' n o » m s1090H o 205290 4270.208 v
uy 5 v y = aom saasm [ s20 523142 ik
540 SILL) B e anadiay sin w01 $2a1s8 tose 0529 $506.59 paw
., y  bar 1,.‘ u L SHUTH we 207 4430806 na 205290 3315891 W
e el Lie 0es 2685531 2664 2073 Ses s2383 0570 43208964 e
- & yin 101165 ssmeis 564
e FERAT $1961 101,165 51.604,156 $1586 e 9w 205290 .22460 s
o WA g 21224 17 101,165 32714 a2
103,580 o5 41 01165 540726 4534 20m 201 808 s09)
1815 0ase0 565792 %35 101185 $512975 1507 20773 $1534T) 1637 0520w wa
sas7 103500 1579, v " gkt na 20m 316 152
%025 201 $224,48) 1.0
we u0m3 U $190
075 1 i nm 5w
w7 103,580 $1311,572 - e I $120G
s . 1044
I ST VLT W (1. Y | S— 1T LT nan
] a0 414539 e
| AT $14413 i
i 8 3 i I 3 a0

:

Toa

g

e a.,)’ e By Wy, Yy P 9,, i e
Oy "J%Q.. “* “":.q*-'u "'!(.l{‘-‘k.,\‘l"h— Ty 8 "'b-"' ’r’q( C; "ep "’4‘.“%%*14,:‘*4

Toy, 0,y ey

':hh-'

-, Y

Ha

J'g(

, Pty Yoy o T Ve g "'fu.q

o e

B

lk Yo ”q "‘c,,f
, "‘a‘ 4{‘ *.
ey b“\ u"?);

o lsmser wsaue

Modelogix is KA's historical
cost database and analytics
tool used to benchmark your
project against actual as-
bid/as-built cost data from
compasalile Grijech

ity o Mgt
Pt Wit

& Whrisergio Gty
Wi Wy PR
Py

O e Sty Highaty
L L ]

& Cast ke Soevage et
Martreace (s vy
(AXF Bes)

B 5 O Coumy
gt Va Hlrraes
Faciey

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response ::

s

Page 12

43



5. Estimating + Scheduling
OVERALL SCHEDULE: UNDERSTANDING + MONITORING

Monitoring and enforcing construction schedules are crucial measures for timely project completion. An on-site
team continuously tracks and updates the schedule through site observations and weekly meetings, ensuring
the project is staffed appropriately. Monitoring is done through 3-week look-ahead schedules, weekly project
manager meetings, and Owner, Architect, and Contractor (OAC) meetings.

MONITORING THE SCHEDULE
e Regular progress updates T ——— -
* Regular contractor feedback o e i e .

Sneadh Thesaean
* Tl 135
DR S, Vet Drev i B 1
= Setmmrie Apurvest B 5

and collaboration
» 3-week look aheads
¢ Daily job site huddles with
on-site foreman
e Challenges o e s
» Bid packages it iagvatinn e
(local bidding) e e S
» Lead times
» Phasing
» Material and labor
availability
» Seasonality

i ot ExcrvatonrPad Prop
— oo

Ay Srase L0 Beirwg Higtary

T— 1 Frecait Pened iaien

T st diesd

— e

Heart of the City Plaza | Rochester, MN

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response :: Page 13



5. Estimating + Scheduling

DELIVER + MAINTAIN BUDGET
Kraus-Anderson plays a pivotal role in the bidding process, developing a comprehensive bid strategy, carefully
evaluating bids, and selecting the most qualified subcontractors.

To accomplish this, we:

e Strategically construct bid packages tailored to maximize value to the City of Falcon Heights.

= Optimize bid timing to enhance value and coverage.

» Manage the competitive subcontractor bidding process.

o Leverage Autodesk Build to transparently receive, review, and meticulously analyze all bids publicly.

We will hold a public opening of all bids. Kraus-Anderson will analyze all bids and interview potential lowest
responsible bidders to review the scope of work. KA will present all bid and interview results to the City of Falcon
Heights and make a recommendation for subcontractor awards and finalize.

We maintain a budget through constant communication with the City, design team, and contractors. We hold
regular progress update meetings, obtain contractor feedback, and complete 3-week look aheads with the
on-site Superintendent.

PROJECT REVENUE/FUNDING ]| e
. . Bond Redsrandum $58 168 898 00 |Couai eq Budget 2023
We track it all with you: — T — LAPHMIIREE
. CONSTRUCTION COSTS !
* Construction costs and New Constuicion -BP1 ] STH78571500
New Construction - BP2 §30,153 487 90
Owner soft costs o B Dot 43500 20790
. . Caonsiruchon Contmgency
e Clear history of project Remamng Conlirgency $TARBORY3 20%
Pending Changer Orders $199.928.00
* Ability to track all systems Exculed Change Oviers LT
Construchon Management I (i o |
and costs General Condions T 5580000
Pre-Construcson Seraces $28 000
S#e Sernces & Reimoursable | 31,047 701
SOFT COSTS =
" Desan Fees and Reimbursabie B $375088200 |
Pemnits, Plan Revews & Fees $47027338
Utiliies - Connechors 5102 505
Pre-Corstruction Suneys & Sudies $47 000
Testng, Inspections & Corr S$114.066
Biddng. Legal, Feance, Insurance & Misc §156 500
Danet Purthase Crders Monng. Horage eich 375000
Saft Cost Cantmgency r 5250811 [5%
FF&E Expenses
Furniure AllowanceCosts $640 000
Speciatty Equipment (PD) 1 $400 000 |See PD Equipment List
Equipment Allowance (F#) | $750 000 |See PA Equipment Liat
Techroiogy Nawarce | §1.280 000
FFE Coatingency | 5153500 |5%

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response :: Page 14

45



5. Estimating + Scheduling
DETAILED ESTIMATE EXAMPLE

% KRAUS-ANDERSON

Glacial Valley Park Building - DD Estimate Date: 6/24/2022
Client: City of Cottage Grove Project Start: 04/2023
Document Date:lssue Date
Location: Cottage Grove, MN Design Development
T T Total )
Row Unit Grand
Number Item Description QTY UOM Price Total
1 EXISTING CONDITIONS 5,100.00 GSF
2 SITEWORK/BUILDING EARTHWORK 5,100.00 GSF  $31.32 $159,730
3 FOUNDATION / SOG 5,100.00 GSF  $19.52 $99,559
4 BUILDING STRUCTURE 5,100.00 GSF  $60.43 $308,190
5 EXTERIOR ENCLOSURE 5,100.00 GSF $166.70 $850,150
6 ROOF 5,100.00 GSF  $33.30 $169,815
7 INTERIOR CONSTRUCTION 5,100.00 GSF  $52.28 $266,611
8 EQUIPMENT FURNITURE 5,100.00 GSF  $10.82 $55,175
9 FIRE PROTECTION 5,100.00 GSF $4.14 $21,128
10 PLUMBING 5,100.00 GSF  $18.27 $93,200
1" HVAC 5,100.00 GSF  $66.57 $339,510
12 ELECTRICAL 5,100.00 GSF  $21.57 $110,000
13 AUDIO / VISUAL 5,100.00 GSF $3.11 $15,846
14 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY 5,100.00 GSF $5.18 $26,410
15 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 5,100.00 GSF $1.00 $5,100
16 Subtotal 5,100.00 GSF $494.20 $2,520,425
[ Rate Item Descrﬁon_ fhm s Sl CostIG_SF ) Totall
% KRAUS-ANDERSON
Glacial Valley Park Building - DD Estimale Date: 6/24/2022
Clienl: City of Cotlage Grove Project Start: 04/2023
Document Date:|ssue Date
Location: Cottage Grove, MN Design Development
[_7_ 0 e A B ) Gross
| Alternate Total
| Code Item Description Costs
ALT 001 ALT 01: Mech Option 2 (Geothermal) $108,918
ALT 002 ALT 02: Removable Rubber Floor ($1,236)
ALT 003 ALT 03: Retractable Screens $11,020
ALT 004 ALT 04: Wood Ceiling $51,168
ALT 005 ALT 05: Exterior Mineral Wool in lieu of Stud Cavity Spray Foam ($30,000)

Subtotal  $139,870

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response :: Page 15

46



CM Site Services & Fee
Kraus-Anderson Construction
Falcon Heights- Communlty Park Bwldmg

6. CM Site Services + Fee

L = PRI "‘<' H I I ATy e T
FRLCON HEIGNTS Start Date Apr- 2024
L“’"W"“ Finish Date: Aug-2024
5.0 22 108 86/
Mo. Wks Days Hours
Description Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total
Project Executive, Principal in Charge 0 HRS $200.00 | S -
Senior Project Manager 43 HRS $171.00 | S 7,410
Project Manager 22 HRS $149.00 | S 3,228
Preconstruction Manager/Estimator 43 HRS $149.00 | S 6,457
Quality Manager 8 HRS $147.00 | S 1,115
MEP Coordinator 0 HRS $160.00 | S -
Project Coordlnator 0 HRS $72.00 (S -

CONSTRUCTION
Start Date: Late Summe?l-:all
Finish Date: Spring 2025

6.0 26 130 1040

Moa. Wks Days Hours

Description Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total
Project Executive, Principal in a;_arge 7 HRS| S 200 In Fee
Senior Project Manager 52 HRS | § 170 | $ 8,840
Project Manager 520 HRS | § 150 S 78,000

Assistant Project Manager 0 HRS | $ 122 | S -
Project Superintendent (Full Time) 1,040 HRS | S 147 | S 152,880
General Superintendent 52 HRS | S 157 | § 8,164
Quality Manager 13 HRS | $ 148 | S 1,924
MEP Specialist 7 HRS | S 160 In Fee
Safety Manager 52 HRS | S 140 S 7,280
VDC/BIM 7 HRS | S 135 In Fee
Project Coordinator 208 HRS | $ 74 1S 15,392
Accounting 13 HRS | S 741 S 962
‘Subtotal CONSTRUCTION STAFF 1,970 HRS IE 273,442 |
——

rorided, and can beeXpecte

[tobelb

;_Abh\'e'is@ standard rate;sheet for staffing. These ca

once ajschedule and/scope are agreedipon,
NOTE: KA supplies a)full time Superintendent injthisinumber:

tsiwill be ing

Ao IUdEd i the budget the mof Falcon Heights will
éﬁﬁﬁvfmmm. We w.n__ll .ﬂ&vgi,qp(ﬂ;gge@pgn]@. with' thﬁ.ﬂ!ﬁg

— REIMBURSABLES
Job Site Office Trailer 6.0 MOS $825.00 | 5 4,950
Office Equipment & Supplies 6.0 MOS $500.00 | $ 3,000
Travel and Expenses 6.0 MOS $650.00 | $ 3,900
Reproduction & Shipping 6.0 MOS $466.67 | S 2,800
Pick-up Truck & Tools - Supt 6.0 MOS $2,200.00 | § 13,200
ubto 17. : §
Reimhursable Expenses are estlmated to be around $5,000/month.
FEE
[~ Subtotal CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT FEEf 5 3,000,000 | [2.25% I 67,5
KA is requesting a 2.25% fee as shown here. This fee percentage will not change if the scope is increased or
decreased as the scope of the project is developed. o

City of Falcon Heights | Community Park | KA Response ::

Page 16



MINNESOTA

MINNEAPOLIS

501 South Eighth Street
Minneapolis, MN 55404
612-332-7281

DULUTH

3716 Oneota Street
Duluth, MN 55807
218-722-3775

BEMIDJI

206 Beltrami Avenue
Bemidji, MN 56601
218-759-0596

ROCHESTER

502 2nd Avenue SW
Rochester, MN 55902
507-226-8690

NORTH DAKOTA

BISMARCK

1815 Schafer Street
Suite 200

Bismarck, ND 58501
701-989-7150

FARGO

1100 NP Avenue
Suite 201

Fargo, ND 58102
701-989-7150

Kraus-Anderson is an EEQ/AA Employer.

WISCONSIN

MADISON

151 East Wilson Street
Suite 100

Madison, W153703
608-838-5444

MILWAUKEE

126 North Jefferson Street
Suite 402

Milwaukee, W1 53202
414-216-7249

ARIZONA

PHOENIX

SONORAN CREST
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

A division of
Kraus-Anderson Construction

1401 N. 24th Street
Phoenix, AZ 85008
480-899-3240

ROC 102058

www.krausanderson.com

48



CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS
COUNCIL RESOLUTION

March 27, 2024

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING OF PROPOSAL AND AUTHORIZATION OF CITY
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
KRAUS-ANDERSON FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR COMMUNITY
PARK’S BUILDING AND SITE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

WHEREAS, in 2023, the City hired WSB & Associates, Inc. (“WSB”) and HCM Architects to provide
professional services for the Community Park renovation planned for 2024; and

WHEREAS, WSB is providing services such as topographic survey, geotechnical services, public
engagement support, schematic design, final design, and project management services related
to Community Park Renovation; and

WHEREAS, HCM Architects is providing architectural services in designing a new Community Park
building; and

WHEREAS, the City would like to hire Kraus-Anderson to provide construction services related to the
Community Park building and other bid alternates in Phase 1 and parking lot improvements and a new
playground in Phase 2; and

WHEREAS, Kraus-Anderson would provide construction services to include: receiving and evaluating
pre-construction bid estimates, managing subcontractors, providing a full-time Superintendent onsite to
manage the project and working with WSB and HCM Architects on preconstruction plans; and

WHEREAS, Kraus-Anderson’s proposal is a professional services agreement for construction manager
as advisor services not to exceed $377,792.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Falcon Heights,
Minnesota:

1. That the proposal from Kraus-Andersen is accepted by the City Council of the City of Falcon
Heights.

2. That the City Administrator and City Attorney are authorized by the City Council of the City of
Falcon Heights to finalize, negotiate and execute the following professional services agreements
with Kraus-Anderson for construction management services provided in Community Park’s
Building and Site Improvement Project:

a. A232 — General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, Construction Manager as
Adviser Edition

b. Al132 — Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, Construction
Manager as Adviser Edition

¢. C132 - Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager as
Adviser

49



Moved by: Wass C\\‘DG-Y‘—C)

GUSTAFSON
MEYER
MIELKE
LEEHY
WASSENBERG

i In Favor

_Cl Against

Approved by 7’27/ ,
Rar{dall C. Gustafsdin"

ty‘ A sh‘ator

50



AIA Document Al32° - 2019

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor,

Construction Manager as Adviser Edition

AGREEMENT made as of the « 25th » day of « March » in the year « 2024 »

(In words, indicate day, month, and year.)

BETWEEN the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address, email address and other information)

City of Falcon Heighits
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue
Falcon Heights, MN 55113

and the Contractor:
(Name, legal status, address, email address and other information)

<TBD >
<>
ot

for the following Project:
(Name, location, and detailed description)

Falcon Heights Community Park Renovation
2050 Roselawn Avenue
Falcon Heights, MIN 55113

The Construction Manager:
(Name, legal status, address, email address and other information)

Kraus-Anderson Construction Company
801 South 8* Street
Minneapolis, MN 55404

The Architect:
(Name, legal status, address, email address and other information)

Hagen, Christensen & Mcllwain
4201 Cedar Avenue
Minneapolis. MN 55407

The Owner and Contractor agree as follows.

RADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document
has added information
needed for its completion.
The author may also have
revised the text of the
original AIA standard form.
Bn Additions and Deletions
Report that notes added
information as well as
revisions to the standard
form text is available from
the author and should be
reviewed.

This document has important
legal con3egquences.
Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with
respect to its completion
or modification.

This document is intended
to be used in conjunction
with AIA Documents A232™-
2019, General Conditions of
the Contract for
Construction, Construction
Manager as Adviser Edition;
B132™-2019, Standard Form
of Agreement Between Owner
and Architect, Construction
Manager as Adviser Edition;
and €132™-2019, Standard
Form of Agreement Between
Owner and Construction
Manager as Adviser. AIA
Documernt A232™-2019 is
adopted in this document by
reference. Do not use with
other general conditions
unless this document is
modified,

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any
portion of this AIA® Document
to another electronic file is
prohibited and constitutes a
violation of copyright laws
as set forth in the footer of
this document.

AIA Document A132™ — 2019. Copyright ® 1975, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used
without permission. This draft was produced by AIA software at 18:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No.5414554448 which expires on
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the ATA Contract Documents® Terms

of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:

(1295387846)



TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT

3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND DATES OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
4 CONTRACT SUM

5 PAYMENTS

6 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

7 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

8 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
EXHIBITA—INSURANCE-AND-BONDS

EXHIBIT-B—DETERMINATION-OF THE COST OF THE-WORK

ARTICLE 1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary, and other
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of this Agreement, other documents listed in
this Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement, all of which form the Contract, and are as
fully a part of the Contract as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. The Contract represents the entire and
integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either
written or oral. An enumeration of the Contract Documents, other than Modifications, appears in Article 9.

ARTICLE 2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT
The Contractor shall fully execute the Work described in the Contract Documents, except as specifically indicated in the

Contract Documents to be the responsibility of others.

ARTICLE 3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND DATES OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
§ 3.1 The date of commencement of the Work shall be:
(Check one of the following boxes.)

[« »] The date of this Agreement.
[®« »] A date set forth in a notice to proceed issued by the Owner.

[« »] Established as follows:
(Insert a date or a means to determine the date of commencement of the Work.)

«»

If a date of commencement of the Work is not selected, then the date of commencement shall be the date of this
Agreement.

§ 3.2 The Contract Time shall be measured from the date of commencement of the Work.

§ 3.3 Substantial Completion of the Project or Portions Thereof

§ 3.3.1 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, the date of Substantial
Completion of the Work of all of the Contractors for the Project will be:

(Insert the date of Substantial Completion of the Work of all Contractors for the Project.)

AIA Document A132™ - 2019. Copyright © 1975, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used
without permission. This draft was produced by AIA software at 18:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No.5414554448 which expires on
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms
of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (1295387846)




«»

§ 3.3.2 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, if portions of the Work of
all of the Contractors for the Project are to be completed prior to Substantial Completion of the entire Work of all of the
Contractors for the Project, the Contractors shall achieve Substantial Completion of such portions by the following
dates:

Portion of Work Substantial Completion Date

§ 3.4 When the Work of this Contract, or any Portion Thereof, is Substantially Complete

§ 3.4.1 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall
substantially complete the entire Work of this Contract:

(Check one of the following boxes and complete the necessary information.)

[€ »] Notlater than « » ( « ») calendar days from the date of commencement of the Work.

[« »] By the following date: « »

§ 3.4.2 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, if portions of the Work of
this Contract are to be substantially complete prior to when the entire Work of this Contract shall be substantially
complete, the Contractor shall substantially complete such portions by the following dates:

Portion of Work Date to be substantially complete

§ 3.4.3 If the Contractor fails to substantially complete the Work of this Contract, or portions thereof, as provided in this
Section 3.4, liquidated damages, if any, shall be assessed as set forth in Section 4.5.

ARTICLE 4 CONTRACT SUM

§ 4.1 The Owner shall pay the Contractor the Contract Sum in current funds for the Contractor’s performance of the
Contract. The Contract Sum shall be one of the following:

(Check the appropriate box.)

[ « X » ] Stipulated Sum, in accordance with Section 4.2 below
[« »] Costofthe Work plus the Contractor’s Fee, in accordance with Section 4.3 below

[« »] Costofthe Work plus the Contractor’s Fee with a Guaranteed Maximum Price, in accordance with
Section 4.4 below

(Based on the selection above, complete Section 4.2, 4.3 or 4.4 below.)

§ 4.2 Stipulated Sum
§ 4.2.1 The Contract Sum shall be « » ($ « » ), subject to additions and deductions as provided-in the Contract
Documents.

§ 4.2.2 Alternates
§ 4.2.2.1 Alternates, if any, included in the Contract Sum:

ltem Price

§ 4.2.2.2 Subject to the conditions noted below, the following alternates may be accepted by the Owner following
execution of this Agreement. Upon acceptance, the Owner shall issue a Modification to this Agreement.
(Insert below each alternate and the conditions that must be met for the Owner to accept the alternate.)

AIA Document Al32“ — 2019. Copyright © 1975, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registerad trademarks and may not be used
without permission. This draft was produced by AIA software at 18:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No.5414554448 which expires on
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms
of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (1295387846)




Item Price Conditions for Acceptance

§ 4.2.3 Aliowances, if any, included in the Contract Sum:
(Identify each allowance.)

ltem Price

§ 4.2.4 Unit prices, if any:
(Identify the item and state the unit price, and quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.)

Item Units and Limitations Price per Unit ($0.00)

i abdhi ul St Praist

=n

ATA Document A132™ - 2019. Copyright © 1975, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used
without permission. This draft was produced by AIA software at 18:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No.5414554448 which expires on
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms
of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.orxg.

User Notes: (1295%87846)



§ 4.5 Liquidated damages, if any:
(Insert terms and conditions for liquidated damages, if any, to be assessed in accordance with Section 3.4.)

«om

AIA Document A132™ — 2019. Copyright ® 1975, 1980, 1992, 2003, and 201% by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the ATA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used
without permission. This draft was produced by AIA software at 18:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No.5414554448 which expires on
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms
of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (129563784 6)



§ 4.6 Other:

(Insert provisions for bonus, cost savings or other incentives, if any, that might result in a change to the Contract Sum.)
«»N/A

ARTICLE 5 PAYMENTS

§ 5.1 Progress Payments

§ 5.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Construction Manager by the Contractor, and Certificates
for Payment issued by the Construction Manager and Architect, the Owner shall make progress payments on account of the
Contract Sum, to the Contractor, as provided below and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 5.1.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month ending on the last day of the
month.;-erasfollows:

E&»

§ 5.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received by the Construction Manager not later than the « 25th »

day of a month, the Owner shall make payment of the amount certified to the Contractor not later than the «last» day

of the « following » month. If an Application for Payment is received by the Construction Manager after the application

date fixed above, such Application for Payment will be processed with the next month’s payment-oftheamount
:God-chall I y : .

Application for Payment.

(Federal, state or local laws may require payment within a certain period of time.)

juired by VN

tore B
CLOTS Ix

§ 5.1.4 Progress Payments Where the Contract Sum is Based on a Stipulated Sum

§ 5.1.4.1 Each Application for Payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of values submitted by the
Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents. The schedule of values shall allocate the entire Contract Sum
among the various portions of the Work. The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form,‘and supported by such
data to substantiate its accuracy, as the Construction Manager and Architect may require. This schedule of values shall
be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s Applications for Payment.

§ 5.1.4.2 Applications for Payment shall show the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work as of the end of
the period covered by the Application for Payment.

§ 5.1.4.3 In accordance with AIA Document A232™-2019, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction,
Construction Manager as Adviser Edition, and subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents, the amount of
each progress payment shall be computed as follows:

§ 5.1.4.3.1 The amount of each progress payment shall first include:
.1 That portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to completed Work;
.2 That portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to materials and equipment delivered and suitably
stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the completed construction, or, if approved in advance
by the Owner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing; and

AIA Document A132% — 2019. Copyright % 1975, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used
without permission. This draft was produced by AIA software at 18:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No. 5414554448 which expires on
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms
of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (1295687846)



.3 That portion of Construction Change Directives that the Architect determines, in the Architect’s
professional judgment, to be reasonably justified.

§ 5.1.4.3.2 The amount of each progress payment shall then be reduced by:

A The aggregate of any amounts previously paid by the Owner;

.2 The amount, if any, for Work that remains uncorrected and for which the Architect has previously
withheld a Certificate for Payment as provided in Article 9 of AIA Document A232-2019;

.3 Any amount for which the Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or material supplier, unless
the Work has been performed by others the Contractor intends to pay;

4  For Work performed or defects discovered since the last payment application, any amount for which the
Architect may withhold payment, or nullify a Certificate of Payment in whole or in part, as provided in
Article 9 of AIA Document A232-2019; and

.5  Retainage withheld pursuant to Section 5.1.7.

§ 5.1.5NOT USED

AIA Document A132™ - 2019. Copyright ® 1975, 1980, 1892, 2008, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used
without permission. This draft was produced by AIA software at 18:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No. 5414554448 which expires on
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms

of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes: (129528784 6)



AIA Document Al32™ — 2019. Copyright © 1975, 1980, 1592, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used
without permission. This draft was produced by AIA software at 18:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No.5414554448 which expires on
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms
of Service. To repert copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (129‘5687846)



§ 5.1.7 Retainage |

§ 5.1.7.1 For each progress payment made prior to when the Work of this Contract is substantially complete, the Owner
may withhold the following amount, as retainage, from the payment otherwise due: o

(Insert a percentage or amount to be withheld as retainage from each Application for Payment. The amount of
retainage may be limited by governing law.)

«»

§ 5.1.7.1.1 The following items are not subject to retainage:
(Insert any items not subject to the withholding of retainage, such as general conditions, insurance, etc.)

«»N/A

AIA Document Al32™ — 2019. Copyright 2 1975, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved, The
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “2IA Contract Documsnts” are registered trademarks and may not be used
without permission. This draft was produced by AIA software at 18:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No.5414554448 which expires on
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms
of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyrightaia.org.

User Notes: (1295987846)



§ 5.1.7.2 Reduction or limitation of retainage, if any, shall be as follows:

(If the retainage established in Section 5.1.7.1 is to be modified prior to when the entire Work of this Coniract is
substantially complete, including modifications for completion of portions of the Work as provided in Section 3.4.2,
insert provisions for such modifications.)

«HN/A

§ 5.1.7.3 Except as set forth in this Section 5.1.7.3, when the Work of this Contract is substantially complete, the
Contractor may submit an Application for Payment that includes the retainage withheld from prior Applications for
Payment pursuant to this Section 5.1.7. The Application for Payment submitted when the Work of this Contract is
substantially complete shall not include retainage as follows:

(Insert any other conditions for release of retainage when the Work of this Contract is substantially complete, or upon
Substantial Completion of the Work of all Contractors on the Project or portions thereof.)

«»As set forth in the ATA A232-2019 General Conditions.

§ 5.2 Final Payment
§ 5.2.1 Final Payment Where the Contract Sum is Based on a Stipulated Sum
§ 5.2.1.1 Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by.-the Owner to the
Contractor when
.1 the Contractor has fully performed the Contract except for the Contractor’s responsibility to correct
Work as provided in Article 12 of AIA Document A232-2019, and to satisfy other requirements, if any,
which extend beyond final payment; and
.2 afinal Certificate for Payment or Project Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Architect.

§ 5.2.1.2 The Owner’s final payment to the Contractor shall be made no later than 30 days after the issuance of the final
Certificate for Payment or Project Certificate for Payment.;-erasfollows:

“«»

§ 5.2.2 NOT USED

AIA Document A132™ — 2019. Copyright & 1975, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The
“American Institute of Architacts,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documsnts” are registered trademarks and may not be used

without permission, This draft was produced by AIA software at 18:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order N0.5414554448 which expires on 10
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms

of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: 1245987846



ARTICLE 6 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

§ 6.1 Initial Decision Maker

The Architect will serve as Initial Decision Maker pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A232-2019, unless the
parties appoint below another individual, not a party to this Agreement, to serve as Initial Decision Maker.

(If the parties mutually agree, insert the name, address and other contact information of the Initial Decision Maker, if
other than the Architect.)

«»
«»
«»
«»

§ 6.2 Binding Dispute Resolution

For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A232-2019, the
method of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows:

(Check the appropriate box.)

[ & © » ] Arbitration pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A232-2019.
[« = »] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction.
“>

If the Owner and Contractor do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree in
writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, Claims will be resolved by lmgatlon in a court of
competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 7 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

§ 7.1 Where the Contract Sum is a Stipulated Sum

§ 7.1.1 The Contract may be terminated by the Owner or the Contractor as provided in Article 14 of
AIA Document A232-2019.

§ 7444 the-Contractis-terminated-for the Owner'sconvenience-in-accordance-with-AvticleH-oFAA-Document

A232- 2010 then-the-Ownershal-pay-the Contractora-terminationfee-astolows:
fisert-the-amount-of-or-methed for-determining—thefee—if any—payableto-the Contractor-following-a-termination-for
tho-Ovpnep s eonyenisreer

“»
§ 7.1.2 The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A232-2019.

§ 7.2 NOT USED

mm%mmmwbw&e%m&mmmmﬁem

AIA Document A132™ - 2019. Copyright & 1975, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used

without permission. This draft was produced by AIA software at 1€:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No.5414554448 which expires on 11
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms

of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (12@%87846)



§ 7.3 Suspension

The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A232-2019; in.such case, the
Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be increased as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A232-2019, except that
the term “profit” shall be understood to mean the Contractor’s Fee as described in Section 4.3.2 or 4.4.2, as applicable,
of this Agreement. '

ARTICLE 8 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
§ 8.1 Where reference is made in this Agreement to a provision of AIA Document A232-2019 or another Contract
Document, the reference refers to that provision as amended or supplemented by other provisions of the Contract Documents.

§ 8.2 The Owner’s representative:
(Name, address, email address, and other information)

« »
«»n
«K»
«»
«»
«»

§ 8.3 The Contractor’s representative:
(Name, address, email address, and other information)

«»
«»
«»
«»
a»
«»

AIA Document Al132” — 2019, Copyright = 1975, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used

without permission., This draft was produced by AIA software at 1€:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No.5414554448 which expires on 12
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms

of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (12%887846)



§ 8.4 Neither the Owner’s nor the Contractor’s representative shall be changed without ten days’ prior notice to the
other party.

§ 8.5 Insurance and Bonds
§ 8.5.1 The Owner and the Contractor shall purchase and mamtam 1nsurance as set forth in ért;cle 11 Qf AIA Dgggmen

the Contract Documents

019, as modified AdA:

]

§ 8.5.2 The Contractor shall provide bonds as set forth in Article 11 of AIA Document A232-
Document-A132IM 2019 _Exhibit-A, and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 8.6 Notice in electronic format, pursuant to Article 1 of AIA Document A232-2019, may be given in accordance with
ATA Document E203™-2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, if completed or as otherwise
set forth below:

(If other than in accordance with AIA Document E203—2013, insert requirements for a'elzvermg notice in electronic
Sformat such as name, title, and email address of the recipient and whether and how the system will-be required to
generate a read receipt for the transmission.) T

AIA Document A132™ — 2019, Copyright = 1975, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The
“American Institute of Archltects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “ATA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used

without permission. This draft was produced by AIA software at 18:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No.5414554448 which expires on 13
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms

of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.crg.

User Notes: (125@38784 6)



ARTICLE 9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS ‘
§ 9.1 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents: N
A4 AIA Document A132™-2019, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Con

Constructlon Manager as Adv1ser Edition . 1
2 N\ /)
'3 ~
4
.5  Drawings /h\\

Number Title Date

.6 Specifications

Section Title Date

.7 Addenda, if any:

Number Date P
AP TS PEERE R IR h

Portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal requirements are not part of the Contract Documents
unless the bidding or proposal requirements are also enumerated in this Article 9.

ATA Document A132™ — 2019. Copyright ® 1975, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used

without permission. This draft was produced by ATA software at 1B:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No.5414554448 which expires on 14
12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms

of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (12%87846)



Other Exhibits:
(Check all boxes that apply and include appropriate information identifying the exhibit where required.)

Title Date Pages

[« »] Supplementary and other Conditions of the Contract:

Document Title Date Pages

Other documents, if any, listed below:

(List here any additional documents that are intended to form part of the Contract Documents. AlA4
Document A232-2019 provides that the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders,
sample forms, the Contractor's bid or proposal, portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal
requirements, and other information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of recéiving bids or
proposals, are not part of the Contract Documents unless enumerated in this Agreement. Any such
documents should be listed here only if intended to be part of the Contract Documents:)

«»

This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above.

OWNER (Signature) CONTRACTOR (Signature)
& nen €N »
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)

AIA Document A132™ — 2019. Copyright ® 1975, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The

“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used
without permission. This draft was produced by AIA software at 18:42:46 ET on 08/05/2021 under Order No.5414554448 which expires on

12/13/2021, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms
of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes:

(12&587846)

15



AIA Document Cl132™ - 2019

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction

Manager as Adviser

AGREEMENT made as of the « 25th » day of « March » in the year « 2024 »

(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

BETWEEN the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

City of Falcon Heights
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue
Falcon Heights, MN 55113

and the Construction Manager:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Kraus—Anderson Construction Company
801 South 8® Street

for the following Project:
(Name, location, and detailed description)

Faleon Heights Community Park Renovation
2050 Roselawn Avenue
Faleon Heights, MN 55113

The Architect:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Hagen, Christensen & Mcllwain Architects
4201 Cedar Avenue
Minneapolis, MN 55407

The Owner and Construction Manager agree as follows.

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:

The author of this document
has added information
needed for its completion.
The author may also have
revised the text of the
original AIA standard form.
An Additions and Deletions
Report that notes added
information as well as
revisions to the standard
form text is available from
the author and should be
reviewed.

This document has important
legal conseguences.
Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with
respect to its completion
or moedification.

This document is intended
to-be-used in conjunction
with AIA Documents A132™—
2019, standard Form of
Agreement Between Owner and
Contractor, Construction
Manager as Adviser Edition;
A232%-2019, General
Conditions of the Contract
for Construction,
Construction Manager as
Rdviser Edition; and B132™-
2019, Standard Form of
Agreement Between Owner and
Axrchitect, Construction
Manager @s Adviser Edition.
AIA Document A232™-2019 is
adopted in this document by
reference. Do not use with
other general conditions
unless this document is
modified.

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any
portion of this AIA® Document
to another electronic file is
prohibited and constitutes a
violation of copyright laws
as set forth in the footer of
this document.

ATA Document C132™ - 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
thig AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in aevere civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximm extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on

12/13/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(866677505)

1



TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 INITIAL INFORMATION

2 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

3 SCOPE OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S BASIC SERVICES
4 SUPPLEMENTAL AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

5 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

6 COST OF THE WORK

7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1 COMPENSATION

12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT
ARTICLE 1  INITIAL INFORMATION

§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Section 1.1.

(For each item in this section, insert the information or a statement such as “not applicable” or “unknown at time
of execution.”)

§ 1.1.1 The Owner’s program for the Project:

(Insert the Owner'’s program, identify documentation that establishes the Owner's program, or state the manner in
which the program will be developed.)

«»

§ 1.1.2 The Project’s physical characteristics:

(Identify or describe pertinent information about the Project’s physical characteristics, such as size: location;
dimensions; geotechnical reports; site boundaries; topographic surveys; traffic and utility studies: availability of
public and private utilities and services; legal description of the site, etc.)

«»

§ 1.1.3 The Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, as defined in Section 6.1:
(Provide total and, if known, a line item breakdown.)

« $3.500.000.00 »

§ 1.1.4 The Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestone dates:
.1 Design phase milestone dates, if any:

« 1BD »

ATA Document C132™ — 2019. Copyright ©® 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (866?77505)

2



.2 Construction commencement date:

« Anticipated Fall 2024 »

.3 Substantial Completion date or dates:
« 1BD»

4 Other milestone dates:
«»

§ 1.1.5 The Owner intends the following procurement method for the Project:
(Identify method such as competitive bid or negotiated contract.)

« Multiple Prime Conlracts »

§ 1.1.6 The Owner’s requirements for accelerated or fast-track design and construction, multiple bid packages, or
phased construction are set forth below:

(Identify any requirements for fast-track scheduling or phased construction and, if applicable, list number and type
of bid/procurement packages.)

« Assumes one bid packave »

§ 1.1.7 The Owner’s anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project:
(Identify and describe the Owner’s Sustainable Objective for the Project, if any.)

WNJA»

§ 1.1.71 If the Owner 1dent|ﬁes a Sustarnable Objectlve the Owner and Constructlon Manager shal] eemplete—aﬂd

mte—t-ht-s—ﬁcﬂfeemeﬂt-endeavor to deﬁne the terms condmons and services related to the Owner s Sustamable
Objective and may complete and incorporate ATA Document E235™-2019, Sustainable Projects Exhibit.
Construction Manager as Adviser Edition. into this Agreement. If E235-2019 is incorporated into this Agreement,
the Owner and Construction Manager shall incorporate the completed E235-2019 into the agreements with the
consultants and contractors performing services or Work in any way associated with the Sustainable Objective.

§ 1.1.8 Other Project information:
(Identify special characteristics or needs of the Project not provided elsewhere.)

N A»

§ 1.1.9 The Owner identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 5.5:
(List name, address, and other contact information.)

s—=Jack Linehan — City Administrator
«—»City of Falcon Heighis

«#2077 West Larpenteur Avenue
«—=balcon Heights, MN SS113

«—Direct Phone: (651) 792-76 11
awbmaill jack linehan@falconheiehts org

§ 1.1.10 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner’s representative, who are required to review the
Construction Manager’s submittals to the Owner are as follows:
(List name, address, and other contact information.)

ATA Document C132 — 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This ATA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted toc the maximum extent
possgible under the law. This draft was produced by AIAR software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (8668‘77505)

3



§ 1.1.11 The Owner shall retain the following consultants and Contractors:
(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information.)
.4 Land Surveyor:

|
|
2
(1
IR ‘
n
I |
s Bl
L T
/A
J'./ I
/ i
A4  Contractors, as defined in Section 1.4; ' _/W
7
\ ]
N
.5  Separate Contractors, as defined in Section 1.4: 'xl
\\.é
.6 Other, ifany: [\ / ;J
(List any other consultants retained by the Owner.) AW/

§ 1.1.12 The Construction Manager identifies the following representative in accordance wi;Li‘nc:ion 2.5:
(List name, address, and other contact information.) .

§ 1.1.13 The Construction Manager’s staffing plan as required under Section 3.3.3 shall incl
(List any specific requirements and personnel to be included in the staffing plan, if known.)

§ 1.1.14 The Construction Manager’s consultants retained under Basic Services, if any:

ATA Document C132% — 2019. Copyright ® 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document ise protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (86@977505)



(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information of any consultants.)

«NA»

§ 1.1.15 The Construction Manager’s consultants retained under Supplemental Services:

CNA»

§ 1.1.16 Other Initial Information on which this Agreement is based:

CNZA »

§ 1.2 The Owner and Construction Manager may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize
that the Initial Information may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Construction Manager shall,
by appropriate written agreement, appropriately adjust the Construction Manager’s services, schedule for the
Construction Manager’s services, and the Construction Manager’s compensation. The Owner shall adjust the

Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work and the Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestones, as
necessary, to accommodate material changes in the Initial Information.

§ 1.3 The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner and Architect in establishingTFhe-parties-shatl-agree-upen
protocols governing the transmission and use of Instruments of Service or any other information or documentation

in digital form. The parties willmay use AIA Document E203™-2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital
Data Exhibit, to establish the protocols for the development, use, transmission, and exchange of digital data.

§ 1.3.1 Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without agreement to protocols

governmg the use of and rellance on, the mformatlon contalned in the model-aﬂwvﬂheut—hawag—khe&e«pre&eeﬂls—m

, shall be at the using or
relymg party’s sole risk and w1thout liability to the other party and its contractors or consultants the authors of, or
contributors to, the building information model, and each of their agents and employees.

§ 1.4 The term “Contractors” refers to persons or entities who perform Work under contracts with the Owner that
are administered by the Construction Manager and Architect. The term “Contractors” is used to refer to such persons
or entities, whether singular or plural. The term does not include the Owner’s own forces, or Separate Contractors,
which are persons or entities who perform construction under separate contracts with the Owner not administered by
the Construction Manager and Architect.

ARTICLE 2 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 2.1 The Construction Manager shall provide the services as set forth in this Agreement.

§ 2.2 The Construction Manager shall perform its services consistent with the skill and care ordinarily provided by
construction managers practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances. The
Construction Manager shall perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent with such skill-and.care and the
orderly progress of the Project.

§ 2.3 The Construction Manager shall provide its services in conjunction with the services of an Architect as
described in AIA Document B132™-2019, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and-Architect,
Construction Manager as Adviser Edition. The Construction Manager shall not be responsible for actions taken by
the Architect.

§ 2.4 The Construction Manager shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Owner, the
Architect, the Contractors, and the Owner’s other consultants and Separate Contractors. The Construction Manager
shall be entitled to rely on, and shall not be responsible for, the accuracy and completeness of services and
information furnished by the Owner, the Architect, and the Owner’s other consultants and Separate-Contractors. The
Construction Manager shall provide prompt written notice to the Owner if the Construction Manager becomes aware
of any error, omission, or inconsistency in such services or information. '

AIA Document C132 — 2019. Copyright = 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale,

User Notes: (86Z977505J



§ 2.5 The Construction Manager shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Construction
Manager with respect to the Project.

§ 2.6 The Construction Manager, as soon as practicable after execution of the Agreement, shall notify the Owner in
writing of the names and qualifications of its proposed key staff members. Within 14 days of receipt of the names
and qualifications of the Construction Manager’s proposed key staff members, the Owner may reply to the
Construction Manager in writing, stating (1) whether the Owner has reasonable objection to a proposed key staff
member or (2) that the Owner requires additional time to review. Failure of the Owner to reply within the 14-day
period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection. The Construction Manager shall not staff any employees on
the Project to whom the Owner has made reasonable and timely objection. The Construction Manager shall not
change its key staff members without the Owner’s consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

§ 2.7 Except with the Owner’s knowledge and consent, the Construction Manager shall not engage in any activity,
or accept any employment, interest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Construction
Manager’s judgment with respect to this Project.

§ 2.8 The Construction Manager shall maintain the following insurance until termination of this Agreement. If any
of the requirements set forth below are in addition to the types and limits the Construction Manager normally
maintains, the Owner shall pay the Construction Manager as set forth in section 11.7.

§ 2.8.1 Commercial General Liability with policy limits of not less than « Million Dollars » ($ « - ,000.000 »
) for each occurrence and « Twe Million Dollars » ($ « 2,000,000 » ) in the aggregate for bodily-injury. - and property
damage.

§ 2.8.2 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Construction Manager
with policy limits of not less than « Million Dollars » ($ « . .000.000 » ) per accident for bodily injury,
death of any person, and property damage arising out of the ownershlp, maintenance and use of those motor
vehicles, along with any other statutorily required automobile coverage.

§ 2.8.3 The Construction Manager may achieve the required limits and coverage for Commercial General Liability
and Automobile Liability through a combination of primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance, provided
such primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance policies result in the same or greater coverage as the
coverages required under Sections 2.8.1 and 2.8.2, and in no event shall any excess or umbrella liability insurance
provide narrower coverage than the primary policy. The excess policy shall not require the exhaustion of the
underlying limits only through the actual payment by the underlying insurers.

§ 2.8.4 Workers’ Compensation at statutory limits and Employers Liability with policy limits not less than « Five

Hundred Thousand Dollars » ($ «500.000 » ) each accident, « Five Hundred Thousand Dollars » ($« 500.000 » )
each employee, and « Five Hundred Thousand Dol lars » ($ « 500,000 » ) policy limit.

§ 2.8.5 Professional Liability covering negligent acts, errors and omissions in the performance of professional
services with policy limits of not less than « Eive Million Dollars » ($ « 5.000.000 » ) per claim and « Five Million
Dollars » ($ « 5.000.000 » ) in the aggregate.

§ 2.8.7 The Construction Manager shall provide certificates of insurance to the Owner that evidence compliance
with the requirements in this Section 2.8.

§ 2.9 The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner, Architect, and other Project participants.in establishing
building information modeling and digital data protocols for the Project, which may be documented using AIA
Document E203™-2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, to establish the protocols for the
development, use, transmission, and exchange of digital data.

ATA Document C132™ - 2019. Copyright ©® 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 20139 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on

12/13/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (863377505)



§ 210 Alfa centrallzed electronic document management system will be used on the Project, and-the Construction
Manager shall be ~responsible for
managing and mamtammg the centralized electronic document management system Jiha—eeﬂt-pahied-eleetrm

W%Mmhﬁ%mwm&%nmm
{E "5,‘ 9"'!. I.FEF’FS' FS ég ”?5.!

“—»

§ 2.11 The Construction Manager shall retain all Project related documents and information it receives, and the
Owner and Architect shall have access to the documents and information. The Construction Manager shall transmit
the documents and information to the Owner at final completion.

ARTICLE 3 SCOPE OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S BASIC SERVICES

§ 3.1 Definition

The Construction Manager’s Basic Services consist of those described in this Article 3, and include usual and
customary Preconstruction and Construction Phase Services. Services not set forth in this Article-3 are Supplemental
or Additional Services. The Owner, Construction Manager, and Contractors may agree, in consultation with the
Architect, for the Construction Phase to commence prior to completion of the Preconstruction Phase, in which case,
both phases will proceed concurrently.

§ 3.2 Preconstruction Phase

§ 3.2.1 The Construction Manager shall review the program furnished by the Owner and any evaluation of the
Owner’s program provided by the Architect, to ascertain the requirements of the Project and shall arrive at a mutual
understanding of such requirements with the Owner and Architect.

§ 3.2.2 The Construction Manager shall provide a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program, schedule and
construction budget requirements, each in terms of the other.

§ 3.2.3 The Construction Manager shall prepare, and deliver to the Owner, for the Owner’s approval, a written
Construction Management Plan that includes, at a minimum, the following: (1) preliminary evaluations required in
Section 3.2.2, (2) a Project schedule, (3) cost estimates, (4) recommendations for Project delivery method, and (5)
Contractors® scopes of Work. The Construction Manager shall periodically update the Construction Management
Plan, for the Owner’s approval, over the course of the Project.

§ 3.2.4 The Construction Manager shall prepare and periodically update the Project schedule included in the
Construction Management Plan for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s acceptance. The Construction Manager
shall obtain the Architect’s approval for the portion of the Project schedule relating to the performance of the
Architect’s services. The Project schedule shall coordinate and integrate the Construction Manager’s services, the
Architect’s services, other Owner consultants’ services, and the Owner’s responsibilities and highlight items that
affect the Project’s timely completion.

§ 3.2.5 The Construction Manager shall update the Project schedule to include the components.of the Work,
including phasing of construction, times of commencement and completion required of each Contractor, ordering
and delivery of products, including those that must be ordered in advance of construction, obtaining the required
reviews and approvals of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project, and the occupancy requirements of the
Owner.

§ 3.2.6 Based on the preliminary design and information prepared or provided by the Architect and other Owner
consultants, the Construction Manager shall prepare, for the Architect’s review and Owner’s approval, preliminary
estimates of the Cost of the Work or the cost of program requirements using area, volume or similar conceptual
estimating techniques, including the establishment of sufficient contingency to reasonably anticipate the
development of the Project’s design documents.

§ 3.2.7 The Construction Manager shall review design documents during their development and advise the Owner
and Architect on proposed site use and improvements, selection of materials, building systems, and equipment. The
Construction Manager shall also provide recommendations to the Owner and Architect, consistent with the Project

ATA Document Cl3Z™ - 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on

12/13/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (86%377505)



requirements, on constructability; availability of materials and labor; sequencing for phased construction; time
requirements for procurement, installation and construction; and factors related to construction cost including, but
not limited to, costs of alternative designs or materials, preliminary budgets, life-cycle data, and possible cost
reductions.

§ 3.2.8 The Construction Manager shall review recommendations for systems, materials, or equipment for the
impact upon cost, schedule, sequencing, constructability, and coordination among the Contrziétors The Construction
Manager shall discuss its findings with the Owner and the Architect, and assist the Owner and Architect
witheoerdinate [JM2]resolution, as necessary, of any such impacts. .‘ q

i

§ 3.2.9 As the Architect progresses with the preparation of the Schematic Design, Design Development and
Construction Documents, the Construction Manager shall prepare and update, at appropriate intervals agreed to by
the Owner, Construction Manager and Architect, an estimate of the Cost of the Work with increasing detail and
refinement. The Construction Manager shall include in the estimate those costs to allow for further development of
the design, bidding or negotiating, price escalation, and market conditions. The estimate shall be provided for the
Architect’s review and the Owner’s approval. The Construction Manager shall inform the Owner and Architect in
the event that the estimate of Cost of the Work exceeds the latest approved Project budget, and make
recommendations for corrective action. |

§ 3.2.10 As the Architect progresses with the preparation of the Schematic Design, Design Development and
Construction Documents, the Construction Manager shall consult with the Owner and Architect and make
recommendations whenever the Construction Manager determines that the design, or details, adversely affect cost,
scope, schedule, constructability, or quality of the Project.

§ 3.2.11 The Construction Manager shall provide recommendations and information to the Owner and A rchitect
regarding the assignment of responsibilities for temporary Project facilities and equipment, material§ and services
for common use of the Contractors. The Construction Manager shall verify that such requlrements and assignment
of responsibilities are included in the proposed Contract Documents. ;

!a
A

§ 3.2.12 The Construction Manager shall provide recommendations and information to the Owner regardmg the
allocation of responsibilities for safety programs among the Contractors. i

/.

§ 3.2.13 The Construction Manager shall provide recommendations to the Owner on the division of the Project into
individual contracts for the construction of various categories of Work, including the method to be used for selecting
Contractors and awarding Contracts for Construction. The Construction Manager shall review the Drawings and
Specifications and make recommendations as required to provide that (1) the Work of the Contractors is
coordinated, (2) all requirements for the Project are assigned to the appropriate Contract, (3) the likelihood of
jurisdictional disputes is minimized, and (4) proper coordination is provided for phased construction.

§ 3.2.14 The Construction Manager shall make recommendations about, and coordinate the ordering and delivery of],
materials in support of the schedule, including those that must be ordered in advance of construction.

§ 3.2.15 The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner in selecting, retaining, and coordinating the professional
services of surveyors, geotechnical engineers, special consultants, and construction materials testing required for the
Project.

§ 3.2.16 The Construction Manager shall provide an analysis of the types and quantities of labor required for the
Project and review the availability of appropriate categories of labor required for critical phases. The Construction
Manager shall make recommendations for actions designed to minimize adverse effects of labor shortages.

§ 3.2.17 The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner in obtaining information regarding/applicable
requirements for equal employment opportunity programs, and other programs as may be required by| governmental
and quasi- governmental authorities for inclusion in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.18 Following the Owner’s approval of the Drawings and Specifications, the Construction Manager shall update
and submit the latest estimate of the Cost of the Work and the Project schedule for the Architect’s review and the
Owner’s approval.

ATA Document C132™ - 2019, Copyright &€ 1973, 1980, 1892, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (868377505)



§ 3.2.19 The Construction Manager, in consultation with the Owner, shall develop bidders’ interest in the Project
and establish bidding schedules. The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner and the Architect with the
development of the Bidding Documents, which consist of bidding requirements and proposed Contract Documents.
The Construction Manager, with the assistance of the Architect, shall issue Bidding Documents to bidders and
conduct pre-bid conferences with prospective bidders. The Construction Manager shall issue the current Project
schedule with each set of Bidding Documents. The Construction Manager shall assist the Archltect with regard to
questions from bidders and with the issuance of addenda. 4
§ 3.2.20 The Construction Manager shall submit a list of prospective bidders for the Architect’s review and the
Owner’s approval. |

§ 3.2.21 The Construction Manager, with the assistance of the Architect, shall review bids, and prepare bid analyses,
and make recommendations to the QOwner for the Owner’s award of Contracts for Constructi‘O;n or rejection of bids.
§ 3.2.22 The Construction Manager, with the assistance of the Architect, shall assist the Owner in preparing
Contracts for Construction. The Construction Manager shall advise the Owner on the acceptability of Subcontractors
and material suppliers proposed by Contractors. The Owner will review and approve contracts consistent with the
Owner’s approval process.

§ 3.2.23 The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner in obtaining building permits and special permits for
permanent improvements, except for permits required to be obtained directly by the Contractors. The Construction
Manager shall verify that the Owner has paid applicable fees and assessments. The Construction Manager shall
assist the Owner and Architect in connection with the Owner’s responsibility for filing documents required for the
approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. A

§ 3.2.24 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Construction Manager shall fulfill its
Preconstruction Phase respon51b111t1es per the agreed-u;mn terms. LOIIdIlIOI!S and :,t.rvwcs. |elﬂ{;.d to the Ownel S

Sustamable Db|ectw ! y

§ 3.3 Construction Phase

§ 3.3.1 The Construction Manager shall provide on-site administration of the Contracts for Construction in
cooperation with the Architect as set forth below and in AIA Document A232™-2019, General Conditions of the
Contract for Construction, Construction Manager as Adviser Edition. If the Owner and Contractor modify AIA
Document A232-2019, those modifications shall not affect the Construction Manager’s services under this
Agreement unless the Owner and the Construction Manager amend this Agreement.

§ 3.3.2 Subject to Section 4.2 and except as provided in Section 3.3.30, the Construction Manager’s responsibility to
provide Construction Phase Services commences with the award of the initial Contract for Construction and
terminates on the date the Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment,

§ 3.3.3 The Construction Manager shall provide a staffing plan to include one or more representatives who shall be
in attendance at the Project site whenever the Work is being performed.

§ 3.3.4 The Construction Manager shall provide administrative, management and related services to coordinate
scheduled activities and responsibilities of the Contractors with each other and with those of the Construction
Manager, the Owner and the Architect. The Construction Manager shall coordinate the activities of the Contractors
in accordance with the latest approved Project schedule and the Contract Documents.

§ 3.3.5 The Construction Manager shall review and analyze the construction schedules provided by the Contractors
to update the Project schedule, incorporating the activities of the Owner, Architect, and Contractors on the Project,
including activity sequences and durations, allocation of labor and materials, processing of Shop Drawings, Product
Data and Samples, and delivery and procurement of products, including those that must be ordered in advance of
construction. The Project schedule shall include the Owner’s occupancy requirements showing portions of the
Project having occupancy priority. The Construction Manager shall update and reissue the Project schedule as

AIA Document C132% — 2019. Copyright ® 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11: 25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (863477505)



required to show current conditions. If an update indicates that the previously approved Project schedule may not be
met, the Construction Manager shall recommend corrective action to the Owner and Architect.

§ 3.3.6 The Construction Manager shall schedule and conduct meetings to discuss matters such as procedures,
progress, coordination, and scheduling of the Work, and to develop solutions to issues identified. The Construction
Manager shall prepare and promptly distribute minutes to the Owner, Architect and Contractors.

§ 3.3.7 In accordance with the Contract Documents and the latest approved Project schedule‘ and utilizing
information from the Contractors, the Construction Manager shall review, analyze, schedule and coordinate the
overall sequence of construction and assignment of space in areas where the Contractors are performmg Work.

I
§ 3.3.8 The Construction Manager shall coordinate all tests and inspections required by the Contract Documents or
governmental authorities, observe the on-site testing and inspections, and arrange for the dehvery of test and
inspection reports to the Owner and Architect.

Tad
]

Tt

§ 3.3.9 The Construction Manager shall endeavor to obtain satisfactory performance from each of the Contractors.
The Construction Manager shall recommend courses of action to the Owner when requlrements of a Contract are not
being fulfilled. 14

§ 3.3.10 The Construction Manager shall monitor and evaluate actual costs for activities in progress and estimates
for uncompleted tasks and advise the Owner and Architect as to variances between actual costs and budgeted or
estimated costs. If a Contractor is required to submit a Control Estimate, the Construction Manager shall meet with
the Owner and Contractor to review the Control Estimate. The Construction Manager shall promptly notify the
Contractor if there are any inconsistencies or inaccuracies in the information presented. The Construction Manager
shall also report the Contractor’s cost control information to the Owner.

§ 3.3.11 The Construction Manager shall develop cash flow reports and forecasts for the PI‘O_]eCt and, mclude them in
the Construction Manager’s progress reports. P

§ 3.3.12 The Construction Manager shall maintain accounting records on authorized Work performed under unit
costs, additional Work performed on the basis of actual costs of labor and materials, and other Work requiring
accounting records. )

N

§ 3.3.12.1 The Construction Manager shall develop and implement procedures for the review and processing of
Applications for Payment by Contractors for progress and final payments.

§ 3.3.12.2 Not more frequently than monthly, the Construction Manager shall review and certify the amounts due the
respective Contractors as follows:
A1 Where there is only one Contractor responsible for performing the Work, the Construction Manager
shall, within seven days after the Construction Manager receives the Contractor’s Application for
Payment, review the Application, certify the amount the Construction Manager determines is due the
Contractor, and forward the Contractor’s Application and Certificate for Payment to the Architect.
2 Where there is more than one Contractor responsible for performing different portions.of the Project,
the Construction Manager shall, within seven days after the Construction Manager receives each
Contractor’s Application for Payment: (1) review the Applications and certify the amount the
Construction Manager determines is due each Contractor; (2) prepare a Summary of Contractors’
Applications for Payment by summarizing information from each Contractor’s Application for
Payment; (3) prepare a Project Application and Certificate for Payment; (4) certify-the total amount
the Construction Manager determines is due all Contractors collectively; and (5) forward the
Summary of Contractors’ Applications for Payment and Project Application and Certificate for
Payment to the Architect.

§ 3.3.12.3 The Construction Manager’s certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Owner,
based on the Construction Manager’s evaluations of the Work and on the data comprising the' Contractors’
Applications for Payment, that, to the best of the Construction Manager’s knowledge, information and belief, the
Work has progressed to the point indicated, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents,
and the Contractors are entitled to payment in the amount certified. The foregoing representations are subject to (1)

ATA Document C132™ — 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 201% by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (863577505)

10



an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion; (2) results
of subsequent tests and inspections; (3) correction of minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to
completion; and (4) specific qualifications expressed by the Construction Manager. The issuance of a Certificate for
Payment shall further constitute a recommendation to the Architect and Owner that the Contractor be paid the
amount certified.

§ 3.3.12.4 The certification of an Application for Payment or a Project Application for Payment by the Construction
Manager shall not be a representation that the Construction Manager has (1) made exhaustive or continuous on-site
inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work; (2) reviewed construction means, methods, techniques,
procedures, or sequences for a Contractor’s own Work; (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from
Subcontractors and suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate each Contractor’s right to
payment; or (4) ascertained how or for what purpose that Contractor has used money previously paid on account of
the Contract Sum.

§ 3.3.13 The Construction Manager shall obtain and review the safety programs developed by each Contractor solely
and exclusively for purposes of coordinating the safety programs with those of the other Contractors and for making
recommendations for any additional safety measures to be considered in the Work of the Contractors. The
Construction Manager’s responsibilities for coordination of safety programs shall not extend to difect control over or
charge of the acts or omissions of the Contractors, Subcontractors, agents or employees of the Contractors or
Subcontractors, or any other persons performing portions of the Work and not directly employed by the
Construction Manager.

§ 3.3.14 The Construction Manager shall determine in general that the Work of each Contractor is being performed
in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents and notify the Owner, Contractor and Architect of
defects and deficiencies in the Work. The Construction Manager shall have the authority to reject Work that does
not conform to the Contract Documents and shall notify the Architect about the rejection. The failure of the
Construction Manager to reject Work shall not constitute acceptance of the Work. The Construction Manager shall
record any rejection of Work in its daily log and include information regarding the rejected Work in its progress
reports to the Architect and Owner pursuant to Section 3.3.22.1. Upon written authorization from the Owner, the
Construction Manager may require and make arrangements for additional inspection or testing of the Work in
accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed or
completed, and the Construction Manager shall give timely notice to the Architect of when and where the tests and
inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures.

§ 3.3.15 The Construction Manager shall advise and consult with the Owner and Architect during the performance
of its Construction Phase Services. The Construction Manager shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner
only to the extent provided in this Agreement. The Construction Manager shall not have control over, charge of, or
responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions
and programs in connection with the Work of each of the Contractors, since these are solely the Contractor’s rights
and responsibilities under the Contract Documents. The Construction Manager shall not be responsible for a
Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Dacuments. The
Construction Manager shall be responsible to the Owner for the Construction Manager’s negligent acts or omissions,
but shall not have control over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the Contractors,
Subcontractors, or their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 3.3.16 The Construction Manager shall transmit to the Architect requests for interpretations, and requests for

information of the meaning and intent of the Drawings and Specifications-and-provide-is-written
recommendation[IM3]. The Construction Manager shall assist in the resolution of questions that may arise.

§ 3.3.17 The Construction Manager shall review requests for changes, assist in negotiating Contractors’ proposals,
submit recommendations to the Architect and Owner, and, if the proposed changes are accepted or required by the
Owner, prepare Change Orders or Construction Change Directives that incorporate the Architect’s modifications to
the Contract Documents.

§ 3.3.18 The Construction Manager shall assist the Initial Decision Maker in the review, evaluation and
documentation of Claims, subject to Section 4.2.2.7.

AIA Document C132% - 2019, Copyright ® 1373, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (863677505)

11



§ 3.3.19 Utilizing the submittal schedules provided by each Contractor, the Construction Manager shall prepare, and
revise as necessary, a Project submittal schedule incorporating information from the Owner, Owner’s consultants,
Owner’s Separate Contractors and vendors, governmental agencies, and participants in the Project under the
management of the Construction Manager. The Project submittal schedule and any revisions shall be submitted to
the Architect for approval.

§ 3.3.20 The Construction Manager shall promptly review all Shop Drawings, Product Data , Samples, and other
submittals from the Contractors for compliance with the submittal requirements of the Contract, coordinate
submittals with information contained in related documents, and transmit to the Architect those that the Construction
Manager recommends for approval. The Construction Manager’s actions shall be taken in accordance with the
Project submittal schedule approved by the Architect, or in the absence of an approved Project submittal schedule,
with such reasonable promptness as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of the Contractors, the Owner,
or the Architect. i
§ 3.3.20.1 If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to 'systems, materials, or
equipment are specifically required of the Contractors by the Contract Documents, the Construction Manager shall
review those submittals for sequencing, constructability, and coordination impacts on the othér Contractors. The
Construction Manager shall discuss its findings with the Owner and the Architect, and eeapémm&asmst the Owner
[IM4]and the Architect with resolution, as necessary, of any such impacts. ik

§ 3.3.21 The Construction Manager shall keep a daily log containing a record of weather, each Comractor s Work on
the site, number of workers, identification of equipment, Work accomplished, problems encoumered and other
similar relevant data as the Owner may require. .

§ 3.3.21.1 The Construction Manager shall collect, review for accuracy, and compile the Contractors’ daily logs; and
include them in the Construction Manager’s reports prepared and submitted in accordance with section 3.3.21.2.

§ 3.3.21.2 The Construction Manager shall record the progress of the Project. On a monthly basis, or otherwise as
agreed to by the Owner, the Construction Manager shall submit written progress reports to the 0wner and Architect,
showing percentages of completion and other information identified below: b
Work completed for the period; L
Project schedule status; N A
Submittal schedule and status report, including a summary of remaining and outstandmg submittals;
Request for information, Change Order, and Construction Change Directive status reports

Tests and inspection reports; 1

Status report of nonconforming and rejected Work; : A

Daily logs; Foh

Summary of all Contractors’ Applications for Payment; IEA R

Cumulative total of the Cost of the Work to date including the Construction Manager s compensation
and reimbursable expenses at the job site, if any; S

A0  Cash-flow and forecast reports; L i

.41 Photographs to document the progress of the Project; L
A2 Status reports on permits and approvals of authorities having jurisdiction; and ‘
A3 Any other items the Owner may require: | ~ ;

wWoNDORWbMa

"
«n

§ 3.3.21.3 In addition, for Projects constructed on the basis of the Cost of the Work, the Construction Manager shall
include the following additional information in its progress reports:

A Contractors’ work force reports;

2  Equipment utilization report;

3 Cost summary, comparing actual costs to updated cost estimates; and

4  Any other items as the Owner may require:

1

«»

ATA Document C137™ - 2019. Copyright % 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.

WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of

this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent 12
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099732 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (86%377505)



§ 3.3.22 Utilizing the documents provided by the Contractors, the Construction Manager shall make available, at the
Project site, the Contract Documents, including Change Orders, Construction Change Directives, and other
Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field changes and selections made during
construction, and the approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar required submittals. These shall
be in electronic form or paper copy, available to the Owner, Architect, and Contractors. Upon completion of the
Project, the Construction Manager shall deliver them to the Owner.

§ 3.3.23 The Construction Manager shall arrange for the delivery, storage, protection and security of Owner-
purchased materials, systems and equipment that are a part of the Project until such items are incorporated into the
Work. [} =S

§ 3.3.24 With the Owner’s maintenance personnel, the Construction Manager shall observe the Contractors’ final
testing and start-up of utilities, operational systems and equipment and observe any commissioning as the Contract
Documents may require. )

§ 3.3.25 When the Construction Manager considers each Contractor’s Work or a designated portion thereof
substantially complete, the Construction Manager shall, jointly with that Contractor, prepare for the Architect a list
of incomplete or unsatisfactory items and a schedule for their completion. The Construction Manager shall assist the
Architect in conducting inspections to determine whether the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially
complete.

§ 3.3.26 When the Work of all of the Contractors, or designated portion thereof, is substantially-complete, the
Construction Manager shall prepare, and the Construction Manager and Architect shall execute, a Certificate of
Substantial Completion. The Construction Manager shall submit the executed Certificate to the Owner and
Contractors. The Construction Manager shall coordinate the correction and completion of the Work. Following
issuance of a Certificate of Substantial Completion of the Work or a designated portion thereof, the Construction
Manager shall perform an inspection to confirm the completion of the Work of the Contractors and niake
recommendations to the Architect when the Work of all of the Contractors is ready for final inspection. The
Construction Manager shall assist the Architect in conducting the final inspection.

§ 3.3.27 The Construction Manager shall forward to the Owner, with a copy to the Architect, the following
information received from the Contractors: (1) certificates of insurance ; (2) consent of surety or sureties, if any, to
reduction in or partial release of retainage or the making of final payment; (3) affidavits, receipts, releases and
waivers of liens or bonds indemnifying the Owner against liens; and (4) any other documentation required of the
Contractors under the Contract Documents, including warranties and similar submittals.

§ 3.3.28 The Construction Manager shall coordinate receipt, and delivery to the Owner, of other items provided by
the Contractors, such as keys, manuals, and record drawings. The Construction Manager shall forward to the
Architect a final Project Application for Payment and Project Certificate for Payment, or a final Application for
Payment and final Certificate for Payment, upon the Contractors’ compliance with the requirements of the Contract
Documents.

§ 3.3.29 Duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Construction Manager as set-forth.in the Contract
Documents shall not be restricted, modified or extended without written consent of the Owner; and Construction
Manager;-A+rchitect-and-Contractors. Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

§ 3.3.30 Upon request of the Owner, and prior to the expiration of one year from the date of Substantial Completion,
the Construction Manager shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Owner and Architect
to review the facility operations and performance.

ARTICLE 4 SUPPLEMENTAL AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

§ 4.1 Supplemental Services

§ 4.1.1 The services listed below are not included in Basic Services but may be required for the Project. The
Construction Manager shall provide the listed Supplemental Services only if specifically designated-in the table
below as the Construction Manager’s responsibility, and the Owner shall compensate the Construction Manager as
provided in Section 11.2. Unless otherwise specifically addressed in this Agreement, if neither the Owner nor the

ATA Document C132* ~ 2019. Copyright ® 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portioen of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7448099792 which expires on

12/13/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (BG%%I‘:OS)

13



Construction Manager is designated, the parties agree that the listed Supplemental Service is not being provided for
the Project.

(Designate the Construction Manager's Supplemental Services and the Owner's Supplemental Services required for
the Project by indicating whether the Construction Manager or Owner shall be responsible for providing the
identified Supplemental Service. Insert a description of the Supplemental Services in Section 4.1.2 below or attach
the description of services as an exhibit to this Agreement.)

Supplemental Services Responsibility
(Construction Manager, Owner or
not.provided)

§ 4111 Measured drawings Owner

§ 41.1.2 Tenant-related services Owner, if required

§ 4.1.1.3 Commissioning Owner, if required

§ 4114 Development of a commissioning plan Owinier. if required

§ 4.1.1.5 Sustainable Project Services pursuant to Section 4.1.3 N/A

§ 4116 F umit_ure,' furnishings and equipment delivery, and installation R Maﬁa TR
coordination Lonstryction Manager, i required

§ 41.1.7 Fumiture, furnishings and equipment procurement assistance Owaner, if required A

§ 4.1.1.8 Assistance with site selection N/A

§ 4.1.1.9 Assistance with selection of the Architect Owner

§ 4.1.1.10 Furnish land survey Owner. if required

§ 4.1.1.11 Furnish geotechnical engineering services Owner

§ 4.1.1.12 Provide insurance advice Owner, ifrequired

§ 41.1.13 Providfa supplemental Project risk analysis and mitigation OieE T peatirea
strategies Qwner, i required

§ 4.1.1.14 Stakeholder relationships management N/A

§ 4.1.1.15 Owner moving coordination N/A

§ 4.1.1.16 Coordination of Owner’s Separate Contractors Construction Manager, if required

§ 4.1.1.17 Other Supplemental Services N/A

§ 4.1.2 Description of Supplemental Services

§ 4.1.2.1 A description of each Supplemental Service identified in Section 4.1.1 as the Construction Manager’s
responsibility is provided below.

(Describe in detail the Construction Manager’s Supplemental Services identified in Section 4.1.1 or, if set forth in
an exhibit, identify the exhibit.)

«NA»

§ 4.1.2.2 A description of each Supplemental Service identified in Section 4.1.1 as the Owner’s responsibility is
provided below.

(Describe in detail the Owner's Supplemental Services identified in Section 4.1.1 or, if sel forth in an exhibit,
identify the exhibit.)

«N/A »

§ 4.1.3 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Construction Manager shall provide, as a
Supplemental Service, the Sustamablhty Services per the agreed-upon terms. condltlons and serwces related to lhe
Owner’s Sustainable Objectiveregt :
WF&HM@FE%MMMWM The Owner shall compensate the Constructlon Manager as
provided in Section 11.2,

§ 4.2 Construction Manager’s Additional Services
§ 4.2.1 The Construction Manager may provide Additional Services after execution of this Agreement, without
invalidating this Agreement. Except for-to the extent services are required due to the fault of the Construction

AIA Document C13Z™ — 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.

WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of

this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent 14
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7443%099792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: 866977505)



Manager, any Additional Services provided in accordance with this Section 4.2 shall entitle the Construction
Manager to compensation pursuant to Section 11.3.

§ 4.2.2 Upon recognizing the need to perform the following Additional Services, the Construction Manager shall
notify the Owner with reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. The
Construction Manager shall not proceed to provide the following Additional Services until the Construction
Manager receives the Owner’s written authorization:

A Services necessitated by a change in the Initial Information, previous instructions or approvals given
by the Owner, or a material change in the Project including size, quality, complexity, the Owner’s
schedule or budget for Cost of the Work, or procurement or delivery method, or. bid packages in
addition to those listed in Section 1.1.6. Services necessitated by sections 6.4 and 6.6 shall not be
considered additional services;

.2 Services necessitated by the enactment or revision of codes, laws, regulatlons or official
interpretations after the date of this Agreement;

.3 Services necessitated by decisions of the Owner not rendered in a timely manner or any other failure
of performance on the part of the Owner or the Owner’s other consultants or contractors;

4  Preparation of documentation for alternate bid or proposal requests proposed by the Owner;

5 Preparation for, and attendance at, a public presentation, meeting or hearing; | | !

.6 Preparation for, and attendance at, a dispute resolution proceeding or legal proceedmg, except where
the Construction Manager is party thereto;

. Consultation concerning replacement of Work resulting from fire or other cause durmg construction
and furnishing services required in connection with the replacement of such Work; 'or

.8 Assistance to the Initial Decision Maker.

§ 4.2.3 To avoid delay in the Construction Phase, the Construction Manager shall provide the following Additional
Services, notify the Owner with reasonable promptness, and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the
need. If, upon receipt of the Construction Manager’s notice, the Owner determines that all or parts of the services
are not required, the Owner shall give prompt written notice to the Construction Manager of the Owner’s
determination. The Owner shall compensate the Construction Manager for the services prov1ded prlor to the
Construction Manager’s receipt of the Owner’s notice: ;
A Providing assistance to the Initial Decision Maker in evaluating an extensive number of Claims
submitted by a Contractor or others in connection with the Work.
.2 Services required in an emergency to coordinate the activities of a Contractor or Contractors in the
event of risk of personal injury or serious property damage, consistent with Section 3.3.15.

§ 4.2.4 Except for services required under Section 3.3.30, Construction Phase Services provided. more than 60 days
after (1) the date of Substantial Completion of the Work, or (2) the anticipated date of Substantial Completion
identified in the Initial Information, whichever is earlier, shall be compensated as Additional Serwces to the extent
the Construction Manager incurs additional cost in providing those Construction Phase Serv1ces

§ 4.2.5 If the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within « 'I'\wlve » ( «+~-_nl_2 ) months of
the date of this Agreement, through no fault of the Construction Manager, extension of the Construction Manager’s
services beyond that time shall be compensated as Additional Services. .

ARTICLE 5 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

§ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide information in a timely manner
regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program, which shiall set forth the
Owner’s objectives; schedule; constraints and criteria; special equipment; systems; and site requnrements

§ 5.2 The Owner shall establish the Owner’s budget for the Project, including (1) the budget; for the Cost of the
Work as defined in Section 6.1; (2) the Owner’s other costs; and (3) reasonable contingencies related to all of these
costs. The Owner shall update the Owner’s budget for the Project as necessary throughout the duration of the Project
until final completion. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the
Work, the Owner shall notify the Construction Manager and Architect. The Owner and the Architect; in consultation
with the Construction Manager, shall thereafier agree to a corresponding change in the Project’s scopeiand quality.

ATA Document C132™ — 2019. Copyright % 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (86%977505)

15



§ 5.3 The Owner acknowledges that accelerated, phased, or fast-track design and construction provides a benefit,
but also carries with it the risk of additional costs. If the Owner selects accelerated, phased or fast-track scheduling,
the Owner agrees to include in the budget for the Project sufficient contingencies to cover such costs.

§ 5.4 The Owner shall retain an Architect to provide services, duties and responsibilities as described in AIA
Document B132—2019, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, Construction Manager as
Adviser Edition. The Owner shall provide the Construction Manager with a copy of the scope of services in

the agreement executed between the Owner and Architect, and any further modifications to tﬁe Architect’s scope of
services in the agreement. '

§ 5.5 The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on the Owner’s behalf with respect to the Project.
The Owner shall render decisions pertaining to documents the Construction Manager submits in a timely manner in
order to avoid unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Construction Manager’s services.

§ 5.6 Unless otherwise required by this Agreement to be provided by the Construction Manager, the Owner shall
furnish surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the site of the Project,
and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as applicable, grades and
lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands; adjacent drainage;
rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries, and contours of the site;
locations, dimensions, and other necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees;
and information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below grade,
including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark.

i |

§ 5.7 Unless otherwise required by this Agreement to be provided by the Construction Manager, the Owner shall
furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may include test borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing
values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic evaluation, ground corrosion tests and
resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil conditions, with written reports and
appropriate recommendations. '

§ 5.8 The Owner shall provide the Supplemental Services designated as the Owner’s responsibility in Section 4.1.1.

§ 5.9 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Owner shall fulfill its responsibilities as
required in AIA Document E235™-2019, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, Construction Manager as-Adviser Edition,
attached to this Agreement.

|
§ 5.10 The Owner shall coordinate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by the
Construction Manager. Upon the Construction Manager’s request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of
services in the contracts between the Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Owner shall furnish'the services of
consultants other than those designated as the responsibility of the Construction Manager in this Agreement, or
authorize the Construction Manager to furnish them as an Additional Service, when the Construction Manager
requests such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the scope of the Praject. The Owner
shall require that its consultants and contractors maintain insurance, including professional liability insurance, as
appropriate to the services or work provided.

§ 5.11 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law or the Contract Documents, such as
structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials.

§ 5.12 The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and interests.

§ 5.13 The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Construction Manager and Architect if the Owner
becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s
Instruments of Service or any fault or defect in the Construction Manager’s services.

§ 5.14 The Owner reserves the right to perform construction and operations related to the Project with the Owner’s
own forces, and to award contracts in connection with the Project which are not part of the Construction Manager’s
responsibilities under this Agreement. The Construction Manager shall notify the Owner if any such independent

ATA Document C13Z™ — 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on

12/13/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (86%377505)

16



action will interfere with the Construction Manager’s ability to perform the Construction Manager’s responsibilities
under this Agreement. When performing construction or operations related to the Project, the Owner agrees to be
subject to the same obligations and to have the same rights as the Contractors.

§ 5.15 The Owner shall communicate with the Contractors and the Construction Manager’s consultants through the
Construction Manager about matters arising out of or relating to the Contract Documents. The Owner and
Construction Manager shall include the Architect in all communications that relate to or affect the Architect’s
services or professional responsibilities. The Owner shall promptly notify the Architect of the substance of any
direct communications between the Owner and the Construction Manager otherwise relating to the Project.
Communications by and with the Architect’s consultants shall be through the Architect.

§ 5.16 Before executing the Contracts for Construction, the Owner shall coordinate the Construction Manager’s
duties and responsibilities set forth in the Contracts for Construction with the Construction Manager’s services set
forth in this Agreement. The Owner shall provide the Construction Manager a copy of the executed agreements
between the Owner and Contractors, including the General Conditions of the Contracts for Construction.

§ 5.17 The Owner shall provide the Construction Manager access to the Project site prior to commencement of the
Work and shall obligate the Contractors to provide the Construction Manager access to the Work wherever it is in
preparation or progress.

§ 5.18 Within 15 days after receipt of a written request from the Construction Manager, the Owner shall furnish the
requested information as necessary and relevant for the Construction Manager to evaluate, give-notice of, or enforce
lien rights.

§ 5.19 The services. information and reports provided by the Owner pursuant to this Article 5 shall be-provided at
the Owner’s expense. and the Construction Manager shall be entitled to relv upon the accuracy and completeness
thereof.

ARTICLE 6 COST OF THE WORK

§ 6.1 For purposes of this Agreement, the Cost of the Work shall be the total cost to the Owner to construct all
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect and shall include the Contractors” general conditions
costs, overhead and profit. The Cost of the Work also includes the reasonable value of labor, materials, and
equipment, donated to, or otherwise furnished by, the Owner. The Cost of the Work includes the contpensation of
the Construction Manager and Construction Manager’s Consultants during the Construction Phase only, including
compensation for reimbursable expenses at the job site, if any. The Cost of the Work does not include the
compensation of the Architect; the costs of the land, rights-of-way, financing, or contingencies-for changes in the
Work; or other costs that are the responsibility of the Owner.

§ 6.2 The Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work is provided in Initial Information, and shall be adjusted
throughout the Project as required under Sections 5.2 and 6.4. Evaluations of the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the
Work, and the estimates of the Cost of the Work prepared by the Construction Manager, represent the Construction
Manager’s judgment as a person or entity familiar with the construction industry. It is recognized, however, that
neither the Construction Manager nor the Owner has control over the cost of labor, materials; or equipment; the
Contractors’ methods of determining bid prices; or competitive bidding, market, or negotiating conditions.
Accordingly, the Construction Manager cannot and does not warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will
not vary from the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, or from any estimate of the Cost of the Work, or
evaluation, prepared or agreed to by the Construction Manager.

§ 6.3 If the Architect is providing cost estimating services as a Supplemental Service, and a discrepancy exists
between the Construction Manager’s cost estimates and the Architect’s cost estimates, the Construction Manager
and the Architect shall work together to reconcile the cost estimates. -

§ 6.4 If the Construction Manager’s estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the
Work, the Construction Manager, in consultation with the Architect, shall make appropriate recommendations to the
Owner to adjust the Project’s size, quality, or budget for the Cost of the Work, and the Owner shall cooperate with
the Construction Manager and Architect in making such adjustments. o

AIA Document C132™ — 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.74490897392 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (86%377505)

17



§ 6.5 If the Construction Manager’s estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the
Work, the Owner shall

A give written approval of an increase in the budget for the Cost of the Work;

2 terminate in accordance with Section 9.5;

3 in consultation with the Construction Manager and Architect, revise the Project program, scope, or

quality as required to reduce the Cost of the Work; or

4 implement any other mutually acceptable alternative. o
§ 6.6 If the Owner chooses to revise the Project program, scope, or quality to reduce the Cost of the Work pursuant
to Section 6.5.3, or if the bids or proposals received from the prospective Contractors, in the aggregate, exceed the
Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, and the Owner chooses to revise the Project program, scope, or quality to
reduce the Cost of the Work , the Construction Manager shall cooperate with the Owner and Architect to develop
the necessary revisions, update the cost estimate, and obtain additional bids. The Construction Manager will perform
the services described in Sections 6.4 and 6.6 without additional compensation.

ARTICLE 7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

The Construction Manager and the Construction Manager’s consultants, if any, shall not own or claim a copyright in
the Instruments of Service. The Construction Manager, the Construction Manager’s consultants, if any, and the
Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other information, the transmitting party is the
copyright owner of such information or has permission from the copyright owner to transmit such information for its
use on the Project.

ARTICLE 8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

§ 8.1 General

§ 8.1.1 The Owner and Construction Manager shall commence all claims and causes of action against the other and
arising out of or related to this Agreement, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, in accordance with the
requirements of the binding dispute resolution method selected in this Agreement and within the period specified by
applicable law, but in any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completionof the Work. The
Owner and Construction Manager waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this
Section 8.1.1.

§ 8.1.2 To the extent damages are covered by property insurance, the Owner and Construction Manager waive all
rights against each other and against the contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of the other for damages,
except such rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance as set forth in AIA Document A232-2019,
General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. The Owner or the Construction Manager, as appropriate, shall
require of the contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of any of them, similar waivers in favor of the other
parties enumerated herein.

§ 8.1.3 The Construction Manager shall indemnify and hoid the Owner and the Owner’s officers and employees
harmless from and against damages, losses and judgments arising from claims by third parties, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and expenses recoverable under applicable law, but only to the extent they are caused by the
negligent acts or omissions of the Construction Manager, its employees and its consultants in the performance of
professional services under this Agreement. The Construction Manager’s obligation to indemnify and hold the
Owner and the Owner’s officers and employees harmless does not include a duty to defend. The Construction
Manager’s duty to indemnify the Owner under this Section 8.1.3 shall be limited to the available proceeds of the
insurance coverage required by this Agreement.

§ 8.1.4 The Construction Manager and Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes,-or other matters in
question, arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all
consequential damages due to either party’s termination of this Agreement, except as specifically provided in
Section 9.7.

§ 8.2 Mediation

§ 8.2.1 Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to
mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. If such matter relates to or is the subject of a lien
arising out of the Construction Manager’s services, the Construction Manager may proceed in accordance with

ATA Document C132™ — 2019. Copyright ® 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Rrchitects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7448089792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (86%377505)

18



applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or by
binding dispute resolution.

§ 8.2.2 The Owner and Construction Manager shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in
question between them by mediation, which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by
the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Mediation Procedures in effect
on the date of this Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to this
Agreement, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request may be made concurrently
with the filing of a complaint or other appropriate demand for binding dispute resolution but, in such event,
mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending
mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the
parties or court order. If an arbitration proceeding is stayed pursuant to this section, the parties may nonetheless
proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings. 1 i

§ 8.2.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 8.2.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Section 8.2, the method of binding
dispute resolution shall be the following:
(Check the appropriate box.) ,

[ (2(_: ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 8.3 of this Agreement
[ g&i ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction
[& ! ] Other: (Specify)
«n
[f the Owner and Construction Manager do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently

agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, the dispute will be resolved in a court of
competent jurisdiction.

§-83-Arbitration
RT41f

ATA Document C132™ -~ 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.

WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of

this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent 19
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.744909%792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (86%6’77505)



ARTICLE 9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

§ 9.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Construction Manager in accordance with this Agreement, such
failure shall be considered substantial nonperformance and cause for termination or, at the Construction Managet’s
option, cause for suspension of performance of services under this Agreement. If the Construction Manager elects to
suspend services, the Construction Manager shall give seven days’ written notice to the Owner before suspending
services. In the event of a suspension of services, the Construction Manager shall have no liability to the Owner for
delay or damage caused the Owner because of such suspension of services. Before resuming services, the Owner
shall pay the Construction Manager all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses incurred in the interruption
and resumption of the Construction Manager’s services. The Construction Manager’s fees for the remaining services
and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Construction Manager shall be compensated for services performed
prior to notice of such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Construction Manager shall-be compensated for
expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption of the Construction Manager’s services. The Construction
Manager’s fees for the remaining services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the
Construction Manager, the Construction Manager may terminate this Agreement by giving not-less than seven days’
written notice.

§ 9.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice should the other party
fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating
the termination.

§ 9.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice-to-the.Construction
Manager for the Owner’s convenience and without cause.

§ 9.6 If the Owner terminates this Agreement for its convenience pursuant to Section 9.5, or the Construction
Manager terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.3, the Owner shall compensate the Constructlon Manager
for services performed pnor to termination, Reimbursable Expenses incurred v

§ 9.7 In addition to any amounts paid under Section 9.6, if the Owner terminates this Agreement for its convenience
pursuant to Section 9.5, or the Construction Manager terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.3, the Owner
shall pay to the Construction Manager the following termination fee: ;
(Set forth below the amount of any termination fee, or the method for determining any termination fee.)

«»Payment for services performed and costs incurred by reason of such termination. along with réasonable profit
on services not completed during the Construction Phase.

AIA Document C13Z™ — 2019. Copyright ® 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA®* Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on

12/13/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (86%577505)

20



§ 9.8 Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, this Agreement shall terminate one year from the date of
Substantial Completion.

ARTICLE 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

§ 10.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding that
jurisdiction’s choice of law rules. If the parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution,
the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section 8.3.

§ 10.2 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in AIA Document A232-2019, General
Conditions of the Contract for Construction, except for purposes of this Agreement, the term “Work” shall include
the work of all Contractors under the administration of the Construction Manager and the Architect.

§ 10.3 The Owner and Construction Manager, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns, and
legal representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Construction Manager shall assign this
Agreement without the written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender
providing financing for the Project if the lender agrees to assume the Owner’s rights and obligations under this
Agreement, including any payments due to the Construction Manager by the Owner prior to the assignment.

§ 10.4 If the Owner requests the Construction Manager to execute certificates, the proposed language of such
certificates shall be submitted to the Construction Manager for review at least 14 days prior to the requested dates of
execution. If the Owner requests the Construction Manager to execute consents reasonably required-to facilitate
assignment to a lender, the Construction Manager shall execute all such consents that are consistent with this
Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the Construction Manager for review at least 14 days
prior to execution. The Construction Manager shall not be required to execute certificates or consents.that would
require knowledge, services, or responsibilities beyond the scope of this Agreement.

§ 10.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with, or a cause of action in favor
of, a third party against either the Owner or Construction Manager.

§ 10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Construction Manager shall have no'tesponsibility for the
discovery, presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials or toxic
substances in any form at the Project site.

§ 10.7 The Construction Manager shall have the right to include photographic or artistic representations of the
design of the Project among the Construction Manager’s promotional and professional materials. The Construction
Manager shall provide professional credit for the Architect and the Contractors in the Construction Manager’s
promotional materials for the Project. The Construction Manager shall be given reasonable access to,the completed
Project to make such representations. However, the Construction Manager’s materials shall not include the Owner’s
confidential or proprietary information if the Owner has previously advised the Construction Manager in writing of
the specific information considered by the Owner to be confidential or proprietary. The Owner shall provide
professional credit for the Construction Manager in the Owner’s promotional materials for the Project. This Section
10.7 shall survive the termination of this Agreement unless the Owner terminates this Agreement for cause pursuant
to Section 9.4.

§ 10.8 If the Construction Manager or Owner receives information specifically designated as “confidential” or
“business proprietary,” the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it
to any other person except as set forth in Section 10.8.1. This Section 10.8 shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.

§ 10.8.1 The receiving party may disclose "confidential”" or "business proprietary” information after 7 days’ notice to
the other party, when required by law, arbitrator’s order, or court order, including a subpoena or other form of
compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity, or to the extent such information is reasonably
necessary for the receiving party to defend itself in any dispute. The receiving party may also'disclose such
information to its employees, consultants, or contractors in order to perform services or work solely and exclusively
for the Project, provided those employees, consultants and contractors are subject to the restrictions on the
disclosure and use of such information as set forth in this Section 10.8.

ATA Document Cl3Z™ - 2019. Copyright € 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on

12/13/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (86@677505)

21



s Aot Nlinnesoia

5 10.8.2 The Construciion Manager must comply v e Minhesota Government Data Pragii

Stalutes Chi as it applies 1o (1) all daia provided by the Owaer pupsuant 1o this Agreement. and (2) ali data,

lecred. recelved, stored. used. maintained. or disseminated by the Copnstruction Manager pursuant (o llm
nment Data Pr

—
it
=4
iz

creatzd. co
Agreement. Ihc Construction Manager is ‘uo;a.c.t to *1|] T.hL provisions of the Minnesota Gov
lmited 1o the civil ren ta Staiuies ;cuu\u 13 98. és ii
struction strullion Manager pust

qine the release

1L WETE 4 20VETHITSI

Aciincluding but not
entity. [is the e
lx'

of the data to thu mmn,slmu IJdll\. bLIt‘li‘\ the data is 1’ch.d'a(.d Cum i
plovees. and volunieers baniess fom ahyeclaims resulting

ey potife the Owndi, The \)mw il

T
J:ma:ut‘ lﬂbl‘L'UCU\JHJ,s.uﬂ.\,»
. Manager aerees 1 defend. indemnify,

CUo

aid hol
irom Construction Manager's oi\ﬁu:rs'. asenls . owners | pariers”. emplovees . volunteers | assisnecs] oF
and/or use of protected data. The terms of this section shllll survive the

subcontractors’ unlawiul mlo»m:
cancellation or ermination ¢

|
§ 10.9 The invalidity of any provision of the Agreement shall not invalidate the Agreement or its remaining
provisions. If it is determined that any provision of the Agreement violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or
unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and
enforceable. In such case the Agreement shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give effect to
the parties’ intentions and purposes in executing the Agreement.

|

1,49 Pursuant to M (nesoLd. ?‘:w.u_mc L LGS da, the Construction Manaoer inustlgay any

wuamulrdqw within ten ¢ l\‘ i deavs of the O unslruullun Muanaver™ s re..u..ml of payment from Lhepd\L.nm-‘Im
pLifed seiv 'y =i pay inierest of gnk and one-hall
nt {1 %) per mnmh or anv part of a momh 1o subcontractor ot anv undispuied amount not paid on time o the
subgontractor. T he mir nly intersst DLI‘MII‘- payment for an unn.ud balance of $120.00 or whie is $10.00.
E'l)l' Qi 'Lii]Dﬂ,i(l :721‘1[11’\;'& Liigd i1 it :
subcontractor. A subeo or who prevails in a civil action to colléct interest penalties )
Manaoer shall be awarded jis cosis and disbursements. including aliormey” s fecs.

7 y ’ .
[he Construcrion Ma

LEBS PTG ided

shall pav the agi

1

0

ARTICLE 11 COMPENSATION (<

§ 11.1 For the Construction Manager’s Basic Services described under Article 3, the Owner shall compensate the
Construction Manager as follows: B ' :

§ 11.1.1 For Preconstruction Phase Services in Section 3.2: \ .

(Insert amount of. or basis for, compensation, including stipulated sums, multiples or percentages.) ,

§ 11.1.2 For Construction Phase Services in Section 3.3: [ | |
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation, including stipulated sums, multiples or percentages )

Thls stlpulated sum aSSumes a Slx ( 6}-month schedule for the Constructlon Phase Should th ¢ Construction Phas

extend beyond Six(6) months. the Construction Manager is entitled to charge additional amo unts at the hourly rates
set forth per section 11.5.1 not to exceed the following: (i) $11.588.00 per each additional w ge_k. or (ii) $50.215.00

per each addmonal month.

AIA Document C13Z™ — 2019. Copyright ™ 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2018 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7445099752 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (86%;77505

22



§ 11.2 For the Construction Manager’s Supplemental Services designated in Section 4.1.1, and for any
Sustainability Services required pursuant to Section 4.1.3, the Owner shall compensate the Construction Manager as
follows:

(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation. If necessary, list specific services to which particular methods of
compensation apply.)

§ 11.3 For Additional Services that may arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.2, the
Owner shall compensate the Construction Manager as follows:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.)

§ 11.4 Compensation for Supplemental and Additional Services of the Construction Manager’s consultants when not
included in Sections 11.2 or 11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Construction Manager plus « two point two-
five » percent ( « 2.25 » %), or as follows:

(Insert amount of, or basis for computing, Construction Manager's consultants’ compensation for Supplemental or
Additional Services.) | 1]

«»

§ 11.5 The hourly billing rates for services of the Construction Manager and the Construction Manager’s consultants
are set forth below. The rates shall be adjusted in accordance with the Construction Manager’s and Construction
Manager’s consultants’ normal review practices.

(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.)

§ 11.5.1 Hourly Rates for administrative and management personnel:

Rate Per Hour
$200.00 / hour
$170.00 / hour
$150.00 / hour
$122.00 / hour |
$110.00 Lhour
$161.00/ hour

$14956.00 / hour

Personnel Category

Project Director

Senior Project Manager/Construction Executive/Project Executive
Project Manager

Assistant Project Manager

Project Engineer/Field Engineer

Director of Preconstruction

Preconstruction Manager/Estimator

Assistant Estimator $108.00 / hour
Safety Director $158.00 / hour
Safety Eneineer/Safety Manager $140.00 / hour
Quality Director $184.00 / hour
Quality Manager $148.00 Lhour——
MEP Specialist $160.00 / hour

VDC/BIM $135.00 7 hour
General Superintendent $157.00 / hour
Field Superintendent $147.00 / hour
Assistant Superintendent $130.00 / hour
Project Coordinator/Accounting/Marketing _$74.00// hour

Computer/IT

$95.00 / hour

Yard Delivery

$125.00 / hour

Project Intern

$55.00 / hour

The rates set forth above shall be in effect through December 31, 2024, Then_egftgr:thg rates shall be
increased by Three percent ( —3.0 %) per vear as of January 1 of each subseguent vear.

AIA Document C132™ — 2019. Copyright © 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.

WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized repreduction or distribution of

this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent 2:3
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099732 which expires on

12/13/2020, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (86%877505)



hourhyrates setforth-above netto-exceed the followino (1§ per
r OO L e

§ 11.5.2 Regular Hourly Rates for field labor personnel for any miscellaneous general requirements or general
conditions-type work:

Personnel Category Rate Per Hour

Carpenter - Journeyman

$104.90 / hour

Carpenter - Foreman

$110.01 / hour

Carpenter — General Foreman

$114.39 / hour

Laborer - Journevman

$95.63 / hour

Laborer - Foreman

$100.01 / hour

Operator — Gl $107.32 / hour
Operator — G2 $106.81/ hour
Operator — G3 $104.67 / hour

Operator — G4

$104.16 / hour

Operator — G5

$101.25 / hour

Operator — G6

$98.96 / hour

Operator — G7

$97.25 / hour

Operator — G& $94.2 / hour
—Lmpperter—lomrnes s = b
————Carpenter—Forenis = e

; 5 e

Carpenter—General-loreman - —heur
— Laberer—forrneeman o Lhour
— Laberer—boreman 5 Lhous

e s —heur

Operator— G2 g Lo
—Ohperate—G3 > Ao
—Dlperator L4 5 s

—Operator —G3 -

G A
——Operator—G6& S et
———Operater—G7 S Hhour
———Operator—G8 $ +heur

The rates set forth above shall be increased in accordance with the terms of any applicable/collective
bargaining agreement.

The rates for any miscellaneous tool or equipment rentals shall be at the rates set forth in Exhibit A.

g

§ 11.6 Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses
§ 11.6.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic, Supplemental, and Additional Services and
include expenses incurred by the Construction Manager and the Construction Manager’s consultants directly related to the
Project, as follows:

.1 Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence;

.2 Long distance services, dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences Pro_|ect web

sites, and extranets;
.3 Permitting and other fees required by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project;

ATA Document C132% — 2019. Copyright » 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.

WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of

this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent 24
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11: 25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (86%977505



Printing, reproductions, plots, and standard form documents;

Postage, handling, and delivery;

Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner;

Professional photography, and presentation materials requested by the Owner;

[f required by the Owner, and with the Owner’s prior written approval, the Construction Manager’s

consultants’ expenses of professional liability insurance dedicated exclusively to this Project, or the

expense of additional insurance coverage or limits in excess of that normally maintained by the

Construction Manager’s consultants;

.9  All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses;

A0 Site office expenses; and

11 General conditions expenditures:

A2 General liability. professional liability. and umbrella liability insurance at a rate of 0.95% of the cost
of the Construction Manager’s Preconstruction and Construction Phase services:

A3 Coordination of warranty work required to be performed by the Contractors after substantial
completion of the Project at a rate of 0.15% of the Cost of the Work defined in Article 6: and

.14 Collaboration Technology

1544 Other similar Project-related expenditures.

PN

§ 11.6.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Construction Manager
and the Construction Manager’s consultants plus « Two point Two-Five » percent ( « 2.25 » %) of the expenses
incurred.

§ 11.7 Construction Manager’s Insurance. If the types and limits of coverage required in Section 2.8 are in addition
to the types and limits the Construction Manager normally maintains, the Owner shall pay the Construction Manager
for the additional costs incurred by the Construction Manager for the additional coverages as set forth-below.

(Insert the additional coverages the Construction Manager is required to obtain in order to satisfy the requirements
set forth in Section 2.8, and for which the Owner shall reimburse the Construction Manager.)

«»

§ 11.8 Payments to the Construction Manager

§ 11.8.1 Initial Payment
§ 11.8.1.1 An initial payment of « Zero » ($ « 0.00 » ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the
minimum payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner’s account in the final inveice.

§ 11.8.2 Progress Payments

§ 11.8.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services
performed. Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Construction Manager’s invoice. Amounts
unpaid « thirty » ( « 30 » ) days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence
thereof at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Construction Manager.
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.)

its. reference ggte, with each change in interest rate hereunder to become eﬂ'ectwe on the date the corresponding
change in such reference rate as announced by U.S. Bank Minneapolis. NA becomes effective.-

§ 11.8.2.2 The Owner shall not withhold amounts from the Construction Manager’s compensation to impose a
penalty or liquidated damages on the Construction Manager, or to offset sums requested by or paid to Contractors
for the cost of changes in the Work, unless the Construction Manager agrees or has been found liable for the
amounts in a binding dispute resolution proceeding.

§ 11.8.2.3 Records of Reimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Supplemental and Additional Services, and
services performed on the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the Owner at mutually convenient times.

AIA Document C132™ — 2019. Copyright » 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 201% by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order Nc.7449099792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (86%977505}

25



ARTICLE 12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows:
(Include other terms and conditions applicable to this Agreement.)

“«>»

§ 12.1 DOCUSIGN ELECTRONIC SIGNING SYSTEM. The Construction Manager has an agreement with DocuSign,
Ine. (“DocuSien™) with respect to the DocuSien electronic signing system (the “DocuSign System™). The DocuSign
System may be used to facilitate the administration and execution of the Owuer's Construction Contracts with the
Multiple Prime Contractors. as well as various other Contract Documents requiring signatures. Should the Owner
elect to have the Construction Manager use the DocuSign System with respect to any portion of the Project. the
Owner acknowledges and agrees that (i) the Owner conducted its own independent investigation and evaluation as
to all legal and other considerations related to its decision to use the DocuSign System on the Project, (ii) the Owner
did not rely on any advice. recommendations or representations of the Construction Manager in making the Owner’s
independent determination to use the DocuSign System on the Project. (iii) the Construction Manager and DocuSign
are not affiliated with each other and the Construction Manager does not warrant or guarantee any portion of the
DocuSign System, (iv) the Construction Manager does not warrant or guarantee that the DocuSign system complies
with or satisfies any legal requirements applicable to its use on the Project. and (v) to the fullest extent permitted by
law, the Owner waives. and shall hold harmless and indemnify the Construction Manager from and against. all
claims. causes of action, costs, expenses and damages (including reasonable attornev’s fees) arising out of or

resulting from the use of the DocuSign System on the Project.

ARTICLE 13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT .

§ 13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Construction
Manager and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement
may be amended only by written instrument signed by both the Owner and Construction Manager. .~

§ 13.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents identified below:
A AJA Document C132™-2019, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and Constructlon

Manager as Adviser
2 AIA Document E203™-2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, dated as

indicated below:
(Insert the date of the £203-2013 incorporated into this Agreement.)

«a»

.3 Exhibits:
(Check the appropriate box for any exhibits incorporated into this Agreement.)

[€ »] AIA Document E235™-2019, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, Construction Manager as
Adviser Edition, dated as indicated below: !

(Insert the date of the £235-2019 incorporated into this agreement.)

o

[« »] Other Exhibits incorporated into this Agreement:

(Clearly identify any other exhibits incorporated into this Agreement, including a any exhibits
identified in Section 4.1.2.)

«n»

4 Other documents:
(List other documents, if any, forming part of the Agreement.)

« Exhibit A — Tool and Equipment Rental Rates »

ATIA Document C132™ — 2019, Copyright ® 1973, 1980, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.7449099792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (868;77505)



This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above. This Agreement may be executed in any
number of counterparts. each of which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed an original and all of which
counterparts. taken together. shall constitute one and the same instrument. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a
signature page of this document by facsimile. pdf or other generally accepted electronic means (e.g.. DocuSign)
shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of this document.

[ANSERT NAMEOE OWNERICIly of Falcon Heights - - Kraus-Andersons Construction
Company

OWNER (Signature) CONSTRUCTION MANAGER (Signature)

€ D¢ » « g »

(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)

ATA Document C132™ — 2019. Copyright ©® 1973, 1380, 1992, 2009, and 2019 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.

WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of

this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent 27
possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:25:17 ET on 03/17/2020 under Order No.74435098792 which expires on
12/13/2020, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (86%877505)



for the following PROJECT:
(Name, and location or address)

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER:
(Name, legal status, and address)

THE OWNER:
(Name, legal status, and address)

THE ARCHITECT:
(Name, legal status, and address)

93



TABLE OF ARTICLES

1

10
11
12
13
14

15

GENERAL PROVISIONS

OWNER

CONTRACTOR

ARCHITECT AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGER
SUBCONTRACTORS

CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS
CHANGES IN THE WORK

TIME

PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
INSURANCE AND BONDS

UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT

CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

94



ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

§ 1.1 Basic Definitions

§ 1.1.1 The Contract Documents. The Contract Documents are enumerated in the Agreement between the Owner and
Contractor (hereinafier the Agreement) and consist of the Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General,
Supplementary and other Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of the Contract,
Performance Bond or Payment Bond. if required, other documents listed in the Agreement, and Modifications issued
after execution of the Contract. A Modification is (1) a written amendment to the Contract signed by both parties,
(2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Directive, or (4) a written order for a minor change in the Work
issued by the Architect. Unless specifically enumerated in the Agreement, the Contract Documents do not include
the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, sample forms, other information furnished by the
Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or proposals, the Contractor’s bid or proposal, or portions of addenda
relating to bidding or proposal requirements,

§ 1.1.2 The Contract. The Contract Documents form the Contract for Construction. The Contract represents the entire
and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Contract
Documents shall not be construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind (1) between the Contractor and the
Architect or the Architect’s consultants, (2) between the Owner and the Construction Manager or the Construction
Manager’s consultants, (3) between the Owner and the Architect or the Architect’s consultants, (4) between the
Contractor and the Construction Manager or the Construction Manager’s consultants, (5) between the Owner and a
Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor (6) between the Construction Manager and the Architect, or (7) between any
persons or entities other than the Owner and Contractor. The Construction Manager and Architect shall, however, be
entitled to performance and enforcement of obligations under the Contract intended to facilitate performance of their
duties.

§ 1.1.3 The Work. The term “Work™ means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents,
whether completed or partially completed, and includes all other labor, materials, equipment, and services provided
or to be provided by the Contractor to fulfill the Contractor’s obligations. The Work may constitute the whole or a
part of the Project.

§ 1.1.4 The Project. The Project is the total construction of which the Work performed under the Contract
Documents may be the whole or a part and which may include construction by other Contractors, and by the
Owner’s own forces and Separate Contractors

§ 1.1.5 Contractors. Contractors are persons or entities, other than the Contractor or Separate Contractors, who
perform Work under contracts with the Owner that are administered by the Architect and Construction Manager.

§ 1.1.6 Separate Contractors. Separate Contractors are persons or entities who perform construction under separate
contracts with the Owner not administered by the Architect and Construction Manager

§ 1.1.7 The Drawings. The Drawings are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the
design, location and dimensions of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and
diagrams

§ 1.1.8 The Specifications. The Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written
requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of
related services.

§ 1.1.9 Instruments of Service. Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known
or later developed, of the tangible and intangible creative work performed by the Architect and the Architect’s
consultants under their respective professional services agreements, Instruments of Service may include, without
limitation, studies, surveys, models, sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar materials.

§ 1.1.10 Initial Decision Maker. The Initial Decision Maker is the person identified in the Agreement to render initial
decisions on Claims in accordance with Section 15.2. The Initial Decision Maker shall not show partiality to the
Owner or Contractor and shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith

95



§ 1.2 Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents

§ 1.2.1 The Cantraet Documents are to be read and interpreted as o whole. The intent of the Contract Documents is

to include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work by-tie-Contracior_tn proper

eperating condivian- and to require Contractor to provide the highest quality and ereatest quantity consistent with the

Contract Documents. 1§ there are inconsistencies within or amang part of the Contract Documents or between the
Contract Documents and applicable standards, codes or ordinances, the Contractor shall grm-ldr. the better gquality
and greoter gt:nmm ul‘Wgrl. or comply wuh the more stringent requirements: either or all |n accordance with the

iractor of any
1 Jind ia H L v aae

n
gf_]L‘Lobllgn_[_r,u]___ns. set forth in Artigle 3, Fhe Contrat-B TS e roairdnbiatis
chalbbe-as-bindiutar-trequiced-by-al-parfor: ;mﬂw—ihe@eﬂmmm’m%eﬂqwmm\wmeemm
wﬂb—ihe@en&met—l)eewm&s—and—;easeaabl—y—r aferable-from-therrasbeisgnesessan-to-produce the-indiested
restits:
. Belore ordering any materi 7 doing anv Waerk, the Conteactor shall verifv measurements al the
Proicet site and shall be responsible for the correciness of such measurements. No extra charges or
compensation will be :l"t‘l\\gd on account of differences between actunl dimensions and the dimensions
indicated on the Drawings, Any difference that mav be found shall be subimitted to the Construction
Manager and Architeet for resolugion before proceeding with the Work

[fa minor change in the w;;rl. is necessary due (o actual field cnndltmns the Loglrg,c_t,g_;;____l

bﬁ.mrn. making the chanpe.

The Owner shall noi be required to make any adiustment to gither the Contract Sum or Contract Time becange of
any [ailure by the Contractor to comply with the requirements of this Subparagraph 1.2.1. Actual or alleged

conflicts or incansistencies between the Drawings and Specifications o other g, unlmc] _D_g@;um.mg wh:,jl ha.' !gruug it
o the Architect’s and Construction Manager's altention in writing,
Architect's and Construction Manager’s directions, as communicated throug!
followed by the Contractor,

§ 1.2.1.1 The invalidity of any provision of the Contract Documents shall not invalidate the Contract or its remaining
provisions. If it is determined that any provision of the Contract Documents violates any law, or is otherwise invalid
or unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and
enforceable. In such case the Contract Documents shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give
effect to the parties’ intentions and purposes in executing the Contract

§ 1.2.2 Organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and arrangement of Drawings shall
not control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be

performed by any :radc unlg,::-; it is specified thata ggmqmmm include speeific nhgsg or elerments to complete a

certain part of the W sons of coordination or nsibility. Where the ion has been divided into

§ 1.2.3 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words that have well-known technical or construction
industry meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings.

i
es, which shall not be constr 5 lhe're being no related materials or et work

96



§125F wun.d dimensions shall be Iollu\ud in Qn.!'umcutu measurement h\ ﬁcah. In the event nl‘diqcupmcn:ﬂ

:|Lc0mp_li~hl:d in accordance with the girggtlnns and dmu.ns:nm provided b\' the .-\rch iect D: mEensions on

Drawmua as well as d:.l.nl Dramn 15 Ih\.mSL!\ es, are subject in every case 1o measurements of existing, adja

§ 1.2) G Where \mc:ﬁc-ﬂm&q,g_uﬂj:_mhn.t]alcd or “streamlined” )rn. II_]L\ sh:lll be construed as complete
FWo x "

"_and “as shown
is mlcnlmn'ﬂ The words “shall” ar “shall bt.":m' 1o bcsu lied i)'lnfcrcn g Impermtive or

an lh\. druun"b

-—

‘: Formatted: Normal, Tab stops: 0.5", Left

| Formatted: Normal, Tab stops: 0.5", Left

§ 1.3 Capitalization
Terms capitalized in these General Conditions include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of
numbered articles, or (3) the titles of other documents published by the American Institute of Architects.

§ 1.4 Interpretation

In the interest of brevity the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as “all” and “any” and
articles such as “the” and “an,” but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in
another is not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement.

§ 1.5 Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications, and Other Instruments of Service

§ 1.5.1 The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shail be deemed the authors and owners of their respective
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and retain all common law, statutory, and other
reserved rights in their [nstruments of Service, including copyrights. The Contractor, Subcontractors, sub-
subcontractors, and suppliers shall not own or claim a copyright in the Instruments of Service. Submittal or
distribution to meet official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with the Project is not to be
construed as publication in derogation of the Architect’s or Architect’s consultants’ reserved rights.

§ 1.5.2 The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers are authorized to use and reproduce the
Instruments of Service provided to them, subject to any protocols established pursuant to Sections 1.7 and 1.8, solely
and exclusively for execution of the Work. All copies made under this authorization shall bear the copyright notice,
if any, shown on the Instruments of Service. The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers may
not use the Instruments of Service on other projects or for additions to the Project outside the scope of the Work
without the specific written consent of the Owner;-Aschitect i nd-the-Arehiteet's-consultants,

§ 1.6 Notice

§ 1.6.1 Except as otherwise provided in Section 1.6.2, where the Contract Documents require one party to notify or
give notice to the other party, such notice shall be provided in writing to the designated representative of the party to
whom the notice is addressed and shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person, by mail, by
courier, or by electronic transmission if a method for electronic transmission is set forth in the Agreement

§ 1.6.2 Notice of Claims as provided in Section 15.1.3 shall be provided in writing and shall be deemed to have been
duly served only if delivered to the designated representative of the party to whom the notice is addressed by
certified or registered mail, or by courier providing proof of delivery.

§ 1.7 Digital Data Use and Transmission

The parties shall agree upon protocols governing the transmission and use of Instruments of Service or any other
information or documentation in digital form. The parties will-may use A[A Document E203™-2013, Building

97



Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, to establish the protocols for the development, use, transmission,
and exchange of digital data,

§ 1.8 Building Information Models Use and Reliance
Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without awritlen agreement to protocols
gwemmg the usc of, and reliance on, Ihe information contained in the mode :

Mmmmm shall be at the using or
relying party’s sole risk and without liability to the other party and its contractors or consultants, the authors of, or
contributors to, the building information model, and each of their agents and employees.

ARTICLE 2 OWNER

§ 2.1 General

§ 2.1.1 The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have
express authority to bind the Owner with respect to all matters requiring the Owner’s approval or authorization.
Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1, the Construction Manager and the Architect do not have such
authority. The term “Owner” means the Owner or the Owner’s authorized representative.

§ 2.1.2 The Ownershall-furnish-to-the Contractor-within-fifieen dnvs—nﬂ-.r -receipl -of a-wriien-requesi: ‘nformation
seedsnareidrelern o doe e £ et petc Hproe-muechame s henrahisSoch
o ationshodtHselude oo mmwmﬂhe—wee&d%ua%ﬁm&pmmwlmwmmm
uﬂta«iwwﬁﬁmﬂt&hw—nﬂmwmﬁmmnwham Work is to proceed as a no-lien Project in accordance
with the laws of the Staie ol‘ane;mg [a.l;grgimg public n_rg;ectg Thc gjuntmc or, for itself and for all who claim
: : wroject, no lign shall attach 1o the
real Lstntg gn which lin. Prmcct is located or (o n;} improvements now Blslmg or 1o be constructed thereon 1n fiavor
Subcontractor, mechanic. journeyman, laborer, mnlcnnl ucndgr, lessor of tculs or

gg;tmm::n or any other party who may furmish work, materials, equi

design or construction of improvements on the lind  The Coniractor shall alv., op udx. written notice af the no-lien
sHLs nflh:s Praject 10 all of its Subcontractors, material suppliers, equ _pmenl lessors and others that provide labor,

uipment andior services for me Pm el Contraclor shn in:f L[ f' hold the Owner and

fees

§ 2.2 ReservedEvidence-of-the-Owner's-Financhal-Arrangamants
H\Q-&Prmﬂmlmnwmemoﬂ}w%éw&ﬂd-uponw n-the-Commotor-the Owhershal fumishte
|h¢&mmmneﬂww&mhnh@wﬁmmmw%&memm
oblizations sndes-the Contreet—Fhe-Contrastor-shall-have-no-sbl shie- Work-sniihhe Cner
provides suchevide e ol'linafi‘—‘s—due!evul—um!ur !ImSMt o234 the € Time-shall

PP O o the-Ownershall fuerish

sk sl 'M—er—ﬁ

t5-to-the-Contractoras-the Contra

%mwmw%he&nmmmmﬂn“ bl FRERTS drng-{he@wm-&-ahhm
muﬂuw%eﬂw—%uﬁm&em%ﬂm&%ﬂ%aﬂwhmmm@w%thw
providesu quired—within-fourteen davsofthe Con tHhe &
nmwdnue%v—siapahewerlrﬁd-m-ﬁmwﬁ-m&nﬂmmm;mhe%rk—hasmpped—l-&mwr—ﬂﬂw

quiest-is-made-t a-changein the Wosk-maierially-changes-the Controst-Sum-under (3 above: the Contractos
mav Iy-stop-only-that-portion-ofthe Work-affeeted-by-the-shanse-untibreasonable-ovid provided—H{
&he—Wo;Hs—steppeéunch&has—SeeHenﬁ.—lé,—%he—C—eﬂ%raetih »m&hal-kb&e*tendedappmpaa&e&aﬂé lhe—@emr—ae%
Suir-shal-be-inereased-by-the-smount-of- the Contractor s-reasenablecosis-efshurdovwndelay-and-star-upplus
interest-as-provided-it-the-Contract Dosuments:

§-2:23Adterthe Oaaes MMFMMMH;MWWW&M%&FM
matesally-vap-sush-f = weithout-priornote-to-the Contracios

98



st s
JI\:r—ﬁe ron-Haweverthe

-t e basdesies e cfere aien-urmished e
Finiieieconiidentichand shalbae
Canmerornty-disclme confident i infor atioh-aflerseven
requereid b o chisdinea-subpovna or-other
eqtitv—orbyv-cour--abiiratorts order—Hhe-Contreclorr
eryploves-consubians sureties, Subcontmctors and
harw-the-conteni-obsucl-adprmaiinisole b andee vobsive e o the 4‘:@4“\ am] sl pre Rk i e e
confdientinhiy ofsuch inlormation

saH-heep-ibei

4

m-.m uhg need-io

§ 2.3 Information and Services Required of the Owner

§ 2.3.1 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract Documents,
including those required under Section 3.7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements,
assessments and charges required for construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent
changes in existing facilities. Uniess otherwise provided under the Contract Documents, the Owner, assisted by the
Construction Manager, shall secure and pay for the building permit

§ 2.3.2 The Owner shall retain an architect lawfully licensed to practice architecture, or an entity lawfully practicing
architecture, in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Architect in the
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number

§ 2.3.3 The Owner shall retain a construction manager adviser lawfully practicing construction management in the
jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Construction Manager in the
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number.

§ 2.3.4 If the employment of the Construction Manager or Architect terminates, the Owner shall employ a successor
construction manager or architect to whom the Contractor has no reasonable objection and whose status under the
Contract Documents shall be that of the Construction Manager or Architect, respectively

§ 2.3.5 Exeept as otherwise required by the Contraet Documents. thede Owner shall furnish surveys describing
physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the site of the Project, and a legal description of the
site. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of information furnished by the Owner but shall exercise
proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the Work

§ 2.3.6 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Documents with
reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner’s control
and relevant to the Contractor’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the
Contractor’s written request for such information or services

§ 2.3.7 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor one copy of
the Contract Documents for purposes of making reproductions pursuant to Section 1.5.2

§ 2.3.8 The Owner shall forward all communications to the Contractor through the Construction Manager. Other
communication shall be made as set forth in Section 4.2.6

§ 2.4 Owner’s Right to Stop the Work

If the Contractor fails to correct Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents as
required by Section 12.2 or repeatedly fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the
Owner may issue a written order to the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such
order has been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part
of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entity, except to the extent
required by Section 6.1.3.

§ 2.50wner's Right to Camry Out the Work

If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance w1th the Contract Documents and fails
within a seven tes-day period after receipt of notice from the Owner to the C s
commence and continue correction of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may,
without prejudice to other remedies the Owner may have, correct such default or neglect or require the Contractor 's
suretv to assume the oblizations of the Contractor. Such action by the Owner and amounts charged to the

99



Contractor or its surety are both subject to review by the Construction Manager and prior concurrenceappraval of
the Architect, and the Construction Manager or Architect may, pursuant to Section 9.5.1, withhold or nullify a
Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to reimburse the Owner for the
reasonable cost of correcting such deficiencies, including Owner’s expenses and compensation for the Construction
Manager's and Architeet’s and their respective consultants’ additional services made necessary by such default,
neglect, or failure. If current and future payments are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Contractor or ils
surety shall pay the difference to the Owner. If the Contractor disagrees with the actions of the Owner or the
Architect, or the amounts claimed as costs to the Owner, the Contractor may file a Claim pursuant to Article 15.

ARTICLE 3 CONTRACTOR

§ 3.1 General

§ 3.1.1 The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the
Contract Documents as if singular in number, The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the
jurisdiction where the Project is located. The Contractor shall designate in writing a representative who shall have
express authority to bind the Contractor with respect to all matters under this Contract. The term “Contractor” means
the Contractor or the Contractor’s authorized representative

§ 3.1.2 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents

§ 3.1.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved of its obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents either by activities or duties of the Construction Manager or Architect in their administration of the
Contract, or by tests, inspections or approvals required or performed by persons or entities other than the Contractor.

§ 3.2 Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions by Contractor

§ 3.2.1 Execution of the Contract by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site,
become generally familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated personal
observations with requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor also represents that all Contract
Documents for the Project have b ling those intended for work of trades not normally performed
by the Contractor’s own forces, an Contractor has become thoroughly familiar with all conditions which may
pertain to or affieet the Work under this Contract.

§ 3.2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complementary, the Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the
Work, carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well as
the information furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.5, shall take field measurements of any existing
conditions related to that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These
obligations are for the purpose of facilitating coordination and construction by the Contractor and are not for the
purpose of discovering errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents; however, the Contractor
shall promptly report to the Construction Manager and Architect any errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered
by or made known to the Contractor as a request for information submitted to the Construction Manager in such
form as the Construction Manager and Architect may require. It is recognized that the Contractor’s review is made
in the Contractor’s capacity as a contractor and not as a licensed design professional, unless otherwise specifically
provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.3 The Contractor is not required to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in accordance with applicable
Jaws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Contractor
shall promptly report to the Construction Manager and Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known
to the Contractor as a request for information submitted to Construction Manager in such form as the Construction
Manager and Architect may require and necessary changes shall be accomplished by appropriate Maodi
Contract Documents

§ 3.2.4 If the Contractor believes that additional cost or time is involved because of clarifications or instructions the
Architect issues in response to the Contractor’s notices or requests for information pursuant to Sections 3.2.2 or
3.2.3, the Contractor shall submit Claims as provided in Article 15. If the Contractor fails to perform the obligations
of Sections 3.2.2 or 3,2.3, the Contractor shall pay such costs and damages to the Owner, subject to section 15.1.7,
as would have been avoided if the Contractor had performed such obligations. If the Contractor performs those
obligations, the Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner or Architect for damages resulting from errors,
inconsistencies or omissions in the Contract Documents, for differences between field measurements or conditions

100



and the Contract Documents, or for nonconformities of the Contract Documents to applicable laws, statutes,
ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities.

§ 3.3 Supervision and Construction Procedures

§ 3.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Contractor’s best skill and attention. The
Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques,
sequences, and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract. If the Contract
Documents give specific instructions concerning construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or
procedures, the Contractor shall evaluate the jobsite safety thereof and shall be solely responsible for the jobsite
safety of such means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, If the Contractor determines that such means,
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures may not be safe, the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Owner,
the Construction Manager, and the Architect, and shall propose alternative means, methods, techniques, sequences,
or procedures. The Architect shall evaluate the proposed alternative solely for conformance with the design intent
for the completed construction. The Construction Manager shall review the proposed alternative for sequencing,
constructability, and coordination impacts on the other Contractors. Unless the Architect or the Construction
Manager objects to the Contractor’s proposed alternative, the Contractor shall perform the Work using its alternative
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures

§ 3.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor’s employees,
Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for, or
on behalf of, the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors.

§ 3.3.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of portions of the Project already performed to determine
that such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work.

§ 3.4 Labor and Materials

§ 3.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor,
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other
facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work

§ 3.4.2 Except in the case of minor changes in the Work approved by the Architect in accordance with

Section 3.12.8 or ordered by the Architect in accordance with Section 7.4, the Contractor may make substitutions
only with the consent of the Owner, after evaluation by the Architect, in consultation with the Construction
Manager, and in accordance with a Change Order or Construction Change Directive

§ 3.4.3 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees and other
persons carrying out the Work. The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not properly
skl]]ed in tasks assigned to them All wirek '-h.l" be m'rformed in the best and most workmanlike manner to the

In ship shall not be permited by the Contractor and

become ramllmr \\nh local !abur and truh. LOI‘N.IIIIUF'lb skilled and umkﬂln.d and shall conform 10 loeal conditions
The Contractor shall consider the availability of labor in the arén and import labor as may be reguired to meet the
schedule for the Work

brands. manufacturers or types specified. All like nruduus lor Ilu:' Waork shall be by the same manufaciurer

d;.lummui that it is ec |ou or sumnur in all respects 1o thal -»[gu:irvd,

101



Represents that the Cantractor will ptovide the same warranty for the substitution that the Contractor

would for that specified.

L"crtil'lcs that ihc cost dal ssenied is com lutc and includes all related costs under this Contmel

for the work 1o be complete in all respecis

$3 4.7 If the Ci onirag lDuum‘cnla r;q_nr.. or Contractor elegis to pL rirm we uurL afiar n.gular \\urkml! hours, Ihr- ~

[}::CCSSHIHCCI by cha
chain issues; Owner s timely dLInm- of the project 1o !l‘lt.. constriction lmm ete.) |h|.u |hl. ‘nidlnurlll costs of such
work may be submitted a5 a Chanue Order, the approval of which will not be unreasonably denied by Owrnier

§ 3.5 Warranty

§ 3.5.1 The Contractor warrants to the Owner, Construction Manager, and Architect for o period of one-vear alter

the date of Substannal Completion of the Work or desiznated porion thereof or after the date of commencement of

warranties established under Subparagraph 9 9.1 that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract will be

of good quality and new unless the Contract Documents require or permit otherwise. The Contractor further

warrantsm period of one-vear afi tntial Completion of the Wark or designated portion thereol
_______ v alished under Subparneraph 9 9 1 that the Work will conform

to the requirements of the Contract Documents and will be free from defects, except for those inherent in the quality

of the Work the Contract Documents require or permit. Work, materials, or equlpmem not conforming to these

requirements may be considered defective. The-Contractor swarrtrexchidosromedrfordumane ordefest 4
In nl jizs 1t lh\\l I b PETTUIETL 0 TOUNT Y FOPRy o)

3 :
it RS- to-HH e —HREHFDPE-G7-HEd HER-TREHRT HAPFapUT

ad—!eﬂr—and—aﬂmﬁl—meahlf required by the Construction Manager or Architect, the
Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment, The quality
reguired under this W : shall, as g minimum, equal all standards or requirements of form, function. durability
arf nee, ype, streneth. efficiency, service, appearance or other eriteria established by the requirements of the
Contract Documents

§ 3.5.2 All material, equipment, or other special warranties required by the Contract Documents shall be issued in
the name of the Owner, or shall be transferable to the Owner, and shall commence in accordance with Section 9.8 4.

§ 3.6 Taxes

The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes for the Work or portions thereof provided by the
Contractor that are legally enacted when bids are received or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or
merely scheduled to go into effect,

§ 3.7 Permits, Fees, Notices, and Compliance with Laws

§ 3.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner, assisted by the Construction Manager,
shall secure and pay for the building permit. The Contractor shall secure and pay for other permits, fees, licenses,
and inspections by government agencies necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work that are
customanly secured after execution of the Contract and legally requrred at the tlme bids are recelved or negotlatlons

§ 3.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work, In any instance

\\th_. regu rg,mt.nls of the Lunlr'lct Dncumv.nlx are in excess ol bul not_in conflit with or violation of requirements

§ 3.7.3 [f the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume appropriate responsibility
for such Work and shall bear the costs attributable to correction.

§ 3.7.4 Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If the Contractor encounters conditions at the site that are (1) subsurface
or otherwise concealed physical conditions that differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents or

102



(2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature that differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and
generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the character provided for in the Contract Documents,
the Contractor shall promptly provide notice to the Owner, Construction Manager, and the Architect before
conditions are disturbed and in no event later than 14 days after first observance of the conditions. The Architect and
Construction Manager will promptly investigate such conditions and, if the Architect, in consultation with the
Construction Manager, determines that they differ materiatly and cause an increase or decrease in the Contractor’s
cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, will recommend that an equitable adjustment be
made in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. If the Architect, in consultation with the Construction
Manager, determines that the conditions at the site are not materially different from those indicated in the Contract
Documents and that no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Architect shall promptly notify the
Owner, Construction Manager, and Contractor, stating the reasons. 1&the-OwnerorContrauiordispuios-ihe

Afchitects-deterrrination-orrecommendation—eihar-pary-nay-sul Claim-as-providednArticle 5.

H

§ 3.7.5If, in the course of the Work, the Contractor encounters human remains or recognizes the existence of burial
markers, archaeological sites or wetlands not indicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately
suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner, Construction Manager, and Architect,
Upon receipt of such notice, the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental
authorization required to resume the operations. The Contractor shall continue to suspend such operations until
otherwise instructed by the Owner but shall continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or
features. Requests for adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such
remains or features may be made as provided in Article 15

§ 3.8 Allowances

§ 3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items
covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct,
but the Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Contractor has reasonable
objection

§ 3.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents:

A allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor of materials and equipment delivered at the site and
all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts; :

2 Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit,
and other expenses contemplated for stated allowance amounts shall be included in the Contract Sum
but not in the allowances, except where installation is specified as part of the allowance in fhe
Contractor Documenis; —and

.3 whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly
by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference between actual
costs and the allowances under Section 3.8.2.1 and (2) changes in Contractor’s costs under Section
3.8.2.2-- and

4 the supplier or subcontractor for an allowance item is subject to acceplance of the Owner, Architect,
and Construction Manaeer; and thi Contractor’s Purchase Order or Subcontract Agreement shall bind
the supplier or subcontractor to the requirements of the Contract Documents

§ 3.8.3 Materials and equipment under an allowance shall be selected by the Owner with reasonable promptness

§ 3.9 Superintendent

§ 3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in attendance
at the Project site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and
communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor.

§ 3.9.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall notify the Owner and Architect,
through the Construction Manager, of the name and qualifications of a proposed superintendent. Within 14 days of
receipt of the information, the Construction Manager may notify the Contractor, stating whether the Owner, the
Construction Manager, or the Architect (1) has reasonable objection to the proposed superintendent or (2) require
additional time for review. Failure of the Construction Manager to provide notice within the 14-day period shall
constitute notice of no reasonable objection

103



§ 3.9.3 The Contractor shall not employ a proposed superintendent to whom the Owner, Construction Manager, or
Architect has made reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not change the superintendent without the
Owner’s consent, which shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed.

ust provide his or her ¢-mail Iress an
1 st be available to be contaeted during all business hours and ouis

ddress and cell phone number 1o Owner, Construction

§ 3.10 Contractor's Construction and Submittal Schedules

§ 3.10.1 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall submit for the Owner's and Architect's
information, and the Construction Manager's use in developing the Project schedule, 2 Contractor’s construction
schedule for the Work. The schedule shall contain detail appropriate for the Project, including (1) the date of
commencement of the Work, interim schedule mi lestone dates, and the date of Substantial Completion: (2)an
apportionment of the Work by construction activity: and (3) the time required for completion of each portion of the
Work. The schedule shall provide for the orderly progression of the Wark to completion and shall not exceed time
limits current under the Contract D nts. The schedule shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by
the conditions of the Work and Project. The Contractor shall cooperate with the Construction Manager in scheduling
and performing the Contractor’s Work to avoid conflict with, and as to cause no delay in, the work or activities of
other Contractors, or the construction or operations of the Owner's own forces or Separate Contractors,

§ 3.10.2 The Contractor, promplly after being awarded the Contract and thereafier as necessary to maintain a current
submittal schedule, shall submit a submittal schedule for the Construction Manager's and Architeet's approval. The
Architect and Construction Manager’s approval shall not be unreasonably delayed or withheld. The submital
schedule shall (1) be coordinated with the Contractor's construction schedule, and (2) allow the Construction
Manager and Architeet reasonable time 1o review submittals. [f the Contractor fails to submit a submittal schedule,
or fails to provide submittals in accordance with the approved submittal schedule, the Contractor shall not be
entitled to any increase in Contract Sum or extension of Contract Time based on the time required for review of
submittals,

§ 3.10.3 The Contractor shall participate with other Contractors, the Construction Manager, and the Owner in
reviewing and coordinating all schedules for incorporation into the Project schedule that is prepared by the
Construction Manager. The Contractor shall make revisions to the construction schedule and submittal schedule as
deemed necessary by the Construction Manager to conform to the Project schedule.

§ 3.10.4 The Contractor shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted to
the Owner, Construction Manager, and Architect, and incorporated into the approved Project schedule,

§ 3.1 Documents and Samples at the Site

The Contractor shall make available, at the Project site, the Contract Documents, including Change Orders,
Construction Change Directives, and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field
changes and selections made during construction, and the eeseptedupproved npproved Shop Drawings, Product
Data, Samples, and similar required submittals. The record documents shill be a separate set of documents used
only for record purposes and kept elean and undamaged These shall be in electronic form or paper copy, available
to the Construction Manager, Architect, and Owner, and delivered to the Construction Manager for submittal to the
Owner upon completion of the Work as a record of the Work as constructed.

§ 3.12 Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples

§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules, and other data specially prepared for the Work by the
Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor to illustrate some portion of
the Work.

§ 3.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures; diagrams,
and other information furnished by the Contractor 1o illustrate materials or equipment for some pertion of the Work

§ 3.12.3 Samples are physical examples that illustrate materials, equipment, or workmanship, and establish standards
by which the Work will be judged.

104



§ 3.12.4 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals are not Contract Documents. Their purpose
is to demonstrate how the Contractor proposes to conform to the information given and the design concept expressed
in the Contract Documents for those portions of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittals
Review by the Architect and Construction Manager is subject to the limitations of Sections 4.2.10 through 4.2.12.
Informational submittals upon which the Construction Manager and Architect are not expected to take responsive
action may be so identified in the Contract Documents. Submittals that are not required by the Contract Documents
may be returned by the Construction Manager or Architect without action.

§ 3.12.5 The Contractor shall review for compliance with the Contract Documents, approve, and submit to the
Construction Manager, Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals required by the Contract
Documents, in accordance with the Project submittal schedule approved by the Construction Manager and Architect
or, in the absence of an approved Project submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to
cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of other Contractors, Separate Contractors, or the Owner’s own
forces. The Contractor shall cooperate with the Construction Manager in the coordination of the Contractor’s Shop
Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals with related documents submitted by other Contractors.

§ 3.12.6 By submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals, the Contractor represents to
the Owner, Construction Manager, and Architect, that the Contractor has (1) reviewed and approved them, (2)
determined and verified materials, ficld measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so,
and (3) checked and coordinated the information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the
Work and of the Contract Documents,

§ 3.12.7 The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittal
and review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, until the respective submittal has been
reviewed and aceepiedapprovedapproved by the Architect

§ 3.12.8 The Work shall be in accordance with z=cesiesnprovedanproved submittals except that the Contractor shall
not be relieved of responsibility for deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect’s
approval of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, unless the Contractor has specifically
notified the Construction Manager and Architect of such deviation at the time of submittal and (1) the Architect has
given written approval to the specific deviation as a minor change in the Work, or (2) 2 Change Order or Construction
Change Directive has been issued authorizing the deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for
errors or omissions in Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, by the Architect’s approval
thereof.

§ 3.12.8 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data,
Samples, or similar submittals, to revisions other than those requested by the Construction Manager and Architect
on previous submittals. In the absence of such notice, the Architect’s approval of a resubmission shall not apply to
such revisions

§ 3.12.10 The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of
architecture or engineering unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of
the Work or unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in order to carry out the Contractor’s
responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures. The Contractor shall not be
required to provide professional services in violation of applicable law

§ 3.12.10.1 If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials, or
cquipment are specifically required of the Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will
specify all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely
upon the adequacy and accuracy of the performance and design criteria provided in the Contract Documents. The
Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by an appropriately licensed design
professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop
Drawings, and other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings, and other submittals related to the
Work, designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional’s written
approval when submitted to the Architect. The Owner, the Architect, and the Construction Manager shall be entitled
to rely upon the adequacy and accuracy of the services, certifications, and approvals performed or provided by such
design professionals, provided the Owner and Architect have specified to the Contractor the performance and design
criteria that such services must satisfy. Pursuant to this Section 3.12.10, the Architect will review and approve or

106



take other appropriate action on submittals only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with
information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Construction Manager shall
review submittals for sequencing, constructability, and coordination impacts on other Contractors,

§ 3.12.10.2 If the Contract Documents require the Contractor’s design professional to certify that the Work has been
performed in accordance with the design criteria, the Contractor shall furnish such certifications to the Construction
Manager and Architect at the time and in the form specified by the Architect.

§ 3.13 Use of Site

§ 3.13.1 The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes,
ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, lawful orders of public authorities, and the Contract Documents and shall
not unreasonably encumber the site with materials or equipment

§ 3.13.2 The Contractor shall coordinate the Contractor’s operations with, and secure the approval of, the
Construction Manager before using any portion of the site

3.13.3 The Contractor shall return all improvements on or about the site, streets and adjacent propery which are
not shown to be altered, removed or otherwise changped, to the conditions which existed previously. The Contractor

shall protect existing structures or other features from damage by any operation in conngetion with the contract

§3.13.4 Unilities or other services which
ntragtor from any damaee from excavation or other work and ope

provided, tested and ready for use,

3.13.5 Contractor shall verify with the Construction Manager prior to making deliveries 1o the site and that the
project site is in a condition 1o receive and store materials. Materials delivered without authorization of the
Construction Manawer will be removed from the site and stored at the contractor’s expenss

§ 3.14 Cutting and Patching

§ 3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting, or patching required to complete the Work or to
make its parts fit together properly. All areas requiring cutting, fitting, or patching shall be restored to the condition
exnstmg prior to the cutting, fitting, or patching, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents. Cuttine and

to an absolute mipmuim by careful planning 'md thruu;h / !mlu; :.h.e\.u;

'ths o | ke-new l.‘nndllton, 10 match
ype of work invelved.

§ 3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a portion of the Work or fully or partially completed
construction of the Owner, Separate Contractors, or of other Contractors by cutting, patching, or otherwise altering
such construction, or by excavation. The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter construction by the Owner,
Separate Contractors, or by other Contractors except with written consent of the Construction Manager, Owner, and
such other Contractors or Separate Contractors, Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, The Contractor shall
not unreasonably withhold, from the Separate Contractors, other Contractors, or the Owner, its consent to cutting or
otherwise altering the Work,

onsistent with hn.' requirements for other similar construction

106



§ 3.15 Cleaning Up

§ 3.15.1 The Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials and
rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove waste
materals, rubbish, the Contractor’s tools, construction equipment, machinery, and surplus materials from and about
the Project.

§ 3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner, or Construction
Manager with the Owner’s approval, may do so and the Owner shall be entitled to reimbursement from the
Contractor.

§ 3.16 Access to Work
The Contractor shall provide the Owner, Construction Manager, and Architect with access to the Work in
preparation and progress wherever located

§ 3.17 Royalties, Patents and Copyrights

The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims for infringement
of copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owner, Construction Manager, and Architect harmless from loss
on account thereof, but shall not be responsible for defense or loss when a particular design, process, or product of a
particular manufacturer or manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyright violations
are contained in Drawings, Specifications, or other documents prepared by the Owner, Architect, or Construction
Manager. However, if an infringement of a copyright or patent is discovered by, or made known to, the Contractor,
the Contractor shall be responsible for the loss unless the information is promptly furnished to the Architect through
the Construction Manager

§ 3.18 Indemnification

§ 3.18.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Owner,
Construction Manager, Architect, Construction Manager’s and Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of
any of them from and against claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees,
arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than
the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the Contractor, a Subcontractor,
anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether
or not such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall
not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as
to a party or person described in this Section 3.18.

§ 3.18.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Section 3.18 by an employee of the
Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be
liable, the indemnification obligation under Section 3.18,1 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of
damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Subcontractor under workers’
compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

§3.19 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN EMPLOYMENT

§ 3.19.1 Contractor shall not discriminate avainst any emplovee or apylicant for employment because of sex, creed

color, religion, national origin, marital status, Status with respect to public assistance, disability, ave_or sexual
reference Contractor shall take affirmative aclion to ensure

recruitment, recruitment advertising. lavoiT or lermination, rates of pav ot other form of compensation and selection
for training, including spprenticeship. Contractor shall incorporaie these same eaual opportunity, antidiscrimination

§3.20 VERIFICATION OF FIELD CONDITIONS

3.20.1 The Contractor shall take field measuretments and verifv field conditions with the Contract Documents and

omissions 1o the Architect and Construction Manager

§3.20.2 No change in the Contract Sum will be allowed on acgount of minor differences between actugl field

conditions and the Contract Documents

107



§3.21 MISCELLANEQUS CONTRACTOR RESPDNSIBILFI’IES

3.21.1 The oniracto 5 toa ately and ar] ratgcuf.w _ The oniraclor agrees to 1o the
i | g

hlisated 1o, the situati ding 1o OSH harue the cost of same 1o the Contractor’s
account withou hy 1ce 1o the Contrm

3.21 3 The Contractor terees to notify the Construction Manaeer's representative on the job site of all accidents
h ma ur 1o ons o v and shall provide the anstru onM oer’s e rcs::ntaln- \mhacn af
i ! 1

sentative and submitted within twenty-four (24 ITS urrence.

5|
stoppage due to the jurisdictional assignment of work

321 5 The Contrm: ars all submit ot nmlm(.tlnn Manager u; . t_copies of orders placed for the
i k item. Order copies need

shall not be changed wi t written consent of the ton Manager,

mantal i o Wi ble laws and rey launn

.21.9 [n no evem shall any 4CL or oimission on the nul'lheO“. r, Arc iiect or I ¢ Construction Manager
Blinati

the Contractor’s Work.

108



ARTICLE 4 ARCHITECT AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

§ 4.1 General

§ 4.1.1 The Architect is the person or entity retained by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.2 and identified as such in
the Agreement._The term Architect means the Architect or his authorized representative, including emplovees or
consultants Where “Architeet” may be used relating to enginecring phases ol the Work, substitute the term
“Engineer” therefore

§ 4.1.2 The Construction Manager is the person or entity retained by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.3 and
identified as such in the Agreement. . The term “Construction Manager” means the Construction Manager or the

Construction Manager’s authonized representative, includini emplovees or consultants

§ 4.1.3 Duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of the Construction Manager and Architect as set forth in
the Contract Documents shall not be restricted, modified, or extended without written consent of the Owner,
Construction Manager, Architect, and Contractor. Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld

§ 4.2 Administration of the Contract

§ 4.2.1 The Construction Manager and Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the
Contract Documents and will be the Owner’s representatives during construction until the date the Architect issues
the final Certificate for Payment. The Construction Manager and Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the
Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents

§ 4.2.2 The Architect will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise agreed
with the Owner, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed,
and to determine in general if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when
fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect will not be required to
make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. On the basis of the
site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner and the Construction Manager reasonably informed about the progress
and quality of the portion of the Work completed, and promptly report to the Owner and Construction Manager
known deviations from the Contract Documents and defects and deficiencies observed in the Work.

§ 4.2.3 The Construction Manager shall provide one or more representatives who shall be in attendance at the Project
site whenever the Work is being performed The Construction Manager will determine in general if the Work observed
is being performed in accordance with the Contract Documents, will keep the Owner and Architect reasonably
informed of the progress of the Work, and will promptly report to the Owner and Architect known deviations from the
Contract Documents and the most recent Project schedule, and defects and deficiencies observed in the Work.

§ 4.2.4 The Construction Manager will schedule and coordinate the activities of the Contractor and other
Contractors in accordance with the latest approved Project schedule.

§ 4.2.5 The Construction Manager, except to the extent required by Section 4.2.4, and Architect will not have control
over, charge of, or responsibility for, the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for the
safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, since these are solely the Contractor’s rights and
responsibilities under the Contract Documents, and neither will be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform
the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. Neither the Construction Manager nor the
Architect will have control over or charge of, or be responsible for acts or omissions of, the Contractor, Subcontractors,
or their agents or employees, or of any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work

§ 4.2.6 Communications. The Owner shall communicate with the Contractor and the Construction Manager’s
consultants through the Construction Manager about matters arising out of or relating to the Contract Documents.
The Owner and Construction Manager shall include the Architect in all communications that relate to or affect the
Architect’s services or professional responsibilities. The Owner shall promptly notify the Architect of the substance
of any direct communications between the Owner and the Construction Manager otherwise relating to the Project.
Communications by and with the Architect’s consultants shall be through the Architect. Communications by and
with Subcontractors and suppliers shall be through the Contractor. Communications by and with other Contractors
shall be through the Construction Manager. Communications by and with the Owner’s own forces and Separate
Contractors shall be through the Owner. The Contract Documents may specify other communication protocols.

109



§ 4.2.7 The Construction Manager and Architect will review and certify all Applications for Payment by the
Contractor, in accordance with the provisions of Article 9.

§ 4.2.8 The Architect and Construction Manager have authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract
Documents, and will notify each other about the rejection, Whenever the Construction Manager considers il
necessary or advisable, the Construction Manager will have authority to require inspection or testing of the Work in
accordance with Sections 13.4.2 and 13.4.3, upon written authorization of the Owner, whether or not the Work is
fabricated, installed or completed. The foregoing authority of the Construction Manager will be subject to the
provisions of Sections 4.2.18 through 4.2.20 inclusive, with respect to interpretations and decisions of the Architect.
However, neither the Architect’s nor the Construction Manager's authority to act under this Section 4.2.8 nor a
decision made by either of them in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give risetoa
duty or responsibility of the Architect or the Construction Manager to the Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers,
their agents or employees, or other persons performing any of the Work

§ 4.2.9 Utilizing the submittal schedule provided by the Contractor, the Construction Manager shall prepare, and
revise as necessary, & Project submittal schedule incorporating information from other Contractors, the Owner,
Owner's consultants, Owner's Separate Contractors and vendors, governmental agencies, and participants in the
Project under the management of the Construction Manager. The Project submittal schedule and any revisions shall
be submitted to the Architect for approval.

§ 4.2.10 The Construction Manager will receive and promptly review for general conformance with the submittal
requirements of the Contract Documents, all submittals from the Contractor such as Shop Drawings, Product Data,
and Samples. Where there are other Contractors, the Construction Manager will also check and coordinate the
information contained within each submittal received from the Contractor and other Contractors, and transmit to the
Architect those recommended for-appraval acceptance. By submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and
similar submittals, the Construction Manager represents to the Owner and Architect that the Construction Manager
has reviewed and recommended them for approval. The Construction Manager’s actions will be taken in accordance
with the Project submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved Project submittal
schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time to permit adequate review by the Architect.

§ 4.2.11 The Architect will review and acceptapprove, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor’s
submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for
conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect’s
action will be taken in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an
approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s
professional judgment to permit adequate review. Upon the Architect’s completed review, the Architect shall
transmit its submittal review to the Construction Manager

§ 4.2.12 Review of the Contractor’s submittals by the Construction Manager and Architect is not conducted for the
purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for
substantiating instructions for installation or performance of equipment or systems, all of which remain the
responsibility of the Contractor as required by the Contract Documents. The Construction Manager and Architect’s
review of the Contractor's submittals shall not relieve the Contractor of the obligations under Sections 3.3, 3.5,

and 3.12. The Construction Manager and Architect’s review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions or of
any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item
shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component.

§ 4.2.13 The Construction Manager will prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives

§ 4.2.44 The Construction Manager and the Architect will take appropriate action on Change Orders or Construction
Change Directives in accordance with Article 7, and the Architect will have authority to order minor changes in the
Work as provided in Section 7.4. The Architect, in consultation with the Construction Manager, will investigate and
make determinations and recommendations regarding concealed and unknown conditions as provided in Section
374

§ 4.2.15 Utilizing the documents provided by the Contractor, the Construction Manager will maintain at the site for
the Owner one copy of all Contract Documents, approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar
required submittals, in good order and marked currently to record all changes and sclections made during

110



construction. These will be available to the Architect and the Contractor, and will be delivered to the Owner upon
completion of the Project.

§ 4.2.16 The Construction Manager will assist the Architect in conducting inspections to determine the date or dates
of Substantial Completion and the date of final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion in
conjunction with the Architect pursuant to Section 9.8; and receive and forward to the Owner written warranties and
related documents required by the Contract and assembled by the Contractor pursuant to Section 9.10. The
Construction Manager will forward to the Architect a final Application and Certificate for Payment or final Project
Application and Project Certificate for Payment upon the Contractor’s compliance with the requirements of the
Contract Documents

§ 4.2.17 [f the Owner and Architect agree, the Architect will provide one or more Project representatives to assist in
carrying out the Architect’s responsibilities at the site. The Owner shall notify the Construction Manager of any
change in the duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Project representatives

§ 4.2.18 The Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the
Contract Documents on written request of the Construction Manager, Owner, or Contractor through the
Construction Manager. The Architect’s response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits
agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness

§ 4.2.19 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable
from, the Contract Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations
and decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not
show partiality to either, and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions so rendered in good faith.

§ 4.2.20 The Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect will be final if consistent with the intent
expressed in the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2.21 The Construction Manager will receive and review requests for information from the Contractor, and
forward each request for information to the Architect, with the Construction Manager’s recommendation. The
Architect will review and respond in writing, through the Construction Manager, to requests for information about
the Contract Documents. The Construction Manager’s recommendation and the Architect’s response to each request
will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness. If appropnate,
the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and Specifications in response to the requests for
information.

ARTICLE 5§ SUBCONTRACTORS

§ 5.1 Definitions

§ 5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person, firm or entity who has a direct contract or purchase order with the Contractor to
purerm-a-porion-ofthe-Work-athe-site_provide or furnish materials, equipment, facilities, labor or services, ora
combination of these_for the execution and completion of the Work or part thereof The term “Subcontractor”
referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and means a Subcontractor or an authorized
representative of the Subcontractor. The term “Subcontractor” does not include other Contractors or Separate
Contractors or the subcontractors of other Contractors or Separate Contractors

§ 5.1.2 A Sub-subcontractor is a person or enlity whe-kas-havine a direct or indirect contract ar purchase order with
a Subcontractor to-pesform-a-porton-oithe-Wark-at-the-sie provide or furnish matenals, equipment, facilinies, labor
or services, or a combination of thege, for the execution and completion of the Work or part thereof The term “Sub-
subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and means a Sub-
subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-subcontractor.

§ 5.2 Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for Portions of the Work

§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the
Contract, shal) notify the Construction Manager, for review by the Owner, Construction Manager and Architect, of
the persons or entities proposed for each principal portion of the Work, including those who are to fumish materials
or equipment fabricated to a special design_ along with a list of the actual materials or equipment such person will be
furnishing.. Within 14 days of receipt of the information, the Construction Manager may notify the Contractor
whether the Owner, the Construction Manager or the Architect (1) has reasonable objection to any such proposed

111



person or entity or, (2) requires additional time for review. Failure of the Construction Manager to provide notice
within the 14-day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection

§ 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with a proposed person or entity to whom the Owner, Construction
Manager or Architect has made reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not be required to contract
with anyone to whom the Contractor has made reasonable objection.

§ 5.2.3 If the Owner, Construction Manager or Architect has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by
the Contractor, the Contractor shall propose another to whom the Owner, Construction Manager or Architect has no
reasonable objection. If the proposed but rejected Subcontractor was reasonably capable of performing the Work,
the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be increased or decreased by the difference, if any, occasioned by such
change, and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued before commencement of the substitute Subcontractor’s
Work. However, no increase in the Contract Sum or Contract Time shall be allowed for such change unless the
Contractor has acted promptly and responsively in submitting names as required. Mo incredse in the Contract Sum
shall be allowed should a substitution be required as a result of the Owner’s or Architect’s reasonable obiection
based on speeified criteria on which a proposed subcontractor will be evaluated

§ 5.2.4 The Contractor shall not substitute a Subcontractor, person, or entity for one previously selected if the
Owner, Construction Manager or Architect makes reasonable objection to such substitution

§ 5.3 Subcontractual Relations

By appropriate written agreement, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be
performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume
toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities, including the responsibility for safety of the
Subcontractor’s Work, that the Contractor, by these Contract Documents, assumes toward the Owner, Construction
Manager and Architect. Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner, Construction
Manager and Architect under the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the
Subcontractor so that subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor,
unless specifically provided otherwise in the subcontract agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies, and redress
against the Contractor that the Contractor, by the Contract Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate,
the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. The
Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract agreement,
copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcentractor will be bound, and, upon written request of the
Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor terms and conditions of the proposed subcantract agreement that may
be at variance with the Contract Documents. Subcontractors will similarly make copies of applicable portions of
such documents available to their respective proposed Sub-subcontractors

§ 5.4 Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts
§ 5.4.1 Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided
that
A assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to
Section 14.2 and only for those subcontract agreements that the Owner accepts by notifying the
Subcontractor and Contractor; and
2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the
Contract

‘When the Owner accepts the assignment of a subcontract agreement, the Owner assumes the Contractor’s rights and
obligations under the subcontract

§ 5.4.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the Subcontractor’s
compensation shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension.

§ 5.4.3 Upon assignment to the Owner under this Section 5.4, the Owner may further assign the subcontract to a
successor Contractor or other entity. [f the Owner assigns the subcontract to a successor Contractor or other entity,
the Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the successor Contractor’s obligations under the
subcontract.

112



ARTICLE 6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

§ 6.1 Owner's Right to Perform Construction with Own Forces and to Award Other Contracts

§ 6.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner’s
own forces, and with Separate Contractors retained under Conditions of the Contract substantially similar to those of
this Contract, including those provisions of the Conditions of the Contract related to insurance and waiver of
subrogation

§ 6.1.2 When the Owner performs construction or operations with the Owner’s own forces or Separate Contractors,
the Owner shall provide for coordination of such forces and Separate Contractors with the Work of the Contractor,
who shall cooperate with them.

§ 6.1.3 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, when the Owner performs construction or operations
related to the Project with the Owner’s own forces or with Separate Contractors, the Owner or its Separate
Contractors shall have the same obligations and rights that the Contractor has under the Conditions of the Contract,
including, without excluding others, those stated in Article 3, this Article 6, and Articles 10, 11, and 12

§ 6.2 Mutual Responsibility
§ 6.2.1 The Contractor and Subcontractors shall coopérate with and coordinate their work with all other Contractors

and the Owner to facilitate the seneral progress of the Project and 1 lcuarug-n] delaving 1]1.: prnyrcﬂuﬁ_ﬁll it

Contractors. The Contractor shall afford the-Ownerswywn-farces—Separate-Contractors-Constrioion-vian

other Contractors reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of their matenals and equipment and

perfopmence-the execution of their-setivitres work, and shall connect and coordinate #w-Contractor’s eansiruetion

and-spesatians-Work with theirs as required by the Contract Documents. Fach Contractor and Subconiractor shal

obiain lavout drawings, roughine-in detail sheets and ﬂl.]‘.IL'I srtinenit information direetly from each other (not from
Architect or Construction Manager) to coordinate 4 es of the Work, For eoordination with the Owner's

w ui ment or I'n.llgl'hll‘\ mfunmllon sh.jll be uhi.unu.d [mm th-. l)\mcf Ihmn"h |hL Lnn-\trul.ltm; \«I.ma-' or .-\.FIL:I

§ 6.2.2 If part of the Contractor’s Work depends for proper execution or results upon construction or operations by
the Owner’s own forces, Separate Contractors or other Contractors, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with
that portion of the Work, promptly notify the Construction Manager and Architect of apparent discrepancies or
defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or Separate Contractor or other Contractors that would render
it unsuitable for proper execution and results of the Contractor’s Work. Failure of the Contractor to notify the
Construction Manager and the Architect of apparent discrepancies or defects prior to proceeding with the Work shall
constitute an acknowledgment that the Owner’s or Separate Contractor’s or other Contractors’ completed or
partially completed construction is fit and proper to receive the Contractor’s Work. The Contractor shall not be
responsible for discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or Separate Contractors or
other Contractors that are not apparent.

§ 6.2.3 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs, including costs that are payable o a
Separate Contractors or to other Contractors, because of the Contractor’s delays, improperly timed activities_ lack of
coordination with other Contractors or defective construction, The Owner shall be responsible to the Contractor for
costs the Contractor incurs because of delays, improperly timed activities, damage to the Work or defective
construction by the Owner’s own forces, Separate Contractors, or other Contractors

§ 6.2.4 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage that the Contractor sansfuty-causes to completed or
partially completed construction, or to property of the Owner, Separate Contractors, or other Contractors as provided
in Section 10.2.5

§ 6.2.5 The Owner, Separate Contractors, and other Contractors shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and
patching as are described for the Contractor in Section 3.14

§ 6.3 Owner’s Right to Clean Up

If a dispute arises among the Contractor, Separate Contractors, other Contractors, and the Owner as to the
responsibility under their respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste
materials and rubbish, the Owner may clean up and the Construction Manager, with notice to the Architect, will
allocate the cost among those responsible.

ted [JM1]: City should review deletion

113



ARTICLE 7 CHANGES IN THE WORK

§ 7.1 General

§ 7.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the
Contract, by Change Order, Construction Change Directive or order for a minor change in the Work, subject to the
limitations stated in this Article 7 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement among the Owner, Construction Manager, Architect and
Contractor. A Construction Change Directive requires agreement by the Owner, Construction Manager and
Architect and may or may not be agreed to by the Contractor. An order for a minor change in the Work may be
issued by the Architect alone.

§ 7.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents. The
Contractor shall proceed promptly with changes in the Work, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order,
Construction Change Directive, or order for a minor change in the Work.

such [ sail as required by the ruction Manager/Architect

inimum, the detailed hn.nl.dmm shall mi:'udL and indicate the it S enumern c.d below. ltems

required t’ur the ¢chanpe. Labor rotes shall be the same for extra and credit computations and
shall be the actual rate paid workmen in accordance with established management labor
apreement

{d)__ The cost of subcontrcted work, computed in the same way as provided for under this
Subsection 7.1.4.

{el  Owverhead. profit or commission.
(f) __Applicable sales tax on mnlc:rinls added afler Ihh‘ ubow comng;gli;m' are complete.

2 ThL maximum that \»lﬂhul overhead an nmmm jon ﬁhnll be as follow

but in no event shall they exceed the followini:

Overhead/Profit Commission

(a) To the Contractor and/or Subcontractor 10%
for work performed with their own forces

(b)__ Taothe Contractor for work performed by
other than its own forces. .= 5%

addition to the Contractor’s cemmission Ih"iubcuntmcmrand Sub-8 ractor may divide the

expressed as a percentage of the extended hourly rate costs 1 required by the Owner Cnnmruclinn
Manager or the Archite ¢ Contractor shall provid sailed breakdown to justify the lab

burden. The Cunstrucnan Manager reserves the neht to reiect anv labor burden which is mcuu;ﬂ';,]m;l
with ot i tors or where the cost of fringe benefits are in excess o
agreements. The burden on fabor shall not include any costs noted as ueneral overhead.

5 Material, equmpment and su I\- costs shall be quoted at the actual cost to the Contractor. or
Subcontractor Upon re ¢ Contractor or Subcol 1 £) shall submn evidence o h\:tammh.

114



| with material ioment and supnly credits. the credit shall be based on the getn] Contrac

I'hcm (= includi n n \d: unts) less any a tually ingurme
v will be allowed unless actu:ﬂlv incurred by the purchaser and generally will not bcalln\\-cd
when the uct has not been shi

ing th T namn[bmn" | insura xCe| i e luboy
burdn.n 3) use orre }accrnc of ols: (4 '5 ipment rental er than speci

enumerated under clause 7 1 4.

J__ Cost changes shall m v determining the basie costs enumerated under clause 7
further specified under this subsection), to which the overhead may be added. then the profit figu
v be finally adding the sales tax on malerials.
Subcontractors (or Sub- ont 5) shall compute their costs in the same way an bject

h 5 onditions of what may be 1 1 und the same maxim reet

mmission may hx: re mmd w0 hn: credited the O\mer as approved by the i afier o nsultatio

will be
th it be allowed to the Owner due to the cITun COSL OF re 5l 'I‘\' f the Contractor_ In
event of substantial subeontract credits, or for Work not perfor ; the Contractor. a
casonable overhe: ofit or missi it shall wed to the

§ 7.2 Change Orders
§ 7.2.1 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared by the Construction Manager and signed by the Owner,
Construction Manager, Architect, and Contractor, stating their agreement upon all of the following:

A The change in the Work;

2 The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum; and

.3 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time.

— '{;:rmatted: AIA Body Text Indented

1 T
m;hm a ﬂ.gsgﬂg ble !lmg angr reguest of the Owner, Construction Mgny,n.r or the Architect or within a n.nsunah
time after the event giving fise to the rictor's claing for a change in the Contract Sum or Contra

lmc in |hc_Cinmct Sum or extension ul‘]hc ;;ﬂntmzt ume \\111 be aIIn\\'e_d_{c_l_r_ the Q m_n_..t_or_ f_qu_hc th or time

ncludmg but not limited 10. cost, properly itemized and sup) v sufficient s tiating data to permil
evaluation including cost of labor, materials, supplies and c;]uiu:nn.-nt, rental cost of machinery and ¢quipment,
additional bo t, plus the Contractor's Fee

§7.2. 3 l: the Owner determings Ihul a chanes p_rnpgsgl is ﬂﬂg[ﬂpﬂ'{ll. the Arciulu:l wlll prepare and sghmu
r

Change Order.

115



§ 7.2.3 Methods used in determining adjustments to the Coniteact Sum may include those listed in Section 7.3.5

§ 7.3 Construction Change Directives

§ 7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared by the Construction Manager and signed by the
Owner, Construction Manager and Architect, directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if
any, in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. The Owner may by Construction Change Directive, without
invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of
additions, deletions, or other revisions, the Contract Sum and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly.

§ 7.3.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a Change
Order.

§ 7.3.3 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum, the adjustment shall be
based on one of the following methods:
A Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to
permit evaluation,
2 Unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon;
3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or
percentage fee; or
4 As provided in Section 7.3.4

§ 7.3.4 If the Contractor does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract
Sum, the Construction Manager shall determine the adjustment on the basis of reasonable expenditures and savings
of those performing the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, an
amount for overhead and profit as set forth in the Agreement, or if no such amount is set forth in the Agreement, a
reasonable amount. In such case, and also under Section 7.3.3.3, the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form
as the Construction Manager may prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data
Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, costs for the purposes of this Section 7.3.4 shall be limited to
the following:

A Costs of labor, including applicable payroll taxes, fringe benefits required by agreement or custom,
workers’ compensation insurance, and other employee costs approved by the Construction Manager
and Architect;

2 Costs of materials, supplies, and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or
consumed;

3 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the
Contractor or others;

4 Costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use, or similar taxes, directly
related to the change; and

.5 Costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change.

§ 7.3.5 If the Contractor disagrees with the adjustment in the Contract Time, the Contractor may make a Claim in
accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15

§ 7.3.6 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the change in
the Work involved and advise the Construction Manager of the Contractor’s agreement or disagreement with the
method, if any, provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the
Contract Sum or Contract Time

§ 7.3.7 A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the Contractor’s agreement therewith,
including adjustment in Contract Sum and Contract Time or the method for determining them. Such agreement shall
be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order

§ 7.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a
net decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed by the Construction Manager and Architect
When both additions and credits covering related Work or substitutions are involved in a change, the allowance for
overhead and profit shall be figured on the basis of net increase, if any, with respect to that change.

116



§ 7.3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Construction Change Directive to the Owner, the Contractor
may request payment for Work completed under the Construction Change Directive in Applications for Payment.
The Construction Manager and Architect will make an interim determination for purposes of monthly certification
for payment for those costs and certify for payment the amount that the Construction Manager and Architect
determine to be reasonably justified, The interim determination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum on the same
basis as a Change Order-subject-to the-sight-eFeither pasiy-te disagree and-assent a Cloim inaceordance with-Asticle
15,

§ 7.3.10 When the Owner and Contractor agree with a determination made by the Construction Manager and
Architect concerning the adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon
the adjustments, such agreement shall be effective immediately and the Construction Manager shall prepare a
Change Order. Change Orders may be issued for all or any part of a Construction Change Directive.

§ 7.4 Minor Changes in the Work

The Architect may order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents
and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. The Architect’s order
for minor changes shall be in writing. If the Contractor believes that the proposed minor change in the Work will
affect the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the Contractor shall notify the Construction Manager and shall not
proceed to implement the change in the Work. If the Contractor performs the Work set forth in the Architect’s order
for a minor change without prior notice to the Construction Manager that such change will affect the Contract Sum
or Contract Time, the Contractor waives any adjustment to the Contract Sum or extension of the Contract Time. The
Architect shall also have the right te make minor chanees in dimensions, locations, amangements or details to
accommodate chanues in other materials and equipment, imprave the Work. or prevent unforeseen interference with
structural or other features. Such changes shall be made withoul a ¢hanee in the Contract Sum

ARTICLE 8 TIME

§ 8.1 Definitions

§ 8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in
the Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work.

§ 8.1.2 The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Agreement
§ 8.1.3 The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8

§ 8.1.4 The term “day” as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically
defined

§ 8.2 Progress and Completion
§ 8.2.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the
Agreement, the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work

§ 8.2.2 The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, commence
the Work prior to the effective date of insurance required to be furnished by the Contractor and Owner,

§ 8.2.3 The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve-Substartial Final
Completion within the Contract Time. The Work shall not be suspended or shut down, but shall progress
continuouslv with sufficient labor at all times, unless otherwise approved by the Owner, Architect and Construction

Manager.

§ 8.3 Delays and Extensions of Time

§ 8.3.1 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by (1) an act or
neglect of the Owner, Architect, Construction Manager, or an employee of any of them, or of the Owner’s own
forces, Separate Contractors, or other Contractors; (2) by changes ordered in the Work; (3) by labor disputes, fire,
unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties, adverse weather conditions documented in accordance with
Section 15.1.6.2, or other causes beyond the Contractor’s control; (4) by delay authorized by the Owner pending
mediation and binding dispute resolution; or (5) by other causes that the Contractor asserts and the Architect, based
on the recommendation of the Construction Manager, determines justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be
extended for such reasonable time as the Architect may determine.

117



§ 8.3.2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15

§ 8.3.3 This Section 8.3 does not preclude the Chwner's recovery of damages for delay by either party under other
provisions of the Contract Documents. Te thc fullest exient allow icable law, the Contractor’s sole and

exclusive remedy ft

s incurred by Owner/ Architect or Construction Manager and any

and proje et closeout dn uments \\n!nn Lnn
Construction Manager’s progress schedule,

ARTICLE 9 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

§ 9.1 Contract Sum

§ 9.1.1 The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount
payable by the Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.

§ 9.1.2 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities originally
contemplated are materially changed so that application of such unit prices to the actual quantities causes substantial
inequity to the Owner or Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.2 Schedule of Values

Where the Contract is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Contractor shall submit a
schedule of values to the Construction Manager, before the first Application for Payment and in accordance with
other requirements of the Contract Documents,, allocating the entire Contract Sum to the various portions of the
Work. The schedule of values shall be prepared in the form, and supported by the data to substantiate its accuracy,
required by the Construction Manager and the Architect. This schedule, unless objected to by the Construction
Manager or Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s Applications for Payment. The
Construction Manager shall forward to the Architect the Contractor’s schedule of values. Any changes to the
schedule of values shall be submitted to the Construction Manager and supported by such data to substantiate its
accuracy as the Construction Manager and the Architect may require, and unless objected to by the Construction
Manager or the Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s subsequent Applications for
Payment

§ 9.3 Applications for Payment

§ 9.3.1 At Jeast fifteen days before the date established for each progress payment, the Contractor shall submit to the
Construction Manager an itemized Application for Payment prepared in accordance with the schedule of values, if
required under Section 9.2, for completed portions of the Work. The application shall be notarized, if required, and
supported by all data substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment that the Owner, Construction Manager or
Architect require, such as coples of requisitions, and releases of waivers of lien from Subcontractors and suppliers,
and shall reflect retainage-ii-grinided-forin-the Contract-Documents ol percent. S intiating documents may, al
Owner's option. include waivers of liens from Contractor, subeontractors, and Suppliers.

§ 9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 7.3.9, such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in
the Work that have been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the
Construction Manager and Architect, but not yet included in Change Orders.

§ 9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shali not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the
Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or supplier, unless such Work has been performed by others
whom the Contractor intends to pay. Minn. Stat, § 29092 reguires that the Owner oblain a Withholding A ffidavit
for Contractors, Form IC-134, before making final pavments to Contractors, This form needs to be submitted by the
Contractor to the Minnesota Departiment of Revenue for approval. The form is used to recgive certification from the
state that the vendor has complied with the requirement to withhold and remit state withholding taxes for emploves
salaries paid

9.3.1.3 Pay requests received alier the date established in the Contract Documents will not be processed until next

118



hedule for application for payment and dite of payment will be set by Construction Manager afie

Gt ;\uill‘:l‘—mn with the Owner {Commented [AMPZ] City to confu-m

§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments shall be made on account of materials and
equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work, [f approved in advance
by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a location
agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon
compliance by the Contractor with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner’s title to such
materials and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, and shall include the costs of applicable
insurance, storage, and transportation to the site, for such materials and equipment stored off the site.

§ 9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner
no later than the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon submittal of an Application for
Payment all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the
Owner shall, to the best of the Contractor’s knowledge, information, and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims,
security interests, or encumbrances, in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers, or other persons or entities
that provided labor, materials and equipment relating to the Work,

§9.3.4 The Contractor shall submit j1s Application for Paviient on forms as the Construction Manager or Architect
mav specify or direct, The Application shall be accompanied by a swom, notarized Certificate by the Contractor

attesting 1o the accuracy OI the amount as being for work satisfactonilv complete in accordance with the Contract
I uipment, :.ubum!r 1c1s nnd SErvVIiEes or o

pavment

§9.3.5 PROMPT PAYMENT TO SUBCONTRACTORS. In accordance with Minnesota law, the Contractor
shall ingllld_QLil’_]wa_iﬁilhcﬂl“r is rmnj ﬂII!Lr agresmenis \\-ilh is whmmnuurs and suppllers a pr0v1510n \Vthh

: |I:u.-|1lmctm ar blujlgg;ﬂdg :\_Ulth}mN(.!(Jl or whrllcr \\nu |m\.n1:\ N aciy -} action to
ents, including attornevs |

§ 9.4 Certificates for Payment

§ 9.4.1 Where there is only one Contractor, the Construction Manager will, within seven days after the Construction
Manager’s receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, review the Application, certify the amount the
Construction Manager determines is due the Contractor, and forward the Contractor’s Application and Certificate
for Payment to the Architect, Within seven days after the Architect receives the Contractor’s Application for
Payment from the Construction Manager, the Architect will either (1) issue to the Owner a Certificate for Payment,
in the full amount of the Application for Payment, with a copy to the Construction Manager; or (2) issue to the
Owner a Certificate for Payment for such amount as the Architect determines is properly due, and notify the
Construction Manager and Owner of the Architect’s reasons for withholding certification in part as provided in
Section 9.5.1; or (3) withhold certification of the entire Application for Payment, and notify the Construction
Manager and Owner of the Architect’s reason for withholding certification in whole as provided in Section 9.5,1.
The Construction Manager will promptly forward to the Contractor the Architect’s notice of withholding
certification.

§ 9.4.2 Where there is more than one Contractor performing portions of the Project, the Construction Manager wil